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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o “ELTRE ZETHE ZET)\F ZZENE  ZB-B%
HEEEBTIIR HKS$ Million 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
hRES Shareholders’ funds 10,045 10,469 9,892 11,396 14,156
BEEB Subordinated notes 3,480 5,148 5,269 4,602 4,644
RPRER Deposits from customers 66,989 78,728 80,418 88,370 96,127
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,768 8,843 4,655 2,060 4,746
FREE Total deposits 75,757 87,571 85,073 90,430 100,873
AERE Total liabilities

(BEBEER) (including subordinated notes) 96,638 111,427 108,243 108,397 125,088
EFER Advances to customers
(BIEESHEE) (including trade bills) 49,909 61,295 60,999 57,165 72,749
BEGE Total assets 109,048 124,209 120,180 122,576 142,742
e ey Profit attributable to shareholders 1,397 1,050 106 626 1,006
B including:
HEHEL Profit on disposal of interests in
B2 ﬂ subsidiaries 189 - - - -
AEENEBE Profit attributable to shareholders
R R IE &7 excluding the above 1,208 1,050 106 626 -
2ERENE Total dividend distribution 588 375 176 - 304
LB TS HK$
FREREH (F31) Basic earnings per share (Note 1) 5.35 4.02 0.40 230 3.67
(F£2) (Note 2)
BRRE Dividends per share 2.35 1.50 0.68 - 1.06
DER 2NN Percentage %
FHRFRESER Return on average shareholders’ funds 12.6 10.2 1.0 59 7.9
(Fff723) (Note 3)
FHBREERT Return on average total assets 1.2 0.9 0.1 05 0.8
(P #£3) (Note 3)
ERHERILE Loan to deposit ratio
(BREEETH (including certificates
BFRE) of deposit issued) 66.8 70.0 7.7 63.2 72.1
PEE - Notes:
1. ZEERFEET hiZleﬁ$§T‘ [N 1. Basic earnings per share for 2006 to 2009 have been restated to take into
NERZE—ZTF+ZATKZERNZE T I account the effects of the rights issue of the Company completed in
E5 - December 2010.
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Basic earnings per share calculated on the basis of profit attributable to
shareholders excluding profit on disposal of interests in subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2006 is HK$4.83.

Profit attributable to shareholders excluding profit on disposal of interests
in subsidiaries is used for the calculation of return on average
shareholders’ funds and return on average total assets for the year ended
31 December 2006.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

KB 45 A R A A DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
EHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TP David Shou-Yeh Wong

E Chairman
FHBZR Akimitsu Ashida
FMITEF Non-executive Director
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E. Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
BIHTESE Independent non-executive Director
SERE Robert Tsai-To Sze
BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
HAf@BBS., JP. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
BIHNTEE Independent non-executive Director
#JK A Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith
BIHHTEE Independent non-executive Director
A RS Tatsuo Tanaka
FMITEF Non-executive Director
RIRET Hidemitsu Otsuka
FMITEF Non-executive Director
EEE John Wai-Wai Chow
FHITEF Non-executive Director
{h #EEA Yiu-Ming Ng
HHTEE Non-executive Director
xR Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

EFREERITHAAE
wiBt

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Roderick Stuart Anderson

HITEFE Executive Director
FiRZE Gary Pak-Ling Wang
HITEE Executive Director
R Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEE Executive Director
FEEE Shugo Aoto
FHEAZZETESE Alternate to Akimitsu Ashida
ARlE 2 Takashi Morisaka
AP ERBZETESE Alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka
RENGWEE & Nomination and Remuneration Committee
B Robert Tsai-To Sze
FE Chairman

Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.
& Af@B.B.S., J.P.

Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.

FrE David Shou-Yeh Wong
=% Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
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ERBELITE T\
AP L =+xiE

EiE 2507 8866

HH : 2598 5052

IRIKBI B - DSBAHKHH
#84k ¢ http://www.dahsing.com
&

581 B.A. (Hons), ACIS

1% B Fifi
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BEERREBELEELERAA
BEEERAER—N\Z5
ARMABELTEE17T12E1716F

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Chairman
Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith

REGISTERED OFFICE

36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre
108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.LLF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Web Site: http://www.dahsing.com
SECRETARY

Hoi-Lun Soo B.A. (Hons.), ACIS

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

Herbert Smith

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010 5
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE
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Peter Gibbs Birchst 4 c.B.E.
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Board of Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Aged 70. Appointed as the Chairman of the Company in 1987. Chairman
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Bank, Limited, MEVAS
Bank Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited,
Macau Life Insurance Company Limited, New Asian Shipping Company,
Limited and various other companies. Honorary President of Hong Kong
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and of Guangdong Chamber
of Foreign Investors. Over 45 years of experience in banking and
finance. Member of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and
Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Association of Banks, the Chinese
Banks Association Limited and the Hong Kong Shipowners Association.
Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Father of
Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, an executive Director of the Company’s key

operating banking and insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Akimitsu Ashida

Non-executive Director

Aged 67. Appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
June 2010. Currently the Chairman of the board of Mitsui O.S.K Lines,
Ltd., Director of JFE Holdings, Inc. 44 years of experience in ocean

shipping and global multimodal transport logistics.

Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch c.B.E.

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 73. Appointed as a Director of the Company in 1997 and served
the Board in an independent role since his retirement as the Chief
Executive of Abbey National plc. in 1998. Also an independent non-
executive director of Dah Sing Bank, Limited. Member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Chairman of Trigold Crystal plc. Advisor, Cambridge Place

Investment Management LLP.
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Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 70. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 1997. Also an Independent non-executive Director of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank, Limited, Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank Limited and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Currently the Chairman of the Audit
Committees, the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of both
the Company and DSBG, and a non-executive Director to a number of
Hong Kong listed companies®. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Also a former partner of an international

firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years.

Note(*): Apart from the Company and DSBG, Mr. Robert Sze also holds/held
directorships in other Hong Kong listed companies during the last three
years, namely, Asia Satellite Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited, Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Min Xin Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings
Limited, QPL International Holdings Limited, SW Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited and Television Broadcasts Limited (resigned in January
2008).

Dr. Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 60. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company in 2002. Currently Chairman of China-HongKong Photo
Products Holdings Limited and Fuji Photo Products Company Limited.
Vice Patron of the Community Chest, a founding member of the China
Charity Federation and Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong
Management Association. Independent non-executive Director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited. Awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star by the Government of Hong Kong SAR in 1999. Appointed as a
Justice of The Peace by the Government of Hong Kong SAR in 2002.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 7
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Mr. Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith

Independent non-executive Director

Aged 61. Appointed as an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company and its major operating banking entity Dah Sing Bank in 2009.
Also acted as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company.
Currently the Chairman and an Independent non-executive Director of
The Link Management Limited (which manages The Link Real Estate
Investment Trust), and an Independent non-executive Director of Wynn
Macau, Limited. Formerly a non-executive Director of Standard
Chartered Bank (HK) Limited, Regional Chief Executive (North East Asia)
of Standard Chartered PLC, and the Chief Executive of Hongkong Land
Holdings Limited and the Chairman of MCL Land Limited. Over 35 years
of experience in the finance and treasury field in the United Kingdom
and in Hong Kong, and extensive knowledge of the property industry

and financial services industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Non-executive Director

Aged 61. Appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
2006. Effective from April 2008, Deputy President, Chief Executive
Officer of Global Business Unit of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ,
Ltd. (“BTMU”) and the Managing Officer, Deputy Group Head of
Integrated Corporate Banking Business Group of Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group (“MUFG”). He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers during the last decade) in 1973.
Over 35 years’ experience at BTMU including Senior Vice President of
Bank of Tokyo Trust Company (currently Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Trust Company in New York), Chief Manager of Corporate Banking
Group No.2 in Tokyo, General Manager of Shimbashi Branch in Tokyo,
Regional Head for Hong Kong Branch and Managing Director, Chief
Executive Officer for China. Rich expertise in Corporate Banking in Asia

and Oceania as well as Japan and the U.S.
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Mr. Hidemitsu Otsuka

Non-executive Director

Aged 52. Appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
July 2010. Currently the Executive Officer, Regional Head for Hong Kong
and General Manager of The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (Hong
Kong Branch) (“BTMU”). He joined The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd (now
becomes BTMU after several mergers during last decade) in 1982,
appointed as the Chief Manager of Corporate Banking in 2001,
promoted as the General Manager of International Credit Division in
2007 and an Executive Officer in 2009. Also a non-executive director of
Chong Hing Bank Limited since 2010. Over 28 years of experience in

corporate banking and finance.

Mr. John Wai-Wai Chow

Non-executive Director

Aged 61. Appointed as a Director in 1994 and currently a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Managing Director of Winsor Industrial
Corporation Limited and Winsor Properties Holdings Limited, Executive
Director of Wing Tai Properties Limited and non-executive Director of
ARA Trust Management (Suntec) Limited (manager of the Singapore-
listed Suntec Real Estate Investment Trust). Over 20 years of experience

in textile, garment and property business.

Mr. Yiu-Ming Ng

Non-executive Director

Aged 74. Appointed as a Director in 1997 and currently a Non-executive
Director of the Company. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company’s Banking Group, in 1985 and
was promoted as a Director in 1991. Retired in 2002 but continued to
serve the Boards of the Company and Dah Sing Bank in a non-executive
role. Currently also an Independent non-executive Director of Raymond
Industrial Limited. Over 40 years of experience in hire purchase and

leasing finance.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

Managing Director and Chief Executive

Aged 58. Appointed as a Director in 1993 and promoted as the
Managing Director of the Company in January 2002. Joined Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company’s
Banking Group, in 1977 and has served and managed various
departments before appointed as a director of Dah Sing Bank in 1989
and was promoted as its Managing Director in 2000. Managing Director®
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Chairman of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the
Group. Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and the
non-executive Vice Chairman and Director of Bank of Chongqing in
which the Group has a 20% equity interest. Associate of The Institute
of Bankers (U.K.), Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Over

30 years of experience in banking.

Note(*): Promoted as the Vice Chairman of DSBG and DSB, and vacated from
the office as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSBG with
effect from 1 April 2011. Subject to the approval of the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority in respect of the application of his successor,
Mr. Derek Wong will retire from his current capacity as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of DSB on an exact date to be determined.

Mr. Roderick Stuart Anderson

Executive Director

Aged 63. Appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2000
and a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited
(“DSLA”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company, since 2004.
Joined DSLA in 1993 and had been its Chief Executive and Managing
Director for over 12 years. Also a director of Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited and Great Wall Life Insurance Company
Limited. Formerly, President of The Actuarial Society of Hong Kong,
Chairman of The Life Insurance Council, Chairman of the Governing
Committee of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and Chairman of
the Board of the Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau. Fellow of The
Institute of Actuaries with over 40 years of experience in financial

services and insurance in particular.
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Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang*

Executive Director

Aged 50. Appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 2001.
Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was promoted
as a Director of Dah Sing Bank in 1997. Currently Group Finance
Director responsible for the overall financial management and control,
operations and IT functions of the Group. Qualified accountant, Fellow
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 25

years of experience in financial management mainly related to banking.

Note(*): Subject to receiving approval of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
Mr. Gary Wang will be promoted as the Chief Executive of DSB,
succeeding Mr. Derek Wong.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew*

Executive Director

Aged 43. Joined the Company in 1998 and currently an Executive
Director of the Company, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, Dah Sing Bank and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Head of
Treasury and Corporate Finance of Dah Sing Bank responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. Over 20 years of experience

in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.

Note(*): Subject to receiving approval of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
Mr. Nicholas Mayhew will be promoted as the Deputy Chief Executive
of DSB.

Mr. Shugo Aoto
Alternate Director to Mr. Akimitsu Ashida

Aged 58. Appointed as an alternate Director to Mr. Akimitsu Ashida, a
Non-executive Director of the Company, in June 2010. Currently a
Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Ltd. He joined Mitsui
0.S.K. Lines in 1976, appointed as an Executive Officer in 2008. Over
35 years of experience in management, finance and logistics mainly

related to shipping industry.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Takashi Morisaki

Alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka

Aged 56. Appointed as an alternate Director to Mr. Tatsuo Tanaka, a
Non-executive Director of the Company, in July 2010. Currently the
Managing Executive Officer and Chief Executive Officer for Asia and
Oceania in The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. (“BTMU?”). He joined
The Mitsubishi Bank, Ltd. (now becomes BTMU after several mergers
during the last decade) in 1978, appointed as the Managing Executive
Officer (Deputy Head) of BTMU’s Corporate and Investment Banking
Trust Business in 2008. 33 years of experience in corporate and

investment banking, as well as treasury finance.

Senior Management

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited*

Aged 41. Joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited, a key operating subsidiary of
the Company, in 2000, appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and
as the Vice Chairman in March 2010. Currently also a Director* of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited,
MEVAS Bank, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Life
Assurance Company Limited. Qualified solicitor in England and Wales
and in Hong Kong. Son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman of
the Company and DSBG.

Note(*): Promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of DSBG
succeeding Mr. Derek Wong with effect from 1 April 2011.

Mr. Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu)

Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited

Aged 61. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 1986 and appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Bank and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 1995 and 2004
respectively. Currently the Chief Executive and Director of Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A. incorporated in Macau. Over 30 years of

experience in banking.
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Mr. John Cheung-Wah Lam
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank

Aged 56. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its Executive Director in 2005 and as the
Head of Retail Banking Division responsible for retail banking business.
Also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, MEVAS Bank and
Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Fellow of The Institute of
Canadian Bankers. Over 30 years of banking experience in Hong Kong

and North America.

Mr. Kwok-Leung Kwong (Thomas Kwong)

Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 62. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its Executive Director in 2007, and a
Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008. Currently Head of
Commercial Banking Division in Dah Sing Bank, responsible for
overseeing and supervising commercial banking business and asset
based and trade financing. Over 30 years of experience in banking and

finance.

Mr. Xiaojiang Yan

Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 56. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, in 2006. Appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Bank in 2007, and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited in 2008, responsible
for the banking development, and branch supervision and management
in the Mainland China. Over 20 years of banking experience in Hong

Kong and China.

Mr. Yau-Shing Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Executive Director of Dah Sing Bank

Aged 49. Joined Dah Sing Bank, a key operating subsidiary of the
Company, and appointed as its Executive Director in 2010. Currently
Head of Group Risk Management, responsible for strategic direction,
overall risk management framework and management oversight on the
Group Risk Division. Prior to joining Dah Sing Bank, he held a range of
senior audit and risk management positions with a number of financial
institutions in Hong Kong, including The Chase Manhattan Bank, Hang
Seng Bank and Bank of China (Hong Kong). Over 20 years of experience
in banking and accounting.

Note: Interests of Directors and Senior Management in shares and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations, if any, within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2010 are disclosed in the "Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive" of the Report of the Directors as included in this 2010 Annual
Report of the Company.
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2010 was a year of recovery from the aftermath of the global
financial crisis. With the benefit of robust economic growth in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, loan demand was strong whilst liquidity
in the market was ample and credit cost was benign. Against a
more favourable economic backdrop, our performance in 2010 was
much stronger than in 2009. Our businesses in Hong Kong and
Macau enjoyed steady growth during the year. The growth of our
business in China, both the banking business under our direct
control and the business of our associated company, Bank of
Chongging, was particularly
robust, thanks to the strong
economic performance of China
in 2010.

4 The Hang Seng Index closed
at above 23,000 points at
the 2010 year end, reflecting
improved market conditions and
performance during the year.
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We have devoted effort not only to grow our businesses, but also to
improve the quality of our services, design of our products and to
ensure compliance with the more stringent post-crisis regulatory
requirements during the year. | am glad that our efforts in 2010 were
rewarded, with profit attributable to shareholders increasing from
HK$626 million to HK$1,006 million, an increase of 61%.

To help fund our business growth and strengthen our shareholders’
equity, the Company and its listed subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”), both completed rights issues in December
2010, raising new capital of HK$1.2 billion and HK$1 billion
respectively. As DSFH followed the rights issue by DSBG and took
up its entitlement to DSBG rights shares in full, our shareholding
interest in DSBG after the rights issue was maintained at 74.13%.
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As the new equity raised by the DSBG rights issue had not yet been
injected by DSBG to its banking subsidiaries as additional regulatory
capital at the end of 2010, our Banking Group’s Core Tier 1 capital
adequacy and total capital adequacy ratios were 10.2% and 16.3%
respectively as at 31 December 2010, similar to the levels in 2009.

Banking Business

DSBG reported a very strong growth in profit attributable to
shareholders, up from HK$601 million in 2009 to HK$ 1,074 million
in the year, representing an increase in profit of 79%.

In 2010, loan growth in our banking businesses was rapid,
increasing by 27% relative to the loan balance at the end of 2009.
With strong loan growth, we also made efforts to increase our
deposit balances, and achieved growth of 12% in customer
deposits year on year.

Dah Sing Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary, Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB (China)”), now operates in four cities in China, with
a network comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in
Shanghai, Nanchang and Zhenjiang. We are expecting our
Guangzhou branch to open in the first half of 2011 whilst the
opening of other branches is under active consideration.
Notwithstanding its less substantial profit contribution to the group
at present, DSB (China)’s strong momentum of growth of both loan
volume and deposits in 2010 gives us confidence in its potential in
the future.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business reported a total net profit of HK$314 million
in 2010, up 30% from 2009. Total gross written premium increased
by 7.5%, benefiting from stronger performance of our non-life
businesses during the year. Investment income continued to
improve, with a diversified investment portfolio, which included
higher quality bonds to match our long-term liabilities, and for which
a higher actuarial reserve, in response to the lower valuation interest
rates, was required in the year.

The solvency position of our insurance businesses remained strong,
with net assets attributable to our insurance businesses growing
from HK$2.8 billion at the year end 2009 to HK$3.1 billion by the
end of 2010.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Board of Directors

On 30 June 2010, Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) resigned from
his position of Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
due to retirement. Mr. Kunio Suzuki, by virtue of his age and
retirement from his prime employment, also resigned from his
position of the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Akimitsu
Ashida, succeeding Mr. Suzuki, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

On 2 July 2010, Mr. Eiichi Yoshikawa resigned from his position of
Non-Executive Director due to his other business assignment within
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ (“BTMU”). Mr. Hidemitsu Otsuka,
the Executive Officer and Regional Head for Hong Kong and General
Manager of BTMU Hong Kong Branch, was appointed as his

Successor.

The Board of the Company expresses its appreciation to Mr. Yue,
Mr. Suzuki, and Mr. Yoshikawa for their invaluable contributions to
the Company during their tenure of service, and extends a warm
welcome to Mr. Ashida and Mr. Otsuka as new Board members.

Future Prospects

2010 was a year of global recovery from the unprecedented financial
tsunami that had threatened international financial stability.
Although Asia, particularly China, appeared resilient, there were still
many issues facing economies in other parts of the world around
the end of 2010. The post-crisis regulatory environment has become
much more stringent, with further regulatory changes expected in
the coming years. Although we do not see immediate major
problems ahead for the economy in the Greater China Region, there
are a number of challenges such as continuing market volatility,
rising inflation and the timing on the increases in interest rates,
which may result in moderating the growth of the global economy.

However, we see attractive prospects from the continuing economic
development of the Mainland, together with the closer interaction
and cooperation between Hong Kong, Macau and Guangdong
province. Hong Kong is already developing rapidly as an offshore
RMB centre, with increasing cross border trade flows denominated
in RMB, as well as increasing pools of RMB liquidity building up in
Hong Kong. We are optimistic that this economic development,
closer regional cooperation, and offshore RMB business will
continue to increase, and that this will bring opportunities to the
banking sector in Hong Kong.
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A wide-ranging agreement was signed between Hong Kong
government and Guangdong provincial government in April 2010
for the establishment of a new world-class economic zone. With
increasing economic development and cooperation of the greater
Guangdong-HongKong-Macau region, and support from the
Central Government on promoting further development in the key
service industries of Hong Kong and Macau, and particularly on
enhancing Hong Kong’s status as an international financial centre
as reaffirmed in the 12th 5-year development plan of China, we see
exciting future business opportunities in an increasingly powerful
economic zone with over 100 million people.

We are geographically and economically well situated, with business
and branch network coverage in Hong Kong, Macau and
Guangdong province. We shall continue to upgrade our services
and products to our customers in the region, enhance the quality
and skills of our staff, and further strengthen our information
technology and risk management capabilities, all of which are
crucial to creating value to our shareholders and customers, and
consistent with our strategy of “Growing with the Asian Region”.

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow directors for their valuable
contribution and extend on behalf of the Board, our appreciation to
all our colleagues for their hard work and dedication over the past
year, and also our appreciation of the support from our customers
and shareholders.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2011
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Financial Highlights

The highlights of the Group’s financial performance for the year are
summarised in the table below:

—E-ZF —ETNEF o
2010 2009 Variance
BEAET HK$ Million
B R EE B A Operating profit before
Z & impairment losses 1,338.6 854.9 56.6%
??xéf&l;{iéfgﬂﬂlf\?& Operating profit before gains or
kBB AT 2 & 8 T losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 1,240.8 421.6 194.3%
B A% At A Profit before income tax 1,499.1 885.5 69.3%
P& R 1 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,006.3 626.0 60.7%
BESG Total assets 142,742 122,576 16.5%
BfEAE Total liabilities 125,088 108,397 15.4%
BRES Shareholders’ funds 14,156 11,396 24.2%
FR B WA EIRA Net interest income/operating income 78.0% 86.1%
B AN $ U A L 3 Cost to income ratio 52.1% 68.6%
15 48 E B 5 Return on average total assets 0.8% 0.5%
FHRERE & B Return on average shareholders’ funds 7.9% 5.9%
$o 5 o] e Financial Review
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With an improved economy and the absence of exceptional
operating charges in the year, our Group was able to achieve much
stronger results in 2010 when compared with 2009. Profit
attributable to shareholders increased by 61% to reach HK$1,006
million, up from HK$626 million earned in 2009.

Net interest income reduced by 7% from HK$2,344 million to
HK$2,179 million, as a result of a narrowing in the net interest margin
from 1.95% in 2009 to 1.68% in 2010 more than offsetting the
favourable impact brought by the 27% growth in our loan portfolio
in the year, reflecting the keen loan and deposit pricing competition.
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

Net fee and commission income increased by 11% to HK$362
million in 2010, mainly driven by the higher volume of lending
business. Net trading income also improved substantially from a
net loss of HK$58 million to a profit of HK$462 million, principally
due to increases in the value of the investment assets held by our
Insurance Group.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions reduced
significantly from HK$433 million to HK$98 million, down by 77%.

Our insurance business reported a total net profit of HK$314 million
in 2010, up 30% from 2009. Total gross written premium increased
by 8%, benefiting from the stronger performance of our non-life
businesses during the year. Investment income continued to
improve, with a diversified investment portfolio, which included
higher quality bonds to match our long-term liabilities. However, a
drop in the medium to long term risk free rates and a corresponding
lowering of interest rates for valuation of our long-term life policy
liabilities led to an increase in policyholders’ reserves, and higher
insurance expenses relating to the life business. The lowering in
the long term valuation interest rates had a beneficial effect on the
embedded value of our in-force life policies. The solvency position
of our insurance businesses remained strong, with net assets
attributable to our insurance businesses growing from HK$2.8
billion at the 2009 year end to HK$3.1 billion by the end of 2010.

Total operating expenses were down by 22%, mainly due to the
absence of exceptional charges relating to the repurchases of
Lehman related retail investment products from our customers.

Operating profit before gains and losses on certain investments and

fixed assets increased by 194% to HK$1,241 million.

Total assets of the Group reached HK$142.7 billion, an increase of
16% over 2009.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AT KB Banking Business
—E-ZF —EBEENF o
2010 2009 Variance
FEE Net interest margin 1.68% 1.95%
BEATT HK$ Million
MBRREEEA Operating profit before
2 &8 i A impairment losses 1,147.3 609.9 88.1%
H:HQE&IEEFH&%\ Operating profit before gains or
NBEBR 2 & E R losses on certain investments
and fixed assets 1,049.5 182.3 475.7%
1% B P& A8 5 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,074.1 600.8 78.8%
EPEXR Advances to customers 72,749 57,165 27.3%
BEFH® Customers’ deposits 97,281 89,572 8.6%
BEITZ2IFRE Certificates of deposit issued 4,746 2,060 130.4%
FREET Total deposits 102,027 91,632 11.3%
BETZEBRES Issued debt securities 1,943 -
‘REEB Subordinated notes 4,684 4,602 1.8%
EREFHR (BIEFRE Loan to deposit (including
[z certificates of deposit) ratio 71.3% 62.4%
B A U A LY 2R Cost to income ratio 52.7% 73.9%
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Our Banking Group’s 2010 operating profit, both before and after
impairment losses, was also much higher than 2009, driven mainly
by the absence of exceptional provisions associated with the
Lehman related investment products, and lower loan impairment
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losses. These contributed to an increase in the net profit of our
Banking Group by 79% to HK$1,074 million.

Net interest income in the year was down by 8% as a result of a
narrowing in the net interest margin from 1.95% in 2009 to 1.68%
in 2010. The strong pace of loan growth in the year, with an increase
of 27%, has assisted to mitigate part of the adverse impact of the
margin contraction caused by the intense competitive pressure on
loan pricing, higher deposit costs in the second half of 2010 due to
the maintenance of relatively high levels of liquidity, and lower yields
for short-term liquid assets during the year.
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Banking Business (Continued)

Net fee and commission income increased by 11% to HK$387
million in 2010, mainly driven by the higher volume of lending
business. Net trading income also improved substantially from a
net loss of HK$175 million to a profit of HK$50 million.

Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions reduced
significantly from HK$428 million to HK$98 million, down by 77%.
Impairment costs were low in 2010 as a result of improvement in
the credit quality for both of our commercial and retail banking
businesses, and we also benefited from the write-back of individual
impairment charges in the year.

Total operating expenses were down by 26%, mainly due to the
absence of further provision charges relating to the repurchases of
Lehman related retail investment products from our customers, and
effective cost control during the year. Although the costs for
business development in China increased, we have improved our
operational efficiency since late 2008, which enabled us to keep a
tight control on our core operating costs.

Our associated company Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”) continued
to perform strongly in 2010 and therefore its contribution to our
profit increased substantially. The share of net profit from BOCQ
attributable to our 20% shareholding interest increased by 27%
from HK$196 million to HK$249 million.

As at 31 December 2010, the Banking Group’s total gross loans
and advances amounted to HK$72.7 billion, an increase of 27%
over 2009. A faster rate of expansion was achieved by our
commercial banking businesses, including trade finance, in both
Hong Kong and China, although our credit card and consumer
lending also recorded respectable growth.

Customers’ deposits plus certificates of deposit issued totalled
HK$102 billion, an increase of 11% over the previous year amidst a
more competitive market and increasing funding demands by banks
to support the rapid loan growth in the local market. The loan to
deposit ratio of the Group was 71.3% as at 31 December 2010,
compared with 62.4% at the end of 2009.
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Highlight of Business Performance
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business, serving the retail banking, VIP
banking and private banking market segments mainly in Hong Kong
and Macau, achieved much improved results in 2010, driven mainly
by lower operating expenses and a substantial reduction in loan
impairment losses. The absence of exceptional Lehman related cost
provisions in 2010, compared with the need to charge the costs
arising from the repurchases of Lehman related retail investment
products in 2009, was a significant factor in improving the operating
performance of our Personal Banking business in 2010. This was
further boosted by the continued improvement in asset quality in
the year, with loan impairment losses reducing by close to 57%.

Despite the higher loan balance, only a mild increase in net interest
income was achieved, due mainly to the tighter net interest margin.
With overall fee and commission income failing to post a growth
over 2009, operating income from our Personal Banking businesses
was flat compared to 2009.

Although we had achieved a mild increase in the residential
mortgage loans balance, a much higher proportion of the new
mortgage loans booked in the past two years was Hibor based
mortgages, which had led to a general tightening in the spread of
the whole mortgage portfolio. Coupled with the keen price
competition in the residential mortgage market, a lower average
margin on this business was recorded, despite the higher mortgage
loan balance.

We put in stronger effort in growing our unsecured lending in the
year, including credit cards and personal loans. We are pleased to
have achieved comparatively strong increases in these loans. We
were encouraged that our card development and promotion efforts
in the year were recognised by industry bodies, with several awards
received by Dah Sing Bank in 2010 including recognition by VISA
as “The Most New Visa-Exclusive Cobrand & Affinity Card
Programs”, and by MasterCard for “The Highest Growth Rate -
Number of Open Cards In Hong Kong”, and “The Best Strategic
Marketing Program Launch in HK — My Favorite Merchant Rewards
Program”. China UnionPay also awarded Dah Sing Bank as “The
Highest Growth Rate — Premium Product Cardholder Spending in
HK”.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

We were also pleased to see that Banco Comercial de Macau, our
wholly-owned subsidiary bank in Macau, was recognised in the year
by MasterCard as “The Highest Growth Rate in 2010 Cardholder
Spending in Macau” and “The Best Co-branded Card Program
Launched in 2010 in Macau” on one of its co-brand cards.

On unsecured personal loans, with the launch of the higher profile
advertising campaigns including TV advertising, we recorded
stronger increase in loan applications and personal loan balance in
the year.

As part of the business strategy of our Retail Banking business in
expanding our products and services, we have increased our retail
securities trading capabilities and customer acquisition. As of the
end of 2010, we have a total of 20 retail trading centers at our
branches to assist customers to trade in Hong Kong stocks.

With our continuous efforts in attracting high net worth customers,
the number of VIP customers recorded a satisfactory growth. The
expansion of investment funds and enhancement of our investment
services enabled our wealth management business to further
improve its services to customers and contribution to our fee
income.

With the strong loan demand coming from the customers of our
Commercial Banking business, an important contribution made by
our Retail Banking business was a notable increase in the number
and amount of customer deposits in the year, which was important
in increasing and broadening our deposit funding and customer
base.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Personal Banking (Continued)

We continue to upgrade and expand our branch network in Hong
Kong, with a number of branches renovated and refurnished, and
the addition of two new branches in 2010. As of the end of 2010,
our branch network includes 50 retail branches in Hong Kong
under the name of Dah Sing Bank and MEVAS Bank, and
15 branches in Macau under Banco Comercial de Macau, and one
subsidiary private bank
in Guernsey, Channel
Islands providing offshore
private banking services.

4 Grand opening of
Lok Fu Branch
in June 2010.
BEFTR=_Z—ZF

NAB&EME -

Commercial Banking

Commercial Banking, which includes trade finance, commercial
lending, syndicated lending, equipment finance and vehicle finance,
reported a significantly higher profit when compared to 2009, driven
mainly by a substantial improvement in asset quality.

Overall loan balance under Commercial Banking businesses,
including trade finance and commercial loans for use outside Hong
Kong, but excluding commercial banking loans booked by our
subsidiaries in Macau and China, was up 32% relative to 2009,
boosted mainly by property finance, vehicle finance and trade
finance, whilst lending to small and medium sized enterprises
recorded respectable growth. Our equipment finance lending to
manufacturing customers ended the year with a lower loan balance,
reflecting our more selective approach in booking new business
under more stringent credit underwriting criteria. In addition to
delivering a relatively high rate of loan increase, our Commercial
Banking division also achieved good growth in customer deposits.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Commercial Banking (Continued)

To support our business expansion and risk diversification, and to
meet the credit demands of our SME customers, we continued to
make use of the Government Special Loan Guarantee Scheme,
which expired at the end of 2010, and have agreed to participate in
the new SME Financing Guarantee Scheme launched by the Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation in early 2011. We also maintain a close
relationship with various industry and major trade associations, and,
in 2010, sponsored an important trade exhibition event in Hong
Kong organised by the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association, the
45th Hong Kong Brands & Products Expo.

Despite the increase in its loan book and an encouraging
improvement in fee income, the total operating income of our
Commercial Banking businesses in 2010 was lower than 2009,
caused mainly by lower net interest income, which was a result of
tighter loan margins, a general lowering in the loan yields, and higher
spread paid on deposits.

The continued improvement in the asset quality of our commercial
lending portfolio brought a net write-back in loan impairment
provision in 2010, which, when compared with the relatively
significant charges of loan impairment booked in 2009, was the
most important favourable factor contributing to the much higher
profitability recorded by our Commercial Banking businesses in the
year.

Treasury

The performance of our Treasury business in 2010 was not
satisfactory. Performance was adversely affected by the much lower
net interest income earned, as Dah Sing Bank had adopted a
generally de-risking strategy in managing its surplus funds and
investment in credit, with the result that a substantial potion of the
new surplus funds generated from its core businesses were placed
in liquid investments, which generated lower net interest income.
While this risk adverse approach in managing our surplus funds
was gradually relaxed during the last few months as we saw further
evidence of market stability and confidence in both the global and
local market, net interest income remained subdued, and the overall
level of the operating income of our Treasury business was down
significantly from 2009.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 25



\ /

#5 ol A
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

B 2 B BB ()
M EH ()

BEEER _ZT-—ZEFREZTR  BFK
éfZ%,\EﬂE&%Eéfﬂfé CH-RESKRE
tEHRERRE - 2@ RN EIE— PR - F
%ﬁﬁ&%ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁz—%“'%gﬁﬁﬁ

@&ﬁ%ﬁéﬁa Tﬁlfﬁ—;ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ‘kﬁiﬁ
TRERZINTZE  EHFARBERFE
1B

BN —_TENFBOLTEETZKARER
% ARBEBRE P EXHENFABDER
SIMETHBBRTTAFIRITET ZKAKRER
B YR —E-EFERREN\T=Z88ET

“EEAF  BRRE_REONTHEER

TT) c FAR—ZZEZENAF AR W RN P
ERWMOET  BUEBENMEEBKET
ERREEEEREMEXTREZFE
18-

BEERTER _ZT-ZFFEFEKE - A
REBRFTOMEBOaTRAEE - AEBELE
ATREERERREEEEKRERREREE
MEERNE  SHEXBEEEAZERRN
FEE-FTETT

WP ST ([P R SE8RAT )

BEERLFRYSESEEER )
TR -_E-ZFHEFREEN  T2THHNF
BETREBHFNEWARD - BHEEER
M E RS BRN W ERPIEERRITRER S
TEEEERME - M_T—FF - BFIBHE
RITRIER(CEERT Pjﬁﬁi& &R R IR B
MeABE 2 FaMHER-_ZTNF > TEHR
BEWREARERGERIENSHEAEFREL

BRI IR

RERNRERIE R \/ﬁﬁu&ﬁ Z L¢3
meORFIEEE —FTNFFTRRRER -
R-T-TFRERFRINER -

A TREBARAT]

—E-TFFR

Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Treasury (Continued)

The operating profit was further depressed by an impairment charge
on a bond investment made after considering market conditions,
credit assessment and review of the credit profile of the investment
as at the end of 2010. As part of our risk reduction and mitigation
measures, we had also taken the decision to dispose of certain
bond investments producing realized losses. These impairment and
disposal losses caused a material negative impact to our Treasury’s
2010 performance, and resulted in an overall net loss in the year.

Through our Treasury, and further to the US$70 million perpetual
subordinated debt repurchase action we conducted in 2009, we
repurchased in the year an additional US$75 million perpetual
subordinated debt issued by Dah Sing Bank, and recognised a gain
of HK$83 million in 2010 (2009: HK$244 million realized). The gain
booked in the year and in 2009, reflected under the corporate
segment and therefore not included under Treasury, helped to offset
the net loss recorded by our Treasury.

Despite the continued volatility in the global market and new
emerging geopolitical uncertainties around the end of 2010, we note
that the global credit market, as reflected in different credit indices
and credit spread levels, had generally improved, leading to a further
recovery in the revaluation of our Treasury’s credit portfolio at the
end of the year.

Banco Comercial de Macau (“BCM”)

Despite achieving notable growth in loans and deposits, BCM
recorded a lower level of profit in 2010, caused mainly by lower net
interest margin and therefore lower net interest income, bond
disposal losses and write-off of certain intangible assets recognised
by the Group at the initial acquisition of BCM. On a normalized
basis and excluding the non-recurring exceptional items, BCM’s
net profit in 2010 was slightly lower than 2009, due mainly to the
narrower interest margin and higher collective loan impairment
provided by the higher loan balance.

Macau continued to register very strong economic growth in 2010,
following a rapid rebound since mid 2009, driven by tourism growth,
increased consumption and gaming revenues.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Dah Sing Bank (China)

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Dah Sing Bank locally incorporated in China in 2008,
achieved much improved results in 2010. Due to the relatively low
base of loan and deposit balances, a substantial expansion was
recorded in the year, with loan balance reaching HK$3.8 billion by
the end of 2010. Notwithstanding its relatively small profit
contribution to the Group at present, DSB China’s growth
momentum, both of loan volumes and deposits in 2010, gives us
confidence in its potential in the future.

DSB China now operates in four cities in China, with a network
comprising the Shenzhen headquarters, and branches in Shanghai,
Nanchang and Zhenjiang, offering both commercial banking and
retail Renminbi banking businesses to customers in China. We are
expecting our new Guangzhou branch to open in the first half of
2011, whilst the opening of other branches is under active
consideration.

MEVAS Bank

As a result of the implementation of the decision to reorganise
MEVAS Bank (“MEVAS”), most of its businesses, branches and
customers were migrated to Dah Sing Bank in 2010. We believe the
changes will provide better services to our customers. As at the
end of 2010, MEVAS only offered limited commercial banking and
deposit taking services in Hong Kong.

Bank of Chongging

Bank of Chongqging (“BOCQ?”) is the leading city commercial bank
in Chongging. Chongging is the largest city in Western China and
one of the 4 leading cities in China reporting directly to Beijing.
BOCAQ operates a branch network of around 80 branches, including
a branch in Chengdu, the capital city of Sichuan province.

With the continued strong pace of growth and development in
China, and particularly in the greater Chongqing region, coupled
with strong growth in loans and deposits, and with benign asset
quality, BOCQ achieved another year of impressive growth and
strong results in 2010.

BOCQ’s total assets, as of 31 December 2010, driven mainly by
loan and treasury asset increases, reached RMB108.2 billion, up
34% relative to 2009. Net profit for the year ended 31 December
2010 was RMB1.08 billion, up 24% on 2009.
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Bank of Chongging (Continued)

Our interest in BOCQ remained at 20%, and our share of BOCQ net
profit is incorporated in the Group’s profit on equity accounting
basis, which was increased from HK$196 million in 2009 to HK$249
million in 2010, an increase of 27% including the effect of foreign
exchange gain adjustment.

Insurance Business

Our insurance business, consolidating the results of the life and
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau, achieved
an overall higher level of profit when compared with 2009, driven
largely by stronger investment performance and gains on the
securities investment portfolio.

The following provides a summary of the profit and loss of our
insurance group in 2010 and 2009:

—E-BE _—TTNF
LE&B TSR HKS$ million 2010 2009
FIRE R A YA Net insurance premium and
(BERSE RE®WA) other income including fee and
commission income 1,645 1,461
REERE R FE Net insurance claims and expenses (1,921) (1,407)
& RAABERA Investment and related income
FLEWA Interest income 221 172
FEBEWRA Net trading income 412 114
WEWMEZ AT ERFARF RS Net gain on fair value adjustment
on investment properties 84 69
HEAHEERES Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
2% Was (E18) available-for-sale securities 21 (35)
Hfh @A Other operating income 18 27
NEE Sub total 756 347
EESH REMAAR Operating expenses and other costs (150) (147)
RR B Al 0% F Profit before income tax 330 254
BiE Income tax (16) (13)
Fa Al Net profit 314 241
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Highlight of Business Performance (Continued)
Insurance Business (Continued)

Our insurance business reported a total net profit of HK$314 million
in 2010, up 30% from 2009. Total net premium increase was
modest. The main contributions to the higher profitability in 2010
were the much higher investment and related income generated
from a diversified investment portfolio, and the increase in
embedded value of our in-force life policies having benefited from
lower medium to long term interest rates, with the gains more than
offsetting the increases in policyholders’ reserves to cover the
higher long-term life policy liabilities caused mainly by the lower
valuation interest rates (in line with the drop in the medium to long
term risk free rates), and the higher insurance expenses relating to
the life business.

As at 31 December 2010, the total value of our Hong Kong and
Macau in-force life assurance businesses as calculated in
conjunction with the independent actuary was HK$1,318 million
(relative to HK$1,226 million at the end of 2009). With profit retention
and increase in the investment revaluation reserve of our insurance
subsidiaries’ available-for-sale investments, the shareholders’ funds
employed in our life and non-life insurance businesses increased,
giving an overall value for the insurance business in the accounts
of the Group of HK$3,062 million, up 9% over 2009. The increase in
the capital held by our insurance subsidiaries further bolstered the
strong solvency position of our insurance businesses.

Risk Management and Compliance

In our effort to further strengthen our risk management effectiveness,
we conducted a project to review the risk management and control
framework and processes of our Banking Group in 2010. Some
areas for improvement and recommendations, mainly on risk
management structure and processes, were raised. Management
believed the exercise helped in assisting us to further upgrade our
risk management system and process, and enabled us to become
more effective in expanding our businesses with sound risk control,
including an improved focus on balancing risks and returns.

During the year, we further upgraded our compliance function in
terms of resourcing and quality, and increased the involvement of
our compliance division in different business and operational
projects. More compliance training and guidance, including a Group
wide compliance conference, were organized and provided to the
staff in the Group to promote compliance awareness and stronger
compliance discipline.
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RITEE Banking Group 2010 2009
MEBIRTT & O E ANEE Combined capital base of

(LAE 8B banking subsidiaries (HK$ million)

-R+=ZA=+—8 - at 31 December
— OB R - Core capital 8,481 7,708
— Mt pn&E AR - Supplementary capital 5,138 4,963
R 2 B RERE BERe Total capital base after deductions* 13,619 12,671
BARTE B L& Capital adequacy ratio
— &L - Core 10.2% 10.2%
— B - Overall 16.3% 16.8%
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The total combined capital base shown above reflects the sum of the
consolidated capital base of Dah Sing Bank calculated on a regulatory
consolidation basis specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?”), Mevas Bank and D.A.H Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)
computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Group’s banking business maintained a relatively strong capital
position in 2010, following capital actions concluded in 2009, and
capital generation via profit retention. To help fund our business
growth and strengthen our shareholders’ equity, the Company and
its listed subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
both completed rights issues in December 2010, raising new capital
of HK$1.2 billion and HK$1 billion respectively. As the Company
followed the rights issue by DSBG and took up its entitlement to
DSBG rights shares in full, our shareholding interest in DSBG after
the DSBG rights issue was maintained at 74.13%.

The combined core Tier 1 capital adequacy and total capital
adequacy ratios of DSBG’s banking business stood at levels largely
similar to those at the end of 2009, as the new equity raised by the
DSBG rights issue had not yet been injected by DSBG to its banking
subsidiaries as additional regulatory capital at the end of 2010. Our
Banking Group’s combined core Tier 1 capital adequacy and total
capital adequacy ratios were 10.2% and 16.3% respectively as at
31 December 2010, not including the proceeds of the DSBG rights
issue, which will be injected into Dah Sing Bank during 2011.
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Capital and Liquidity (Continued)

For prudent capital management, Dah Sing Bank issued US$225
million Lower Tier 2 10-year subordinated bond in the first quarter
of 2010, and called the entire previously issued US$150 million
Lower Tier 2 subordinated debt, which was callable in May 2010.

Our Banking Group continued to maintain throughout the year a
very high liquidity ratio backed by a strong pool of liquid assets
including cash and placements with banks, and diversified
marketable securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

DSB’s long-term credit ratings, at “A3” and “A-” assigned by
Moody’s and Fitch respectively, were affirmed in 2010.

Human Resources

To comply with the regulatory guideline on sound remuneration
system issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) in
March 2010, the Group had conducted a review of its remuneration
system and made relevant upgrades to achieve consistency with
the new requirements set out in the new HKMA guideline. The Group
will continue to work to ensure that its remuneration system and
practices, including its risk management framework, supports the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
remains competitive in the market, and complies with the regulatory
requirements.

We continued our work to improve the service excellence,
teamwork, caring and trust culture throughout the organization. In
addition, a group-wide compliance conference was held in the year
to promote communication and sharing of our Group’s commitment
to compliance. Personal support and counselling services as well
as crisis management training were provided to staff-in-need
through our employee assistance program. Our staff social club
continued to promote staff and family well-being, and organized
different social and sports activities to help promote wellness,
affinity, friendship, health and community services. We are also
among the very first group of companies that participated in the
Caring Company Campaign initiated by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Services and have been awarded as a “Caring Company”
for nine consecutive years since the recognition was launched.

The Group’s headcount increased in 2010 as a result of our business
growth and increasing demand for human resources to strengthen
our capabilities in both business units and support functions. The
total number of employees of our Group, including our staff in
Macau and China, increased from 1,939 at the end of 2009 to 2,196
at the end of 2010.
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Corporate governance practices

The Group is committed to high standards of corporate governance,
and follows all of the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”).

This report is issued in accordance with Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules, and explains how the Company applies the provisions set out in
the Code.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted its code for directors’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the prevailing required standard set in
the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry, the Directors of the Company confirmed that they have

complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
so as to promote its success and continued growth. The Board is also
responsible for ensuring that the Company has sound systems of risk
management, internal control and regulatory compliance. The Directors,
collectively and individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board sets
the business objectives for the Company, and monitors the execution

of those objectives by the management of the Company.

(2) Board composition and meetings

At 31 December 2010, the Board is made up of the Chairman, Mr. David
Shou-Yeh Wong, four executive directors including the Chief Executive,
five non-executive directors, and four independent non-executive
directors. Brief biographical details of the directors are set out on pages
6to 13.

Board meetings are held at least four times each year at approximately

quarterly intervals, and additional board meetings are held as necessary.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2) Board composition and meetings (Continued)

The following table sets out the attendance record of each director at
the board meetings held in 2010:

Number of Board meetings in 2010 7

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Peter Gibbs Birch 5/7 71%
Robert Tsai-To Sze 7/7 100%
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 5/7 71%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

(retired with effect from 30 June 2010) 3/4 75%
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 5/7 71%

Non-Executive Directors

Kunio Suzuki

(retired with effect from 30 June 2010) 1/4 25%
Akimitsu Ashida

(appointed with effect from 30 June 2010) 0/3 0%
Tatsuo Tanaka o/7 0%
Eiichi Yoshikawa

(resigned with effect from 2 July 2010) 3/4 75%
Hidemitsu Otsuka

(appointed with effect from 2 July 2010) 2/3 67%
John Wai-Wai Chow 5/7 71%
Yiu-Ming Ng 7/7 100%

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 7/7 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 7/7 100%
Roderick Stuart Anderson 6/7 86%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 777 100%
Nicholas John Mayhew 7/7 100%
Average attendance rate 71%

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is given in advance. Directors may submit to the
Company Secretary, in writing, and at least seven days in advance,
matters that they would like to include in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant committee,
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice

by any director.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)
(2) Board composition and meetings (Continued)

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. In
circumstances where directors believe that independent advice is
needed, they should approach the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive in the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or the Chief
Executive will endeavour to identify and engage an appropriate

professional adviser at the expense of the Company.

All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every

three years.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of running the
Group to the executive management, and has delegated responsibility
for certain matters to a number of committees, which are described
more fully in the following sections. There are a number of matters which
require the deliberation of the full Board, and may not be delegated to
the committees of the Board or the executive management. These

reserved matters include:

° Transactions that a substantial shareholder or a director has a

conflict of interest;

° Material acquisitions or disposals (i.e. an amount that exceeds
10% of the lower of the Company’s net asset value or market

capitalisation at the relevant time);

° Material investments or disposal of investments (except for
normal investment or dealing in securities in the ordinary course

of deploying the surplus funds of the Group);
° Any material change in the nature of the Group’s business;
° Appointment of new directors;
° Approval of relevant policies; and
° Approval of annual budget.

The Company maintains appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal

action against its directors.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects of its
management — the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of its business, and that there should be a clear division
of these responsibilities at the Board level to ensure a balance of power
and authority, so that no one individual should have unfettered powers
of decision. The roles and objectives of the Chairman, Mr. David
Shou-Yeh Wong, and the Chief Executive, Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek
Wong), are therefore separated and have been approved by the Board.
The Chairman mainly provides leadership for the Board to ensure that
the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner. The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company to provide business direction and
operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s businesses,

enhance shareholder value and ensure sound internal control.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has five non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors. Each of the independent non-executive
directors has provided to the Company confirmation of independence

as required by Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The term of appointment of non-executive directors is
normally for a term which coincides with their expected dates of

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Non-executive directors, as equal Board members, give the Board and
any committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise
and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance
and active participation. They attend regular and special Board
meetings, and are encouraged to attend the general or special meeting
of the shareholders of the Company. The non-executive directors make
a positive contribution to the development of the Company’s strategy
and policies through independent, constructive and informed

comments.
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors
Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board sets out the requirement for a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors to the Board. The terms of reference also explicitly
prohibit the delegation of decisions regarding the appointment of new
directors to sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made after

deliberation by the full Board.

Remuneration of Directors

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Company in
August 2005 with specific written terms of reference setting out its role
and responsibilities. The Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in August
2006 with a set of updated terms of reference. It is responsible, among
other things, for the review of the nomination of new directors, approval
of the remuneration of directors and senior management. In December
2010, the Committee’s terms of reference were further updated to cover

the following additional roles and responsibilities:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design

and operation of the Company’s remuneration system;

- To review and make recommendation in respect of the Company’s

remuneration policy and practices to the Board;

- To be delegated with the responsibility of the Board to determine
the specific remuneration packages of Senior Management as

defined in the Group Remuneration Policy; and

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s remuneration

system and its operation is conducted.

The majority of the members are independent non-executive directors.
The terms of reference for the Committee are available for inspection at

the Company’s registered office.
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Nomination and Remuneration of Directors (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors (Continued)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held three meetings in
2010. The current members of the Committee and their attendance

records in 2010 are set out below:

Number of meetings held in 2010 3

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 2/3 67%
Peter Gibbs Birch 3/3 100%
Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 3/3 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

(retired with effect from 30 June 2010) 1/2 50%
David Shou-Yeh Wong 3/3 100%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 3/3 100%
Average attendance rate 88%

The work of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2010

included:

- Determining and approving the remuneration levels for executive

directors and senior management

- Reviewing the nomination of directors to the Board and senior

management of the Company and of the Group

- Reviewing the terms of reference of the Committee

- Reviewing the Group’s remuneration policy and related systems

and practices
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The Group Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair and competitive
packages for its employees, which are commensurate with market
terms, and are based on business needs, expertise and quality of the
individuals, and with proper reference to industry practice and

regulatory guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the Board of
Directors, market rates and factors such as each director’s workload
and required commitment will be taken into account. The following
factors are considered when determining the remuneration packages
of executive directors:

- Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

Reference to market pay level commensurate with the individual’s

responsibility
- Consideration of regulatory guidelines
- Retention considerations and each individual’s potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration and the Chief
Executive will not be involved in the decision making for the

remuneration packages of other executive directors.

Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the independence of
the Company’s external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for

performing the audit of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only when the
Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner and the independence
and objectivity of PwC as the Company’s external auditors can be

maintained. Otherwise, professional services from other firms are used.
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Auditors’ Independence and Remuneration (Continued)

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on agreed-upon
procedures, provided the Group non-audit services by rendering
regulatory compliance review services, review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s interim
financial disclosure, review of the update on the offering circular of Dah
Sing Bank, Limited’s US$2 Billion Euro Medium Term Note Programme,
and a review on the offering circular in relation to the Company’s rights

issue during the year.

Details of the fees payable to PwC for the year for audit and audit-

related services are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established by the Board of the Company, is
responsible for ensuring the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, reviewing the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors, and that in
presenting results to the shareholders, the directors have exercised the
care, diligence and skills prescribed by laws, and that appropriate

accounting and financial reporting standards are followed.

The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on the selection,
oversight and remuneration of external auditors. The Committee
reviews and monitors the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards.

The Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including significant financial

reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements.

The Committee reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports its
finding and comments to the Board. Descriptions of the Company’s
internal control system are set out below, whilst for risk management,
these are shown in the Supplementary Financial Information under Risk
Management and described with appropriate financial quantification in
the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the annual financial

statements.

The terms of reference for the Audit Committee are available for

inspection at the Company’s registered office.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The members of the Committee are Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Mr. Peter Gibbs Birch, Mr. Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) (retired with
effect from 30 June 2010) and Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith. All the
members of the Committee are independent non-executive directors
with extensive experience in banking, finance and business
management. The Committee’s chairman, Mr. Sze, is a qualified
accountant and was a partner of a predecessor firm of
PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June 1996. None of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the former or

existing external auditors of the Company.
The Committee members meet at least three times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit and the

external auditors. In 2010, a total of three meetings were convened.

The attendance record of individual directors at the Audit Committee

meetings in 2010 is set out below:

Number of Audit Committee meetings in 2010 3

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze (as the Chairman) 3/3 100%
Peter Gibbs Birch 3/3 100%
Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)

(retired with effect from 30 June 2010) 11 100%
Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 2/2 100%

Average attendance rate 100%

To enable directors to be informed of the discussions and decisions of
the Audit Committee, the minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are
included in the board papers of regular board meetings sent to

directors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The following is a summary of the work of the Audit Committee during

2010 in discharging its responsibilities:

(a)

Review of, and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board for the approval of the 2009 results announcements and
audited financial statements of the Group, and the 2010 Interim

Report;

Review of external auditors’ findings and comments, and
management’s reports on major accounting and financial
disclosure matters in respect of 2009 audit and financial

statements;

Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2009 for inclusion

in the Company’s 2009 annual report;

Review of a summary of major issues to be reviewed and
discussed at the Board level, which are of significant accounting
and disclosure relevance;

Approval of the reports to the Board providing a summary of the
issues, focuses and discussion reviewed and dealt with by the
Audit Committee in the second half of 2009 and the first half of
2010;

Review of connected party transactions and disclosure;

Review and approval of the appointment and remuneration of

external auditors;

Review of the findings and recommendations of the external

auditors;

Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit plan;

Review and approval of internal audit plan;

Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and recommendations;
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Audit Committee (Continued)

()] Review of reports on applicable compliance and regulatory
matters and adoption of the minutes of the meetings of the

Compliance Committee;

(m) Review of update from Group Risk on the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority(“HKMA”)’s examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations; and

(n)  Review of the development plan of financial control function.

Accountability and Audit of Financial Statements

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position and

prospects.

Management is responsible for providing such explanation and
information to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the Group's financial positions and operating

performance.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory and
regulatory requirements, and applicable accounting standards. In
preparing and approving the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The Directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Group on a going-concern basis. The responsibility of the Group's
external auditor on the financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report attached to the Group's financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required under

the Listing Rules, applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.
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Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility to develop
and maintain a sound internal control system. The internal control
system, operating through a framework of management and operational
controls, and risk management systems, is intended to allow the Board
to monitor the Group’s business performance and financial positions,
to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt sound business practices,
to obtain reasonable assurance on controls against fraud and errors, to
ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to provide
oversight and guidance to management in achieving the Company’s
objectives. However, it should be recognized that the Group’s internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable, not absolute,

assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to maintain an

effective internal control system are as follows:

° A clear management organizational structure is set up with well-

defined lines of authority, accountability and responsibilities.

° Specialized committees are formed to oversee and control
significant risk factors, such as credit risk, liquidity and interest

rate risks, operational risk and compliance risks.

° Regular reporting of the performance of the Company’s
businesses to senior management and management committees
including the Executive Committee. Actual performance results
against budgets are closely monitored. The Board reviews the

Group’s business and financial performance on a quarterly basis.

° Written policies and procedures are established to facilitate
proper assessment of customers, services to customers,
segregation of duties, accuracy and completeness of transaction
processing, safeguarding of assets, credit control and risk
monitoring, control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering), staff training,
IT development, IT governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including accounting,
regulatory reporting, financial reporting to comply with regulatory
and financial reporting standards, management accounting and
budget control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of various

functional committees.
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Internal Controls (Continued)

The independent internal audit function monitors compliance with
management policies and procedures, and regulatory
requirements; and will conduct a wide variety of internal control
reviews and audit activities such as compliance audits and
operations and systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency
and effectiveness of the systems of control. The Head of Internal
Audit reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively to the Chief Executive with direct access to the

Executive Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors and reports the
Group’s risk positions and analysis to the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee, Executive Committee and the Board,
and operates to sustain a sound asset quality in the portfolio of
the Group’s businesses with due consideration of a proper risk

and return balance.

The Group’s banking business continues its ongoing upgrade of
risk management framework and capabilities to strengthen its
risk control and effectiveness, which are key to the maintenance

of sound internal control process of the Group.

The Group Compliance Committee at the management level
serves to uphold a high level of awareness and accountability of
compliance requirements and is responsible for overseeing and
guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure compliance
with all statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines. The
Legal and Compliance Division of the Group performs an
independent on-going monitoring role on the Group’s compliance

with relevant rules and regulations.

Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Board

has considered reviews performed by the Audit Committee and

executive management, and the findings of both internal and external

auditors.

The 2010 reviews included an annual assessment of internal control

system with reference to the provisions of the Code regarding internal

controls. Under the direction of the Audit Committee, the Group’s

Internal Audit in the year conducted an assessment covering all material

controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and

risk management practices. The Group will continue to work to enhance

its internal control system and processes.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.
Principal Activities and Segment Analysis of Operations

The principal activity of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements. An
analysis of the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 63.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share and a
total of HK$52,054,131 in cash was paid on 24 September 2010.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.86
per share, totalling HK$251,812,000.

Share Capital

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
shown in Note 49 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 50 to the financial statements.
Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$3,336,000.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in

Note 35 to the financial statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Akimitsu Ashida
(appointed with effect from 30 June 2010)

*Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E.

*Robert Tsai-To Sze

*Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) B.B.S., J.P.
*Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith
Tatsuo Tanaka

Hidemitsu Otsuka
(appointed with effect from 2 July 2010)

John Wai-Wai Chow
Yiu-Ming Ng

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Roderick Stuart Anderson
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew

Shugo Aoto
(appointed as alternate to Akimitsu Ashida with effect from
30 June 2010)

Takashi Morisaki

(appointed as alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka with effect from 2 July 2010)

Kunio Suzuki
(resigned with effect from 30 June 2010)

*Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue)
(retired with effect from 30 June 2010)

Eiichi Yoshikawa
(resigned with effect from 2 July 2010)

Tetsuya Wada
(ceased to act as alternate to Tatsuo Tanaka with effect from
15 June 2010)

Kenichi Yonetani

(ceased to act as alternate to Kunio Suzuki with effect from
30 June 2010)

* Independent non-executive Directors
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Nicholas John Mayhew, Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) and Gary Pak-Ling
Wang retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 114 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Akimitsu Ashida and Hidemitsu Otsuka who have been appointed as
additional Directors during the year shall retire at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their continued
independence while serving as members of the Board of Directors
during the year, and the Company still considers all the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

Pursuant to the recommended best practice no. A.4.3 under the Code
on Corporate Governance Practice (Appendix 14 of The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)), independent non-executive
directors serving more than nine years shall be subject to a separate
resolution of shareholders for re-election. The Company is aware that
Peter Gibbs Birch and Robert Tsai-To Sze, in their capacity each as an
independent non-executive director, have served the Board for a period
of more than nine years. Nevertheless, the Board is of the view that
they are able to provide valuable independent advice and roles to the

Board in its deliberations and decision-making process.

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive

At 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have
acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required
pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers and the code of conduct regarding directors’

securities transactions adopted by the Company were as follows:
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R RATBERRER () Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)
B ARAR A W) SR B A T B Z B4 HE 2 a) Interests in shares of the Company and associated
corporation
i
HEBD T
RAEFD L
Percentage
of share
ROEE interest
Number of shares in the
A %R EEER Hrwgs BitER relevant
Personal Corporate Other Total  share capital
= Directors Interests Interests™ Interests Interests in issue
BEAAAERER Number of ordinary shares of
2BHEBR KRB HK$2 each in the Company

B David Shou-Yeh Wong - 8,243,714 109,742,185 117,985,899 40.30

AERE John Wai-Wai Chow 1,046,834 - - 1,046,834 0.36

Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E. Peter G. Birch CBLE. 56,253 - - 56,253 0.02

ZEE Roderick Stuart Anderson 68,401 - - 68,401 0.02

BEAFNBRTEEERAR Number of ordinary shares of

SREA1IETH HK$1 each in Dah Sing
EERR G Banking Group Limited

TFE David Shou-Yeh Wong - 906,586,087¢ - 906,586,087 7413

Peter Gibbs Birch C.B.E. Peter G. Birch C.B.E. 55,001 - - 55,001 0.00

BEE John Wai-Wai Chow 181,013 - - 181,013 0.01

BEEY Nicholas John Mayhew® 22,000 - - 22,000 0.00

A Notes:

(1) EBEBZEEESDEHERE=-S2Z AL (1)  The corporate interest is in respect of shares held by a company in which

mARFFEE 2’ - the director has an interest of one third or more.

2 WMWEBRGTTHATTERERBRKEFZMAT (2)  Such shares are indirectly held by HSBC International Trustee Limited,
ZEREAZTAELERETEERAMER a trustee of a discretionary trust established for the benefit of David
Ao Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members.

(3) R-E—ZEF+_A=+—H2Z28B BT (3) Such shares in DSBG represent the corporate interest of David Shou-Yeh
ELAEBEAART17,985,800% BN EE Wong under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his beneficial interest in
e EAEE R EITIRA40.30% + AiMikES 117,985,899 ordinary shares of the Company, representing 40.30% of its
KEREIRBIEXVERH E BBARIER B 25 RHIR entire share capital currently in issue as at 31 December 2010 being the
TEERMD 2 EEESR - record date.

4 BREAoFIFEE KFBTERERSIN  BEEE (4)  In addition to his interest in DSBG, Nicholas John Mayhew is also
DSE Investment Services Limited ([DSE]) Ji beneficially interested in all of DSE Investment Services Limited’s (“DSE”)
BHEE7008 T 2B 5N - DSETIARRA A preference shares in issue totalling HK$700. DSE, a wholly owned
Z2EMBAT BT EEE - subsidiary of the Company, is currently dormant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation
i) Share option scheme of the Company

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the
new Share Option Scheme (“DSFH Option Scheme”) on 28 April
2005.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSFH Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:
(1)  Purpose of DSFH Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSFH Option Scheme is to provide an
incentive and/or reward to grantees for their contribution
to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, the

Group.
(2) Participants of DSFH Option Scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial or supervisory position in the Group
as the Board may in its sole discretion determine to be

eligible to participate in DSFH Option Scheme.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2010:

The number of shares available for issue under DSFH
Option Scheme is 9,975,267 shares, representing 3.41%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2010.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSFH

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSFH Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related options are
granted. Shares under the options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the existing share
options under the DSFH Option Scheme shall be
exercisable upon vesting in varying amounts between the

first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company, and is specified when related
options are granted. None of the existing share options
under DSFH Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one

year from the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)
@)

Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid;

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of the Company in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of
the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“SEHK”) and is calculated as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of HK$2 each

in the capital of the Company.
Remaining life of DSFH Option Scheme:
DSFH Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 28 April 2005 and
expiring at the close of 27 April 2015.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

A AR ) B A B A ) B e i IR R 2 b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
() Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i) RREZBIREE (&) i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)
RIBEBRFEBRRERTS - AAdREE Pursuant to DSFH Option Scheme, certain Directors of the
ZEBNBRARAMNE TEFTERTRK Company and its major operating subsidiaries were granted
Bo-RZZE—ZTFF+-_A=+—H &KX options under DSFH Option Scheme. Details of the share options
FemRAREFEITERARTFATK outstanding as at 31 December 2010, which have been granted
R (TR ) BB ARITE 2 Al REE AR under the DSFH Option Scheme and adjusted for the rights issue
NARIRMDEFEERTFBEOT - of the Company (the “Rights Issue”) completed during the year,
are as follows:
BREAEZADNARAEE
Number of the Company’s shares in the options
RZ5-3% RHKREE R-%-%%
-fA-H Z#E ZF-BER tZA=t-H gl
#&  Adjustment 3 ] TR Exercise period
Heldat  for Rights Lapsed Heldat  Exercise RTAH # S
ARA Grantee 1172010 Issue during 2010 31/12/2010 Price  Grant date From To
Er o (B/AE) (RIAE) (RIRE)
MG gmy) @mh) (dmy)
£z Directors
HEE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 1,000,000 44,770 - 1,044,770 49.490  25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
TEE Roderick Stuart Anderson 250,000 11,190 - 261,190 49.490  25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
IRz Gary Pak-Ling Wang 400,000 17,905 - 417,905 49.49%  25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
R Nicholas John Mayhew 250,000 11,190 - 261,190 49.490 25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
100,000 4475 - 104,475 50.28"  28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
Easge Aggregate of employees® 250,000 11,190 - 261,190 49.490  25/8/2005  25/8/2006  25/8/2011
500,000 - 500,000 - 67.80 7/9/2006 7/9/2007 7/9/2012
100,000 4475 - 104,475 50.28"  28/9/2007 28/9/2008 28/9/2013
TREE R A Al
—EFFR
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1) As a result of the Rights Issue completed in December 2010,
adjustments in the share option exercise price and the number of
shares in the options outstanding are required to be made under
the terms of DSFH Option Scheme in accordance with Rule
17.03(13) of the Listing Rules and a supplementary guidance issued
by the SEHK on 5 September 2005. The calculation of the
adjustments in respect of all the existing share options granted by
the Company had been performed in accordance with the
regulatory rule and guidance, and reviewed and confirmed by
external professional persons pursuant to Rule 17.03(13) of the
Listing Rules. The key summary of related adjustments had been
announced by the Company on 16 December 2010.

2) Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
during the year ended 31 December 2010 of the Company’s
outstanding share options which were granted to two employees
who are directors of the Company’s major operating subsidiaries
and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as
“continuous contracts” for the purpose of the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Options for subscription of 500,000
DSFH shares under this sub-paragraph were lapsed automatically
due to the retirement of a grantee during the year.

3) None of the grantees under DSFH Option Scheme were granted
share options exceeding respective individual limits.

4) No share options under DSFH option scheme were granted to the

Company’s or the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

(5) No share options under DSFH Option Scheme were granted,
exercised or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2010.

6) Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2010:

Details of the computation of the value of options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2010 are shown in Note 54 to the

financial statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company

The Share Option Scheme (“DSBG Option Scheme”) of Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) was initially approved by the
Company, as the sole shareholder of DSBG, on 12 June 2004.
With the approval of the SEHK, the terms of DSBG Option
Scheme as disclosed in DSBG's initial public offering prospectus
remained valid after its public listing commencing from 30 June
2004.

In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules, the

summary of DSBG Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of DSBG Option Scheme:

The purpose of DSBG Option Scheme is to attract, motivate
and retain high quality executives to contribute to the

Group’s business and growth.
(2) Participants of DSBG Option Scheme:

Eligible participants of DSBG Option Scheme included
directors and employees holding supervisory positions in
DSBG and its subsidiaries.

(3) Total number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as
of 31 December 2010:

The number of shares available for issue under DSBG
Option Scheme is 39,404,410 shares, representing 3.22%
of the issued share capital of DSBG as at 31 December
2010.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under DSBG

Option Scheme:

No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if
exercised, would result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
or to be issued to him under all options granted to him in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date of
relevant options, exceed 1% of the shares in issue at such
date. Any grant of further options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of DSBG Option Scheme and the

Listing Rules as amended from time to time.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under an

option:

The exercise period is determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG,
and is specified when related options are granted. Shares
under the options must be taken up within 10 years from
the date of grant. All the existing share options under the
DSBG Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vested in
varying amounts between the first and up to sixth
anniversaries from the date of grant, or in a shorter period

as the case may be.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it

can be exercised:

The minimum holding period is determined by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG, and is specified when related options are
granted. None of the existing share options under DSBG
Option Scheme shall be exercisable within one year from

the date of grant.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments or calls must or may

be made or loans for such purpose must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1
and must be made within 28 days upon offer of granting of
options or such period the Board may determine from time

to time.

Basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per option share is concluded by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee on behalf of the
Board of DSBG in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules and is calculated as no less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of DSBG shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of DSBG
shares traded on the SEHK for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of DSBG shares of HK$1 each in the capital
of DSBG.

Remaining life of DSBG Option Scheme:

DSBG Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing from 12 June 2004 and

expiring at the close of 11 June 2014.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

&) AEAT) B AR A B B o T HE R 2 b) Interests in options under share option schemes of the
() Company and associated corporation (Continued)
i)  AREBEEWEBEE — KFTRITE i) Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

BRRAIZBARE S (B)

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

RIBARFIRITEBRRAET S - KFIRTT
SERETELENBRARMNETESE
BTYRBHE - RZE—ZFF+A=1+—
B EAFRITEBRRESETERK
FIRITER B F AT 2 AR ([HEAR]) A%
MARITEE 2 7] R AR 1T S B R D #E FI
EEREEBIT

Pursuant to DSBG Option Scheme, certain directors of DSBG
and its major operating subsidiaries were granted options under
DSBG Option Scheme. Details of the share options outstanding
as at 31 December 2010 which have been granted under DSBG
Option Scheme and adjusted for the rights issue of the Company

(the “Rights Issue”) completed during the year, are as follows:

AREAE 2 AHRTEERAEE
Number of DSBG shares in the options

R-2-%F8  RH#REE R-Z-%F
-A-H 2@ “E-FER tZA=t-H s
%8 Adjustment F3:d %5 e Exercise period
Heldat  for Rights Lapsed Heldat  Exercise RTAH # S
ARA Grantee 111/2010 Issue during 2010 31/12/2010 price  Grant date From To
Bn o (B/AE)  (RIRE) (BIAE)
S @my) @my) (@)
gz Directors

RBEX Lung-Man Chiu (John Chiu) 250,000 - 250,000 - 16.70  25/11/2004  25/11/2005  25/11/2010
e Frederic Suet-Chiu Lau 250,000 9,665 - 259,665 13.86"  25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
EEaHe Aggregate of employees® 300,000 11,595 - 311,59 13.86"  25/8/2005 25/8/2006 25/8/2011
250,000 9,665 - 259,665 13.79% 30/12/2005  30/12/2006  30/12/2011
100,000 - 100,000 - 17.30 25/9/2006 25/9/2007 25/9/2012
100,000 - 100,000 - 17.84 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2010
250,000 9,665 - 259,665 17.180 19/7/2007 19/7/2008 19/7/2013
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

Interests in options under share option schemes of the

Company and associated corporation (Continued)

i)

Notes:

Q]

Share option scheme of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited,

a majority owned subsidiary of the Company (Continued)

As a result of the Rights Issue completed in December 2010,
adjustments in the share option exercise price and the number of
shares in the options outstanding are required to be made under
the terms of DSBG Option Scheme in accordance with the Listing
Rule 17.03(13) and a supplementary guidance issued by the SEHK
on 5 September 2005. The calculation of the adjustments in respect
of all the existing share options granted by DSBG had been
performed in accordance with the regulatory rule and guidance,
and reviewed and confirmed by external professional persons
pursuant to Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules. The key summary
of related adjustments had been announced by DSBG on 23
December 2010.

Set out under this sub-paragraph are particulars and movements
during the year ended 31 December 2010 of DSBG’s outstanding
share options which were granted to certain eligible employees,
who are the directors, senior executives or officers of DSBG’s major
operating subsidiaries and are working under employment
contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the
purpose of the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. Options to
subscribe two separate lots, each of 100,000 DSBG shares, were
lapsed during the year due to the expiry of the exercise periods
and the resignation of a grantee respectively.

None of the grantees under DSBG Option Scheme were granted
share options exceeding respective individual limits.

No share options under DSBG option shares were granted to

DSBG’s and the Group’s suppliers of goods or services.

No share options under DSBG Option Scheme were granted,
exercised or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Value of options granted during the year ended 31 December 2010:

Details of the computation of value of options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2010 are shown in Note 54 to the financial
statements.
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Interests of Directors and Chief Executive (Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long position. As at 31
December 2010, none of Directors of the Company held any short
positions as defined under the SFO as recorded in the register of

directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Company.

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

Shareholders’ Interests

At 31 December 2010, the register of shareholders’ interests in shares
and short positions maintained under section 336 of the SFO showed
that the Company had been notified of the following interests, which
are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of Directors, being

5% or more held in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

BELEI

BITREAZ

Bk

Percentage (%) of

BRHEE shares interest held

B R 514 Number of shares  in the entire issued
Shareholder Capacity held share capital
THEEE AERBEEATHEE#ETS

Christine Yen Wong

(IR
Deemed interest by virtue of 117,985,899M 40.30*
her spouse having a notifiable

interest
ELEERELBRAA EREARCEE#ER
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee and corporate interest 96,592,611@ 37.11*
ERAMEBER
DSI Limited Trustee and corporate interest 52,379,3549 17.89*
BREAMEE S
DSI Group Limited Trustee and corporate interest 39,883,977¢ 13.62*
—ZUFJEmEE A E R
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. Corporate interest 44,116,395 15.07
—Z# R FUFJIRTT EL R
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. Beneficial interest 44,116,395 15.07
WE KR
Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Investment manager 18,048,800 6.16@
Limited
REKE
Capital Research and Management Investment manager 15,668,200 5.354
Company Limited
ERAMEBER
DSI Holding Limited Trustee and corporate interest 17,478,8540 5.97*
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc wE IR
LREEZE KB AT
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and Investment manager 15,295,609 5.224
its associates under mandates
* A FELBEERELBER AR - DSI Limited 2 DSI *  Each of the interests of HSBC International Trustee Limited, DSI Limited and
Group Limited® B P15 2 #E a9 8 £ TR L AT DSI Group Limited forms part of the 117,985,899 shares in the Company in
A#9117,985,899 KN A AR P 2 #15H © s FEF which David Shou-Yeh Wong has an interest as disclosed in the section
EEE GO NEBE[ESRITHAHER1E headed “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” on page 48. The interest
NIBEETFUEE - THRESEZLLINESZETLT of Christine Yen Wong represents the whole of such shares. Therefore, these
HAEEERRABORO 2 - Bt - BARNOTA] shareholdings should not be aggregated, and rather form part or whole of
Z2REEE - BIREN T TR EMTETE117,985,899 the same interest of 117,985,899 shares in the Company disclosed by David

BARB P a2 AR o
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Shou-Yeh Wong.
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1 HEEOBIEESHRERA2ELD  ERE
B (EFE) DEARABRARADRIES K
HEGEYFE36()EERAT PR T2
Roo E R ETTER Il [EERITBAK
e | BB AEEE 2R ER -

@ HEBRNEZHATTERERBF MK
PREAXFTAELERETER AR MEER
o BRZBHER Ll [EERTHRARER]
BREPENAMER —HPKRE -

(B) WEBRMNEZHATTEREREKE MK
3 2 & #{= 5 ¥ 5 ADSI Limited * DSI Group
Limited &2 DSI Holding Limited®@Z#4 « Wk~
RDBR M [ES RITBARER GETTE
HEMERS —EHPEE -

@) UHERRBERAFE ZEEAN L ERBEARE
BARR 2D BTROEBE MiELFHE -

A bR EEER R-F—FTF+-A=
T—H  ARBZERERE AR ECMALE
KRB HRCER

JiE R~ R el A

BHE_Z-ZFT_A=T—HILLFE  ~RF
WEBEERNAS 2B - AARBAREHEA
ARBEZZ—EFT_A=1+—HIEFENE
BEHXHEEMARE 2D

3
op

HEX

BE_FT-TF+_A=1T—HLFE 21
ﬂzéﬁﬁvtiﬁzﬁ*iﬁ%ﬁfﬁ%ﬁéﬂ@iﬁﬁ&ﬁ
EENITHREK °

] A3 IR Aok

BREERAGPIETIBIGFE - ARAIN-F
—EE+ A=t -BZAHEERER
1,437,768,000/8 7T (ZF T /L5 : 1,459,835,000
AT e

Shareholders’ Interests (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Such shares represent the deemed interest of Christine Yen Wong by virtue
of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a substantial shareholder of
the Company having a notifiable interest in the relevant share capital of
the Company (under the interpretation of section 316(1) of the SFO). This
interest comprises the same shares held by David Shou-Yeh Wong under
the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

() Such shares are mainly comprised of the interest indirectly held by HSBC
International Trustee Limited in trust for a discretionary trust established
for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong and his family members. Relevant
shares have been included in the “Other interests” of David Shou-Yeh
Wong as disclosed under the heading of “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executive” above.

()] Such shares are mainly comprised of the interests indirectly held by DSI
Limited, DSI Group Limited and DSI Holding Limited in trust for a
discretionary trust established for the benefit of David Shou-Yeh Wong
and his family members. Relevant shares have been included in the “Other
interests” of David Shou-Yeh Wong as disclosed under the heading of
“Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

(4) Such percentage of interest held by the named shareholder has been
adjusted with reference to the total number of shares of the Company
currently in issue as of the approval date of this report.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
December 2010, no short positions were recorded in the register of
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions maintained by the
Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2010. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2010, calculated
under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$1,437,768,000 (2009: HK$1,459,835,000).

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Connected Transactions

Details of other transactions with related parties of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010 have been set out in Note 53 to the

financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Information

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years are included in the section of the annual report under

“Financial Summary”.

Major Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group derived less than
30% of interest income and other operating income from its five largest

customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the

Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company.

Compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The accompanying financial statements comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Auditors

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Company has not

changed its auditors in the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE—_T-—THE+-_A=+—RBILEE
(A % F Thi 51 7R)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HE —B-%F —TTAS

Note 2010 2009
M EWA Interest income 2,973,182 3,177,222
B2 H Interest expense (793,692) (833,093)
BRI 2 WA Net interest income 6 2,179,490 2,344,129
R & R Ae A Fee and commission income 535,543 460,718
AR & KA e Fee and commission expense (173,835) (133,519)
FREEBRASWA Net fee and commission income 7 361,708 327,199
FEEUA(EBE) Net trading income/(loss) 8 461,546 (57,938)
FRE R HE AU A Net insurance premium and other income 9 1,630,973 1,445,003
H b2 i@ g A Other operating income 10 48,902 55,389
EERA 3 Operating income 4,682,619 4,113,782
REBRE MY HF5E Net insurance claims and expenses 11 (1,890,095)  (1,389,806)
HNBRRBEREZEERA Total operating income net of insurance claims
EEX Operating expenses 12 (1,453,952)  (1,869,080)
HIBRRE & 1B A 2 & E 5 Al Operating profit before impairment losses 1,338,572 854,896
EFRERBERAEMEERE Loan impairment losses and other credit
provisions 15 (97,787) (4383,280)
ETRERBEEEERZR Operating profit before gains or losses
BB ZEERF on certain investments and fixed assets 1,240,785 421,616
HETEREMETEER Net gain on disposal and revaluation of
TEEMZ2F K= premises and other fixed assets 16 590 2,803
HERBMEREDNFEREZ Net gain on disposal of and fair value
e B adjustment on investment properties 17 76,524 76,597
HERMHEHERFFWS (BE) Net gain/(loss) on disposal of available-for-sale
‘ securities 43,710 (60,333)
HERRBEEGESRTAL Net (loss)/gain on disposal and repurchase of
% (&518) e other financial instruments 18 (119,583) 243,983
JE{GEtE Nal 2 245 Share of results of an associate 249,001 195,770
FE(R KRG B 8E 2 245 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 8,029 5,103
R B4 A %= A Profit before income tax 1,499,056 885,539
I8 32 Income tax expense 19 (214,026) (96,250)
FEBERN Profit for the year 1,285,030 789,289
DEWAT : Attributable to:
V82 1 | #E AR R Non-controlling interests 278,740 163,240
Vi N/NE 1§51 Shareholders of the Company 20 1,006,290 626,049
FEBERN Profit for the year 1,285,030 789,289
’E Dividends
2R E AR S Interim dividend paid 21 52,054 -
FER AR AARR 2 Proposed final dividend 21 251,812 -
303,866 -
BREF Earnings per share
Restated
KE T
2R Basic 22 HK$3.67 HK$2.30
e Diluted 22 HK$3.67 HK$2.30
FT0EEFE2528 2 M AR & MK 2 — The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-F-FET-A=t+-ALEE
(BB F L 517)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E-BF _—TThHF
2010 2009
FEERF Profit for the year 1,285,030 789,289
FEHMEZEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
BERE Investment in securities
RN R 2 A ERS Fair value gains recognised in equity 207,867 759,813
ANE Wz /Eﬂm IR Fair value (gain)/loss realised and transferred to
S E W income statement upon:
— HE R ﬁ & 7 — Disposal of available-for-sale securities (43,710) 60,333
—HERTRRAHEER /E'ulJ H — Disposal of investments in securities
BN BEBRELEER included in the loans and receivables
FE W FRIEFA Bl K5 2 5 Hﬂ category and held-to-maturity category
Bz BHKE which were previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category 120,803 =
— I HEEFES 2 RE — Impairment of available-for-sale securities - 21,873
MR IAS Related income tax expense (70,190) (79,334)
214,770 762,685
TE Premises
R 2 AT ENS Fair value gains recognised in equity 538,538 411,918
TEAFEREZ R Deferred income tax recognised on fair value
& T i 58 2 IR IE T IE gains and disposal of premises (24,517) (18,106)
514,021 393,812
BREFIMEBET S RENELEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign entities 73,741 (3,005)
MkfHER 2 EFEEM2mEKE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 802,532 1,153,492
NBRBEREZFEZAWREHEE Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 2,087,562 1,942,781
DECIAT Attributable to:
VR H AR R Non-controlling interests 474,873 350,259
7NN Shareholders of the Company 1,612,689 1,592,522
NBRBERCFEREREHAE Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 2,087,562 1,942,781

FTI0EEE2528 2 HIE I AR A M EREKR Z —

financial statements.

The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—EF—=F

t=A=+—H
(A 9 F TEAL 517

As at 31 December 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HE —B-%F —TTAS

Note 2010 2009
BE ASSETS
R R RITH 45 B4 Cash and balances with banks 23 9,580,520 10,741,879
FRIT—E=2+ @A AR BANEFER Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 3,249,320 4,282,749
R E féi BRgMES Trading securities 24 5,568,876 5,883,968
HENRFEGTEEAS Financial assets designated at fair value
er)\ BEmMemEE through profit or loss 24 5,784,468 4,509,393
TESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 25 652,738 594,391
EEERREMMIRA Advances and other accounts 26 83,308,767 68,046,080
A B S Available-for-sale securities 28 17,858,053 12,901,024
%i = 3| E;ﬁ B 5 Held-to-maturity securities 29 9,114,454 8,802,282
E N ERE Investment in an associate 31 1,558,791 1,299,257
#\H?W%JE BEIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 32 60,248 60,791
GRS Goodwill 34 950,992 950,992
B|ILEE . Intangible assets 34 114,832 139,030
TTF REMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 35 3,008,105 2,426,531
BEME Investment properties 36 604,648 568,659
BVEATRIE & & Current income tax assets 1,816 65,283
FER IR A Deferred income tax assets 46 6,570 78,178
RIISBREB 2 BRREEE Value of in-force long-term life assurance
business 37 1,318,316 1,225,668
BEEA Total assets 142,741,514 122,576,155
=R LIABILITIES
RITIE Deposits from banks 1,523,547 1,435,136
TESRTAE Derivative financial instruments 25 1,296,439 1,218,225
FIEEER®RNEE Trading liabilities 39 4,700,893 2,068,300
BEPER Deposits from customers 40 96,126,641 88,370,071
B BT 7 KB Certificates of deposit issued 41 4,746,054 2,060,010
EBTNERE S Issued debt securities 42 1,943,342 s
BIEER Subordinated notes 43 4,644,192 4,602,235
HiiRB kIER Other accounts and accruals 44 3,999,046 3,814,136
BNEAF T8 & & Current income tax liabilities 89,873 19,109
RIEFRIBAE Deferred income tax liabilities 46 89,548 15,366
HEBRBEHAREFEAZBE Liabilities to policyholders under long-term
insurance contracts 45 5,928,783 4,794,792
aEas Total liabilities 125,088,358 108,397,380
= EQUITY
R AR R Non-controlling interests 3,496,771 2,783,198
AATRREMLER Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
H§$ Share capital 49 585,609 520,541
] Reserves 50 13,318,964 10,875,036
R R BAAR B Proposed final dividend 50 251,812 -
RRES Shareholders’ funds 14,156,385 11,395,577
REE Total equity 17,653,156 14,178,775
Bk a8EEs Total equity and liabilities 142,741,514 122,576,155
BEERPR T F=ZA - T=BILERIRERE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
(i March 2011.
ErE HERE David Shou-Yeh Wong Hon-Hing Wong
EF EFEK Director Managing Director
FT0E R F2528 2 ARG A B wEK 2 — The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—g—zet-A=1-A

(A% T 7R3

As at 31 December 2010

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B & —E-2F Z—ZTThHF
Note 2010 2009
B LARRE Investments in subsidiaries 33 4,530,448 3,779,079
MBNE E Current assets
RITEE R Bank balances 458,109 17,686
FEURR R H At BR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 361 354
458,470 18,040
mBEE Current liabilities
THIRER R EMER B Accrued expenses and other accounts 22,983 9,290
BB E Net current assets 435,487 8,750
4,965,935 3,787,829
= EQUITY
f& 2 Share capital 49 585,609 520,541
it 5 Reserves 50 4,128,514 3,267,288
FHR AR AARR 2 Proposed final dividend 50 251,812 -
EmEE Total equity 4,965,935 3,787,829

BERR T ——F=A - +t=H#ERREE

ffi o

EFE
EF

FT70E EFE2528 7 i 5 Jh AR AR

2B o

BT 2 —

March 2011.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Director

financial statements.

Hon-Hing Wong

Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23

The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-F-FET-A=t+-ALEE

(A% TF A 5R)

For the year ended 31 December 2010

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ARARRESES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
REHE
BR
RE  BRHEE HttRE REEF Non-  E#HAH
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
—B-B5-A-RE8 Balance at 1 January 2010 520541 1551426 942777 8,380,833 2,783,198 14,178,775
EREZANRELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 606,399 1,006,290 474,873 2,087,562
TEERRBERLENENER Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (17,483) 17,483 - -
ROEREMEBNESR Premises revaluation reserve transferred
HERRART to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (12,228) 12,228 - -
BITLBBRRD Issue of ordinary shares 65,068 1,135,105 - - - 1,200,173
—FHBAR 2R EHERE Capital contribution by non-controlling
BABRA interests of a subsidiary - - - - 258,831 258,831
ME AR AR R R RER S Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary - - - - (20,131) (20,131)
“T-TERERE 2010 interim dividend - - - (52,054) - (52,054)
SE-ZEF-AC+-HEH Balance at 31 December 2010 585609 2,686,531 1,519,465 9,364,780 3,496,771 17,653,156

BE+t-—A=1+—HLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-BF —ZTThHF

2010 2009
BERNMRBAFNANZ Proposed final dividend
R R B AR B included in retained earnings 251,812 -

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_Z—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE &) For the year ended 31 December 2010 (Continued)
(LK/‘%M]FTEM F7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
KARRRESES
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
REHIE
&
RE  BRHEE HttRE REEF Non-  Em&it
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserves  earnings interests equity
“EZNF-A-REH Balance at 1 January 2009 520,541 1,551,426 101,098 7,719,136 2,045,251 11,937,452
EREZANRELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 966,473 626,049 350,259 1,942,781
TEERRBERLENENER Premises revaluation reserve realised
on disposal of premises - - (26,873) 26,873 - -
ROIEAMEMEBIESR Premises revaluation reserve transferred
HERRART to retained earnings for depreciation
of premises - - (8,775) 8,775 - -
RERAE—FHNBARRR Placement and subscription of shares in
a subsidiary - - (132,383) - 434,753 302,370
RENBARDRGNENEREE Subscription of shares in a subsidiary for
settlement of loan facility - - 43,237 - (43,267) (30)
MEARMEREHERRRER S Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary - - - - (3,798) (3,798)
“EENETCR=T-HESR Balance at 31 December 2009 520,541 1,551,426 942,777 8,380,833 2,783,198 14,178,775
FT0EEF2528 2 IR IRA M RE 2 — The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

HE-F-FET-A=t+-ALEE
EETERNS

1\\/ \

For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Bt 5 —E-FF —TIThEF
Note 2010 2009
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEE (FTA) / RABREFHE Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 51(a)  (7,523,520) 4,129,740
RETBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE REVER Purchase of premises, investment
HhEEEE properties and other fixed assets (377,662) (180,844)
LETE - HEWHEREAM Proceeds from disposal of premises,
EEBEFBHRIE investment properties and other
fixed assets 245,261 92,753
g =N Acquisition of a subsidiary 51(b) (7,510) -
KEEHMALE 5 Net cash used in investing activities (139,911) (88,091)
METBZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITTERGE Certificates of deposit issued 3,491,300 487,891
B EfFRE Certificates of deposit redeemed (792,000) (3,143,618)
BITIRERER Issue of subordinated notes 1,709,708 =
Bl & (B &R Repurchase of subordinated notes (504,737) (371,056)
BRERERK Repayment of subordinated notes (1,165,382) -
BITEKES Issue of debt securities 1,938,720 =
BEREETEBES Repayment of issued debt securities - (2,775,045)
BT R G Issue of ordinary shares 1,200,173 -
—EIM B A R 284 4 Capital contribution from non-controlling
A% SR A% AR interests of a subsidiary 258,831 302,370
Bt /88 2 = () DR $2E 11 7 AR 3R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
IR EE AR B of subsidiaries (20,131) (3,798)
Ik 35 58 AR AR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (52,054) -
BEFERA S (FTR)REL TR Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 6,064,428 (5,503,256)
ReRERRSEEHRD FE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,599,003)  (1,461,607)
FYReRERRESIER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 13,917,291 15,378,898
FRESRERESLEH Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 51(c) 12,318,288 13,917,291
FT0EEFE252H 2 M AR r & M ImEz 2 — The notes on pages 70 to 252 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

L —iER

A EREBBERAF ([KARF]]) BEME AR
(e [N E ) EFE - BFIRPBERMHRT
Rz - SRR EMARR RS -

AR —HETEEMONREZERAR - 52
Wt AEBEFELITE BT/ \RAHERP
D=1 o

b BAEIRAN - AP RABIASE T AL
R WER-_E——F=A-_+=BE=E2
HEFEEER o

2. EHEEHBORME

AT RREATBERRAMRM 2 EESETHOR
BB - ERENBREERANE B -

21 AR

AEBZGEMBERRRRELESMHAE ([F
BEEAE]) R 2 EBM RS ER] ([F
B BEmEER] - REEABERNERNEL
MBHELR  FAGHE (TSFER) AR
HRBzoH)  TETERMZEARAINE
B R EHERIT RS -

IR M BHRRIBIBEL KA T RERE - AL
MR (BREENR)  AHLEEZSREE -
NRAFEH D2 ERREEFOR - FIEEERE
ZeRMEEREMAE UATEFEAES
SFARENEREERERAG (BEITETR)
ZEEEHRE  WIEAFEIIRE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. General information

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) provide banking, insurance, financial
and other related services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s

Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing

Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2011.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of properties
(including investment properties), available-for-sale financial assets, fair
value-hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss,

which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

2. EEEGTBUORME &)
2.1 WS ()

AN BBV BRELEN M BHRRACASE
TERzEt A TRAEEEEERASES
SRR ZBRETEHAE - RAZKRREAZE
B ] e B BB HIE 2 M SRR ERE R
g EEEMRGEAHNBRERBRELAKE
ZHBERR A2 EM AR REE - H¥
R EHE N RBEM 2 65 - RS MR
REBERZBERMET - IR FAPEE -

(F) BE=—F—FF—A—HABEEEN
ZER BT RA2FE

() ATAERRAEERR-Z
— TR R BT RR
7

BB R RRIBNR (51]) (215

&80

BRI EIRELERIZEISR (BF]) CGEHS
B REEREEE G ERFE275
(ReaRBIYPBHRR)  BRGE
AIFE285k (2 N AR E) M BB &
HRIE3F(A LR AR ZEATE
ARWEESAR T NFLA —
ReH &Mz EFERS M2
E =

IR ERT R BB R R BN %
Battt - BREEFETHEREER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@)  Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2010

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are
relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 3 (revised) “Business combinations”

HKFRS 3 (revised), “Business combinations”, and
consequential amendments to HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements”, HKAS 28, “Investments in
associates”, and HKAS 31, “Interests in joint ventures”, are
effective prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

The revised standard continues to apply the acquisition
method to business combinations but with some significant
changes compared with HKFRS 3. For example, all
payments to purchase a business are recorded at fair value
at the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified
as debt subsequently re-measured through the income
statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
All acquisition-related costs are expensed.

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 3 (revised) and the
consequential amendments to HKAS 27, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 in the annual reporting period beginning on 1
January 2009. The early adoption does not have an impact
to the Group’s financial statements.
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2. EHEGSETBORBEE @) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
21 AmEEAE (D) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are

relevant to the Group: (Continued)

HKAS 27 (revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements”

HKAS 27 (revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements”, requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is
no change in control and these transactions will no longer
result in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also
specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining
interest in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. HKAS 27 (revised)
has had no impact on the current period, as none of the
non-controlling interests have a deficit balance; there have
been no transactions whereby an interest in an entity is

retained after the loss of control of that entity.

HKAS 17 (amendment) “Leases”

HKAS 17 (amendment), “Leases” deletes specific guidance
regarding classification of leases of land, so as to eliminate
inconsistency with the general guidance on lease
classification. As a result, leases of land should be classified
as either finance or operating lease using the general
principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

ownership of an asset to the lessee.

The adoption of HKAS 17 (amendment) has not resulted in
any change in the Group’s accounting policy. Land interests
of the Group held for own use are accounted for as finance
leases and included under property, plant and equipment.
They are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term. Land interests that are held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are accounted

for as investment properties and carried at fair value.
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2. EHEGSETBORBEE @) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
21 AmEEAE (D) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are

relevant to the Group: (Continued)

HKAS 36 (amendment) “Impairment of assets”

HKAS 36 (amendment), “Impairment of assets”, is effective
from 1 January 2010. The amendment clarifies that the
largest cash-generating unit (or group of units) to which
goodwill should be allocated for the purposes of impairment
testing is an operating segment, as defined by paragraph 5
of HKFRS 8, “Operating segments” (that is, before the
aggregation of segments with similar economic
characteristics). There is no impact to the financial

statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HKAS 39 (amendment) “Eligible hedged items”

HKAS 39 (amendment), “Eligible hedged items”, makes two
significant changes: Firstly, it prohibits designating inflation
as a hedgeable component of a fixed rate debt. Inflation is
not separately identifiable and reliably measurable as a risk
or a portion of a financial instrument, unless it is a
contractually specified portion of the cash flows of a
recognised inflation-linked bond whose other cash flows
are unaffected by the inflation portion. Secondly, it prohibits
including time value in a one-sided hedged risk when
designation options as hedges. An entity may only
designate the change in the intrinsic value of an option as
the hedging instrument of a one-sided risk arising from a
forecast transaction in a hedging relationship. A one-sided
risk is that changes in cash flows or fair value of a hedged
item are above or below a specified price or other variable.
There is no impact to the financial statements of the Group

as a result of this amendment.
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2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

@

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are

relevant to the Group: (Continued)

HKAS 39 (amendment) “Treating loan prepayment penalties

as closely related derivatives”

HKAS 39 (amendment), “Treating loan prepayment
penalties as closely related derivatives”, is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010. This
amendment clarifies that loan prepayment penalties are
only treated as closely related embedded derivatives, if the
penalties are payments that compensate the lender for the
loss of interest by reducing the economic loss from
reinvestment risk. A specific formula is given to calculate
the lost interest. There is no material impact to the financial

statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may
affect the accounting for future transactions and

events):

HKAS 39 (amendment) “Cash flow hedge accounting”

HKAS 39 (amendment), “Cash flow hedge accounting”,
clarifies when to recognise gains or losses on hedging
instruments as a reclassification adjustment in a cash flow
hedge of a forecast transaction that results subsequently
in the recognition of a financial instrument. The amendment
clarifies that gains or losses should be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the period in which the hedged
forecast cash flow affects profit or loss. There is no impact
to the financial statements of the Group as a result of this

amendment.
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after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may
affect the accounting for future transactions and

events): (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17 “Distribution of non-cash assets to

owners”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17, “Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners” (effective on or after 1 July 2009), was published
in November 2008. This interpretation provides guidance
on accounting for arrangements whereby any entity
distributes non-cash assets to shareholders either as a
distribution of reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5 has also
been amended to require that assets are classified as held
for distribution only when they are available for distribution
in their present condition and the distribution is highly

probable.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18 “Transfers of assets from customers”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18, “Transfers of assets from customers”, is
effective for transfer of assets received on or after 1 July
2009. This interpretation clarifies the requirements of
HKFRSs for agreements in which an entity receives from a
customer an item of property, plant and equipment that the
entity must then use either to connect the customer to a
network or to provide the customer with ongoing access to
a supply of goods or services (such as a supply of
electricity, gas or water). In some cases, the entity receives
cash from a customer that must be used only to acquire or
construct the item of property, plant and equipment in order
to connect the customer to a network or provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or

services (or to do both).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may
affect the accounting for future transactions and

events): (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 “Reassessment of embedded derivatives”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9, “Reassessment of embedded
derivatives”, is effective from 1 July 2009. This amendment
to HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 requires an entity to assess whether an
embedded derivative should be separated from a host
contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset
out of the “fair value through profit or loss” category. This
assessment is to be made based on circumstances that
existed on the later of the date of the entity first became a
party to the contract and the date of any contract
amendments that significantly change the cash flows of the
contract. If the entity is unable to make this assessment,
the hybrid instrument must remain classified as at fair value

through profit or loss in its entirety.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16, “Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation”, is effective from 1 July 2009. This amendment
states that, in a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation, qualifying hedging instruments may be held by
any entity or entities within a group, including the foreign
operation itself, as long as the designation, documentation
and effectiveness requirements of HKAS 39 that relate to a
net investment hedge are satisfied. In particular, the group
should clearly document its hedging strategy because of
the possibility of different designations at different levels of

the group.
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2. EHEGSETBORBEE @) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
21 AmEEAE (D) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
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after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

(i) The following standards, amendments and
interpretations, which became effective in 2010, are
not currently relevant to the Group (although they may
affect the accounting for future transactions and
events): (Continued)

HKAS 38 (amendment) “Intangible assets”

HKAS 38 (amendment), “Intangible assets”, is effective from
1 January 2010. The amendment clarifies guidance in
measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired in a
business combination and permits the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has similar
useful economic lives.

HKFRS 2 (amendment) “Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions”

HKFRS 2 (amendment), “Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions”, is effective from 1 January 2010. In
addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC) 8, “Scope of HKFRS 2”
and HK(IFRIC) Int — 11, HKFRS 2 “Group and treasury share
transactions”, the amendment expands on the guidance in
HK(IFRIC) Int — 11 to address the classification of group
arrangements that were not covered by that interpretation.

HKFRS 5 (amendment) “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations”

HKFRS 5 (amendment), “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations”, is effective from 1 January
2010. The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 5 specifies the
disclosures required in respect of non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations. It also clarifies that the general requirements of
HKAS 1 still apply, in particular paragraph 15 (to achieve a
fair presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of estimation
uncertainty) of HKAS 1.
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2.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards

and interpretations are set out below:
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”, was issued in November 2009
and replaces those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the classification

and measurement of financial assets. Key features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently at
fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at amortised
cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow

characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost only
if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it has only “basic loan
features”). All other debt instruments are to be measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will be
measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other equity
instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses through other comprehensive income rather than profit
and loss. There is to be no recycling of fair value gains and losses
to profit and loss. This election may be made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit and

loss, as long as they represent a return on investment.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,

earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the standard, the

impact on the Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.
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2.

21

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:
(Continued)

HKAS 24 (revised) “Related party disclosures”

HKAS 24 (revised), “Related party disclosures”, was issued in
November 2009. It supersedes HKAS 24, “Related party
disclosures”, issued in 2003. HKAS 24 (revised) is mandatory for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. Earlier application,

in whole or in part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a
related party and removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the
government and other government-related entities. The Group
will apply the revised standard from 1 January 2011. When the
revised standard is applied, the Group will need to disclose any
transactions between its subsidiaries and its associates. The
Group is currently putting systems in place to capture the
necessary information. It is, therefore, not possible at this stage
to disclose the impact, if any, of the revised standard on the

related party disclosures.
HKAS 32 (amendment) “Classification of rights issues”

HKAS 32 (amendment), “Classification of rights issues”, was
issued in October 2009. The amendment applies to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendment addresses the accounting for rights
issues that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the issuer. Provided certain conditions are
met, such rights issues are now classified as equity regardless of
the currency in which the exercise price is denominated.
Previously, these issues had to be accounted for as derivative
liabilities. The amendment applies retrospectively in accordance
with HKAS 8 “Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors”. The Group will apply the amended
standard from 1 January 2011.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning

1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:

(Continued)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments”
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19, “Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity

instruments”, is effective from 1 July 2010. The interpretation
clarifies the accounting by an entity when the terms of a financial
liability are renegotiated and result in the entity’s issuing equity
instruments to a creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part of
the financial liability (debt for equity swap). It requires a gain or
loss to be recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably measured,
the equity instruments should be measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The Group will apply the
interpretation from 1 January 2011. It is not expected to have any
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) -
funding requirement”

Int 14 (amendment) “Prepayments of a minimum

HK(IFRIC) —
funding requirement”, corrects an unintended consequences of
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 -
minimum funding requirements and their interactions”. Without

Int 14 (amendment), “Prepayments of a minimum

“The limit on a defined benefit asset,

the amendments, entities are not permitted to recognise as an
asset some voluntary prepayments for minimum funding
Int 14
was issued, and the amendments correct this. The amendments

contributions. This was not intended when HK (IFRIC) -

are effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2011. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments should be applied
retrospectively to the earliest comparative period presented.
These amendments have no impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(2010)

Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(2010) were issued in May 2010 by HKICPA. All improvements
are effective in the financial year of 2011. No material changes to
accounting policies are expected as a result of the adoption of
these amendments.
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2.

21

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)
(c)  “Improvements to HKFRS”

“Improvements to HKFRS” contain numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary.
“Improvements to HKFRS” comprise amendments that result in
accounting changes for presentation, recognition or
measurement purposes as well as terminology or editorial
amendments related to a variety of individual HKFRS standards.
For amendments that are effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2010 (apart from those mentioned in (i) and (i)
above), they have had no impact on the financial statements of

the Group.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements

of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls

another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)  Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interest as
transactions with equity holders of the company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also

recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss.
The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income

are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

2.2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any

accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves.
The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral

control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction

costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash

flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained a
part at the same effective interest rate for the other participants. Wealth
management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised

rateably over the period the service is provided.
2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.
2.6 Financial assets
2.6.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition, except for subsequent reclassification

meeting specified definition of relevant asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss

at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as

held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition as
designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value option) if

the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases;
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.1 Classification (Continued)

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about the assets is
provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial

assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-for-
sale; or (c) those for which the Group may nor recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of

credit deterioration.
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,

exchange rates or equity prices.
(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold

to maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held for trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets
are permitted to be reclassified out of the held for trading category only
in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and
highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition, the Group may
choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of
loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale
categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold these
financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of

reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in
estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require adjustment

to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed and,

if necessary, separately accounted for.

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in
the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest income
and expense and dividend income and expenses derived from
and incurred on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are included under “Net trading income/(loss)” in the consolidated

income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject to
fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the loans

and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair
value which is the cash given including any transaction costs.
They are measured subsequently at fair value with gains and
losses (except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses) recognised in equity and reported in the reconciliation
from results of the year to total comprehensive income until the

financial assets are derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity and reported in the reconciliation from results of the year
to total comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign
currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement under “Other

operating income”.
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2.

2.6

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.6.3 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

2.7

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to receive

cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the consolidated income statement and is
reported as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as a
deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the separate income statement as impairment

charge on held-to-maturity investments.
Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal and
interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a

percentage of sales);
° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.
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2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
that asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s

fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and

selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according

to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.
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2.

2.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of

conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status,
or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses
in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss

estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after
all the necessary procedures have been completed and the
amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off decrease the amount of the

allowances for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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2.

2.7

2.8

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in
determining whether the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the income
statement.

(c)  Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past
due again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All

financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at

fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of financial

liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It is
carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through profit

or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel such as the Board of Directors

and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are

not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading

income/(loss)” in the consolidated income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between the
carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair value of
derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when

fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled by
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate derivatives
when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts

at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities.
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way

provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both
at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting

changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

(@)  Fair value hedge (Continued)

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which
the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss
over the period to maturity and remains in retained earnings until

the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading income/
(loss)”. For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with
designated financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and
losses arising from changes in their fair value are included under
“Net trading income — Net loss arising from financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle

on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The counterparty liability in respect of securities sold subject to
repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to other
banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals, as
appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“reverse
repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or
customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the
agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income. The

obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading liability.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with

appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made.

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment

performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury, Overseas

Banking, Insurance Business, and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the

functional currency of the Company and major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the income statement.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of

comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale, a
distinction is made between translation differences resulting from
changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the
carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,

except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are

included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a

separate component of equity.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are

reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as

part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Leasehold properties comprising land and buildings held on which a
reliable estimate is not available on the split of the carrying value
attributable to each of the land and building elements are accounted
for as finance leases and shown at fair value, based on periodic, and at
least triennial, valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All
other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to premises revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged
against fair value reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are

expensed in the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Depreciation of premises and other fixed assets is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued amounts to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the remaining period of
lease

- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 5 and 10

years

The difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of premises charged to the income statement and depreciation
based on the premises’ original cost is transferred from premises

revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the

consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and

buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a

finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 99



100

B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

2. EEEGTBUORME &)
2.16 #EWE @)

FERIGHERR - REMER D FEIER - AFE
TIARRTS 2 BRAER  REZRUFELZ
BEME B SRR 2 EMERIELRE - i
ZEEMEELBE > AREREAERMGEE
Planz R E BT Sl 2 BRI RIR SR ER
AETHE - RE[ENKRERGEENEZE
SR 2IEEITK - ZE[ESFHIINEHER
#1T BERUWKBRIEREMEZREME - =X

MIZERE TR 2 REYMRBER A FER

o

o

o >

BREMEZAFERR(EPEE) REHEEZH
WA RILRIRITIRIAI 2 KRB WA -

XTI B8t AZEEZREE - FIARMBES
HREEEZ AR BB ARERA -

AT ERBRIRHENER -

R EMERAREEE T RRMER - RIEHES
BRTERHEMEEEE  HERENBRAHZ
RNFERKBERAE -

MR LTEMEMEEEERNE RGN EME R
BREWF  REFEEHENF165  ZEER
EE A ZREEENFEREMER - $EET
ENEMETEEE 2 EhMERNEREA - A
M A FEEEEEEE ZMERE - %8
BRI W e Bk A FERR o

2.17 VR I G A

B R M BB 2 BN R B AN £R (B PR (15 R BB B IR U
BRBCRRABENABAFEFEZIEHE
BERRARAE REEEIT - BB KEFE
TTRERH - BENREBERTEDE  HEE
BZUmhEREEZHEERIHEREE -

[1>+
D2
| K>
;ﬁé_\
RN
St
a
)
o

e
Sk

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,

continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and assumptions about rental income from

future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other fixed
assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous

impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit

from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or other
legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They include core
deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible assets, and
trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation,
and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a

diminishing balance method.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity. In this case, the tax is

recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these

losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is
also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant

investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by

the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to

vesting fully in the contributions.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group operates a cash settled, share-based compensation
plan, which requires the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the
share option to a grantee at the date of exercise. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted. At each end of the
reporting period, the Group will re-measure the fair value of the
share options and any change is recognised in the income

statement.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation

can be made.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when:
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010 103



B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

2. EEEGTBUORME &)
222 M
(F) &g

HAEADREEAR R KO 5 HEFR
RICERE - KETEERZ X (kK
BELBEAZEAESR @ REEHRAE
B AR BR T X 8H ©

REEEHEE  WAKBREHEAR - 7T
HEHZBEEGEREWBARRKRIBEE
BE BRESEERBRRBRTEECE
% REBEEERAFHATE - H2WA
B TABEAZEABERABERER
HEHRAMER -

(Z) BEHE

WAREEA MBI ERBEZAERRK
O% FHEEHENEASREMEE -
MEMEEHERIRRNREENEZ AF
BERGFEHAENRZBEETREEFEE
£ - BEMENRERBRRE S HEE
HORNERRERERBERREE R
Ko MEMAEHKEERZEERTAE
ERAER - REBEHEMRBZRE
WERE R FETIE -

MASESMEREHEAR - HEERET
Z R FOR (FNBR 15 R ES 2 BB Wak) i
RREUSRK - WHATFIEE R R E MR
BIREA - BEEHERKERZEEK
ARBEMREBEARSER  NEREEE
FHEIE BE R (B8 2 3% B % R 2 [ E @ 3R

223 ZELEH

REE—RUFBEAREMEESIRTE KK
EA -~ EEREMEBERBERFEEE - ANZ
SEENREMEENPALFEREBZEE @ &
NERAEE 2B RERBINER o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income

statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. They are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on a basis consistent with similar owned fixed assets. Rental
income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under

finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment

outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the

Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.



B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

2. EEGFFEURME @)
224 WA

BBRBRERDE OB RES - BTG EIEZH
X RERREARERRER NG X25R
RERARA °

TR AR 1 2 BB B S SR MM BR R it 2 B8
RERSAILE -

225 BeRERBE4EEH

HEERERME B RFERBELIER KA
BAREFIEARI MG  BRES R
TREMEREEER BEEES  HMEER
BRENEFRERAAEZERT AP RERER
ZIRERES

226 MBEEREGH

MEERA KRBT AR EEE ARE
RBEBE QN IRK N B BEB R AR S R
BAXNEERBEAMENEBERZAL - ZER
BRERIRREPETRT - REEREME
BUEREEN BXREMRTEE  REH
EPBTAMEE - A ALEMNFE - &15 -
BEAXMAOBRRME FEMAL -

BRI T B R A A B R 7 B 75 4R
R o EVAHERR - ARE 2 EREGURES
BERTERIEITH ERE - KARABRIAREE]
B 2 BERINRHER R EHR 2T HERE
EMEZRZESENE - BYBERAB A
EE T AW -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the financial

statements in the period in which they are approved by shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to cash and are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import

duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to

the income statement.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of

obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a

provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the control

of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.28 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that contain insurance risk or both
insurance and financial risks. Insurance contracts are those contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contract may also transfer
financial risk. As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant
insurance risk the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence
of an insured event that are at least 10% or more than the benefits

payable if the insured event did not occur.
Insurance contracts are accounted for as follows:

(i) Premiums

Premiums for long-term insurance business are recognised as
revenue when they become due. Premiums for general insurance
business are accounted for in the period in which the risk
commences. Unearned premium is provided and is calculated
on a time-apportioned basis as the proportion of the business
underwritten in the accounting year relating to the period of risk
after the end of the reporting period. Reinsurance premiums are

accounted for on the same basis as gross premiums.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(i)  Commission expenses

Commission expenses for securing new contracts are charged
to the income statement on a basis consistent with premium
revenue recognition and are presented in the income statement

under “Net insurance claims and expenses”.

(iii)  Claims and benefits

Claims for general insurance business consist of paid claims and
movement in provisions for outstanding claims with related claims
handling expenses. For long-term insurance business, claims and
benefits are accounted for on notification of claims or when
benefits become payable. Liabilities to policyholders under long-
term insurance contracts are the amount recognised for future
claims and benefits of life insurance contracts as estimated by
appointed actuary in compliance with regulatory requirements.
Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for on the same basis as

the related claims or benéefits.

(iv)  Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

The value of in-force long-term life assurance business is the
present value of expected future earnings to be generated from
in-force business, using appropriate assumptions. Movements
in the value of in-force long-term life assurance business are

reported as “Net insurance premium and other income”.

(v)  Liability adequacy test

At each end of the reporting period, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, current best estimates of future cash flows
relating to insurance contracts and claims handling and
administration expenses, as well as investment income from the

assets backing such liabilities, are used.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.28 Insurance contracts (Continued)

3.

(vi)  Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under which
the Group is compensated for losses on one or more contracts
issued by the Group and that meet the classification requirement
for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts
held.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well
as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised

as an expense when due.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on an
annual basis. If there is objective evidence that the reinsurance
asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the income statement. The Group decides
whether an insurance receivable is impaired based on its age and
relevant information on the financial health of the counter party. If
the Group deems an insurance receivable to be impaired a full
and specific provision will be made against the balance in

question.

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those

activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management

of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the

financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence

of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an

appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,

products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Executive Committee
under the authority delegated by the Board oversees and guides the
management of different risks which are more particularly managed
and dealt with by the Group Risk Division and different functional
committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the

independent review of risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest

rate and other price risk.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-
term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while

maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending
to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance and other

bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currency, interest rate and commodity prices.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can be
taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate term liabilities. Part of these
financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms
of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value

hedge.

3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties may
default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee and for each business
division a credit committee made up of certain Executive Directors and
senior credit officers and chaired by the Chief Executive. Each credit
committee has the responsibility for formulating and revising credit
policies and procedures for that division within the parameters of the
Group Risk Policy and regulatory framework. Credit policies and
procedures define the credit assessment and approval criteria and
guidelines, use of scoring, review and monitoring process and the

systems of loan classification and impairment.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis, in
accordance with the credit approval and review policies, by evaluating
the credit-worthiness of different types of customers and counterparties
based on assessment of business, financial, market and industry risks
applicable to the types of loans, collateral and counterparty dealings
including dealing in or use of derivative financial instruments. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines. Credit exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly
monitored and controlled by management, credit committees and
Group Risk Division. The Group’s internal auditors conduct regular
reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies and

procedures and regulatory guidelines.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

The individual business’ credit policies also establish policies and

processes for the approval and review of new products and activities,

together with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes

and impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk of
the client or counterparty on its contractual obligations; (i) current
exposures to client or counterparty and (iii) the amount of

impairment allowances.

These credit risk measurements, which operate to control and
monitor credit performance of individual and pools of borrowers
through on-going credit review, loan classification, collection,
credit risk mitigation including realisation of collateral, and
provision of impairment on problem loans as required by the
Group’s credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines,
are embedded in the Group’s daily credit risk management. Based
on the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance, the Group is required to set aside sufficient loan loss
reserve against any expected loss. The operational
measurements can be contrasted with impairment allowances
required under HKAS 39, which are based on losses that have
been incurred at the end of the reporting period (the “incurred

loss model”) rather than expected loss (Note 3.2.3).
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

@
@)

(i)

(iii)

(®)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool tailored to the various
categories of corporates. They have been developed
internally and combine general analysis and judgements of
credit officers, and are reviewed, where appropriate, by
comparison with externally available data. Clients of the
Group are segmented into three broad rating classes. The
Group’s rating scale, which is shown in Note 3.2.3,
differentiates credit quality for each rating class. This means
that, in principle, exposures migrate between classes as
the assessment of credit quality and business environment
changes. The rating tools are kept under review and

upgraded as necessary.

The Group uses both internal data and market information
(e.g. credit rating migration, credit scoring) for internal credit
risk assessment. Observed migration data per rating
category vary year on year, especially over an economic

cycle.
Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a credit
facility and contractual obligations including both current

exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds

are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby

letters of credit — which represent irrevocable assurances that

the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot

meet its obligations to third parties — carry the same credit risk as

loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are

written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer

authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up to a

stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions — are

normally collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to

which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct

lending.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)
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(b)  Credit-related commitments (Continued)

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees
or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the
likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments,
as most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon
customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Group
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of

credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external rating such as
Standard & Poor’s rating or their equivalents are used by Group
Risk Division for managing the credit risk exposures. The
investments in these securities and bills are made to gain a better
credit quality, to diversify risk exposures and income streams,
and to maintain a readily available source of funds to meet the

funding and liquidity requirement of the Group from time to time.

(d)  Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps and
options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange and
equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for both
trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in using
derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by acting
as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to risks and
to generate revenues through trading activities within acceptable

limits.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
(i)

Derivatives (Continued)
Derivatives held or issued for trading purposes

The Group transacts derivative contracts on behalf of
customers or to address customer demands in structuring
tailored derivatives. The Group also takes proprietary
positions for its own accounts. Trading derivative products
used by the Group are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives transacted based on interest rates, foreign

exchange rates, credit spread and equity prices.
Derivatives held or issued for hedging purposes

Derivatives held for hedging purposes primarily consist of
derivative instruments or contracts used to manage interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk. All of these are over-

the-counter derivatives.

The Group uses the following derivative instruments:

@)

(ii)

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase
foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered
transactions. Foreign currency and interest rate futures are
contractual obligations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates or interest rates or to
buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a
future date at a specified price, established in an organised
financial market. The changes in the futures contract value

are settled daily with the exchange.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates
(for example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination
of all these (i.e., cross-currency interest rate swaps). No
exchange of principal takes place, except for certain
currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk represents the
potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market. To control the level
of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties

using criteria similar to its lending activities.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

(iiiy  Foreign currency and interest rate options are contractual
agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to
buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or
during a set period, a specific amount of a foreign currency
or a financial instrument at a predetermined price. The seller
receives a premium from the purchaser in consideration for
the assumption of foreign exchange or interest rate risk.
Options may be either exchange-traded or negotiated
between the Group and a customer. The Group is exposed
to credit risk on purchased options only, and only to the

extent of their carrying amount, which is their fair value.

(iv) Credit default swaps are contractual agreements under
which the buyer makes a series of payments to the seller
and, in exchange, receives a payoff if a credit instrument
undergoes a credit event defined as events such as
restructuring, downgrade of credit rating or even
bankruptcy. The Group uses credit default swaps to
manage the credit risk arising from the trading and
investment portfolios of its insurance business and is
exposed to the credit risk of the counterparty or referenced

entity and credit events underlying the credit default swaps.

The Group may be exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not receiving
the expected cash value of a derivative transaction or upon the

expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily indicate
the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value
of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments
become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equity prices and credit market conditions. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments
on hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or
unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative
financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time

to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the amount
subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to

express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group manages, controls and limits concentrations of credit risk

wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties

and groups, and to industries and countries.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing

limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or

groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such

risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or

more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level

of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved

by relevant credit committees and Group Risk Division.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

The exposure to any one borrower or counterparty including banks and
brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off- balance
sheet exposures, and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading items
such as forward foreign exchange contracts. Actual exposures against

limits are monitored daily.

Exposures to credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of
the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by regular review and revision of

these limits where appropriate.

To avoid concentration of risk, large exposures to individual customers
or related groups are limited to a percentage of the capital base, and
exposures to industry sectors and countries/regions are managed

within approved limits to achieve a balanced portfolio.

(@ Loans and advances

In order to mitigate the credit risk and where appropriate, the
Group will obtain collateral to support the credit facility. To control
credit risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative
positions, the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved
financial institutions, and uses established market practices on
credit support and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk
exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for
each financial institution counterparty, including valuation limit
for derivatives, is approved by the Group Credit Committee with
reference to the financial strength and credit rating of each
counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are

the respective margins of finance.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile,

cashflow position and ability to repay.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate
credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security
for funds advanced, which is a common practice. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral. The principal collateral types for loans and advances

are:
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3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances (Continued)

o Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory

and accounts receivable;

o Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities

and equities; and

. Charges over deposits.

Lending to corporate entities are either secured, partially secured
or unsecured depending on borrowers’ credit quality. In addition,
in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where possible,
seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans and

advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,

which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments.

(c) Derivatives

Since all counterparties for derivatives trading are financial
institutions, the risk is managed as part of the credit risk control
and monitoring process in respect of financial institutions
including credit controls such as setting individual limit for
valuation risk, daily settlement limits and performing periodic
credit assessment for each counterparty. Moreover, the Group
requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (“ISDA”)
Agreement in order to follow the standardised market practice of
close-out arrangement in the event of default, settlement

procedure, valuation/pricing methods.

Collateral or other security is not usually obtained for credit risk
exposures on these instruments, except where the Group requires

margin deposits from counterparties.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by
entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties
with which it undertakes a significant volume of transactions.
Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset
of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position, as
transactions are usually settled on a gross basis. However, the
credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a
master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and

settled on a net basis.

The Group’s overall exposure to credit risk on derivative
instruments subject to master netting arrangements can change
substantially within a short period, as it is affected by each

transaction subject to the arrangement.

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating system described in Note 3.2.1 focuses more on
credit-quality assessment from the inception of the lending and
investment activities. In contrast, impairment allowances are recognised
for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred
at the end of the reporting period based on objective evidence of
impairment (see Note 2.7). Due to the different approaches applied, the
amount of incurred credit losses provided for in the financial statements
may be different from the amount determined from other loss estimation
approach that is used for internal operational management and banking

regulation purposes.

The impairment allowance shown in the statement of financial position
at year-end is derived from each of the three broad internal rating
grades. However, the majority of the impairment allowance comes from
the bottom two gradings. The table below shows the percentage of the
Group’s on-balance sheet items relating to loans and advances and
the associated impairment allowance covering on- and off-balance

sheet amounts for each of these broad internal rating categories.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

—2-2F —ETNF
2010 2009
AEERE AR
HERHE HE ST
HERRBR B ERREX Bk
B2k  Impairment B Impairment
Loans allowance Loans allowance
and as a % of and as a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
58 Group % % % %
E& Grades
1=IE% 1 - pass 99.2 0.3 97.9 0.5
2— R R 2 - special mention 0.2 13.5 0.5 11.3
3—RBHIATR 3 - sub-standard or below 0.6 28.8 1.6 422
100.0 100.0
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As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,

the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Grade 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and

principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the

Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Grade 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13 of the
Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in which
borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely to
jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the Group
expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that are considered

uncollectible after all collection options have been exhausted.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The internal rating tool assists management to determine whether
objective evidence of impairment exists under HKAS 39, which is based

on the following criteria generally considered by the Group:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
° Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to

debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

o Breach of loan covenants or conditions;
° Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;
° Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and

° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Impairment allowances on
individually assessed accounts are determined by an evaluation of the
incurred loss at the end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis,
and are applied to all individually significant accounts. The assessment
normally encompasses collateral held (including re-confirmation of its
enforceability) and the anticipated receipts and liquidating collaterals

for that individual account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for: (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below materiality
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet
been identified, by using the available historical experience,

experienced judgement and statistical techniques.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements

—E-BF _—TThHF
S Group 2010 2009
EHREEBBERANEEZEERBRERT : Credit risk exposures relating to
on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
e RERITHER Cash and balances with banks 9,580,520 10,741,879
ERITHF R Placements with banks 3,249,320 4,282,749
BIEEBRENES Trading securities 5,568,876 5,883,968
EEAATFEFEAEZFH T AERE Financial assets designated at fair value
H & Bl & = through profit or loss 5,784,468 4,509,393
MTESMIT A Derivative financial instruments 652,738 594,391
EFPERRBR Loans and advances to customers
BAER Loans to individuals
—=EAF — Credit cards 3,793,409 3,289,460
—RB\EX - Mortgages 21,904,593 18,972,569
— EAh - Others 3,945,998 3,283,575
TEER Loans to corporate entities
—BHEX — Term loans 17,630,333 11,317,643
—RB\BER - Mortgages 10,523,436 8,088,435
—E5ME - Trade finance 4,548,252 3,281,532
— EAh - Others 10,402,967 8,931,945
RITER KB Loans and advances to banks = 150,000
HAh & 2= Other assets 3,237,756 2,606,802
BEEERR Investments in securities included in
FEWHIERR R 2 BHIRE the loans and receivables category 7,717,760 8,799,348
AHEEES Available-for-sale securities
— B E3 - debt securities 17,049,159 11,942,883
FEDNHES Held-to-maturity securities 9,114,454 8,802,282
134,704,039 115,478,854
EHEEBEBERINEE Credit risk exposures relating to
ZEERRBENT : off-balance sheet items are as follows:
MBEREREMEER Financial guarantees and other credit
SHABE related contingent liabilities 1,298,710 1,179,965
EFORE R EAM Loan commitments and other credit
EEEE related commitments 50,692,990 36,885,225
51,991,700 38,065,190
+—A=+—H At 31 December 186,695,739 153,544,044

ERFIRARER - BFR-BEAF T
A=+ -BE—BREFRTOTESE « &H
RARIARA 2 ERR AR RRAN 26

The above table represents a worse case scenario of credit risk

exposure to the Group at 31 December 2010 and 2009 without taking

into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

attached.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

3. HRE R B ()

32 [ SRR ()

3.2.4 Rt AIFH Z L i 2 H A 15 B 18 7
Fi & 45 1 1 B B A (4)

AEBZEERAALZETIIFMIEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other

credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

& with reference to the following:

. BERRBREEF6%H D IBAENITHRR . 6% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
GHER=BHERRN(ZZEZENEF top three grades of the internal rating system (2009: 3%).
3%)

. HEFZHRADBE2RBERTIBEER @ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
ZIEE portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. ER R BT E 98% A % i Hi K 2 1 7 . 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be

BE(CZEZENE : 97%)

AR B RBENOINB(ZET N F

1.0%) : &

neither past due nor individually impaired (2009: 97 %)
. RSt RECEFPERERTNEFE . Loans and advances to customers that are either individually or

collectively impaired constituted 0.3% (2009: 1.0%) of the total

loans and advances to customers; and

. BEBEESREMESFEER8% (ZZTT . 68% (2009: 62%) of the investments in debt securities and other

F:62%) AP EA-EERF -

3.2.5 Bk R #ak
ERKBFRBEMT ¢

3.2.5 Loans and advances

bills have at least an A- credit rating.

Loans and advances are summarised as follows:

—E2-2F —ETNF
2010 2009
BEFER RITENK ERER RITER
RBRK REBRK EF K E
Loans and Loans and Loans and Loans and

advances to

advances to  advancesto  advances to

£8 Group customers banks customers banks
9 B N A RRE Neither past due nor individually

impaired 71,656,605 - 55,383,407 150,000
A H AR ERRE Past due but not individually impaired 923,122 - 1,252,353 -
(EhINCRES Individually impaired 169,261 - 529,399 -
kL] Gross 72,748,988 - 57,165,159 150,000
o REER Less: allowance for impairment (395,098) - (674,435) (155)
HE Net 72,353,890 - 56,490,724 149,845
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(CABET ThLHIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R #HGK () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
—E-EF —TTNF
EFEX BEPEN
SE-E N EEA
2010 2009
Loans and Loans and
advances to advances to
58 Group customers customers
HEERRBK Impaired loans and advances
—ERRE GEF) - Individually impaired (Note (a)) 169,261 529,399
—kREREGED) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 13,181 17,767
182,442 547,166
TMEEE Impairment allowances made
—ARIFEE (FER) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (91,405) (316,378)
—REFE (L) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (12,554) (16,941)
(103,959) (333,319)
78,483 213,847
REERMAFE Fair value of collaterals held* 84,547 215,514
REERERBIERFERK Impaired loans and advances as a % of
RRBEIADL total loans and advances to customers 0.25% 0.96%

* ERRAFEDREBERDHEREFREES
7 MEPREEETE °

B

ERREERZEBVRERREERELET
—frE S taEEREN TR EREE ([B
KREMH]) MER - MRBREHEZER 2B
ARBEREEKTE - WA SFEHHE o

L. HFERERRRBTIEZENGAEEERER
HREER RN 2HA D BHREZBENL TR
ZERRER o ZER L 25 REERGS
REEETEBGESMELERN DM

A. UEEREEFEEEEERERRN T A=+
—HEZEMREE -

BRI 258 2 R (B 25 1 48 58 /5 395,098,000/% 7T
(ZZZT /4 : 674,590,000/87T) © B IELHE B
EE K 2 £ #91,405,0008 T (— T N4 -
316,378,000 7T) & #iikin G EEFEHNER 2
47 A % #53083,693,0008 7T (— T Z N £ ¢
358,212,000 T) ° MisF26iR it E Z ARFER
Ra - RITERRBREEMIRE (EH 2 RE
HEHEER -

& &l

& RA®E
258 ﬁ:yE

Zl

=l

i

A

[1>+
S
| &>

+
5

Al

*

Note:

(@)

(©

Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be reliably
estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date. The
collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a part
of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$395,098,000 (2009: HK$674,590,000), comprising an allowance of
HK$91,405,000 (2009 HK$316,378,000) for the individually impaired

loans

and a collective allowance of HK$303,693,000 (2009:

HK$358,212,000) provided on loans assessed on a collective basis.
Further information on the impairment allowances maintained for each

of loa

ns and advances to customers, loans and advances to banks,

and other accounts is provided in Note 26.
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3.2.5

T % B S B ()

5 BB (80

Bk e 3k ()

(FF) B R R A% (] 5 Bl (e < Bk R B 50

ERRBFECTEEREAREBHNE
ERRET — AR BEM E3.2.38 M=K

FARAE LTS -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

@

Loans and advances neither past due nor individually

impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were
neither past due nor individually impaired is normally assessed

based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note 3.2.3.

EFEHR

BREE ROER

BA(BEEF) t¥ Total loans R #BHEHE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

£8 ik E5RE advances and

“E-%f% Group Credit RBEX Eft HHER RBEX Trade Hfh to advances

TZh=1-H At 31 December 2010 cards Mortgages Others Term loans Mortgages finance Others customers  to banks
& Grades:

1-I% 1- pass 3,754,232 21635787 3,872,978 17,611,655 10,372,125 4,482,500 9,831,323 71,560,690 -

2-RAIEE 2 - special mention - - - 3,000 31,093 23,349 13,405 70,847 -

3= REFEHAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 2,345 - - 14,458 - 8,265 25,068 =

CE Total 3754232 21,638,132 3,872,978 17,614,655 10,417,676 4505930 9,852,093 71,656,605 -

EPEHR

BRAE  ROER

EA(ZEER) % Total loans  REFEE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities and Loans

&5 HiRS 258E advances and

“ETNE Group Credit  HBEH £ BHER  RBER Trade £t to  advances

T-A=t-H At 31 December 2009 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others  customers  to banks
SR Grades:

1-I% 1-pass 3,241,443 18,686,536 3,197,349 11,225,154 70884547 3,196,359 7,830,666 55,262,054 150,000

-KAEE 2 - special mention - - - 6,304 18,410 4,897 26,218 55,829 -

3-RAFHT 3 - sub-standard or below 14 2,971 - 6,000 19,123 3,084 34,332 65,524 -

CH Total 3,241,457 18,689,507 3,197,349 11,237,458  7922,080 3,204,340 7,891,216 55383407 150,000

EREBIATER 2 ZBERLCEEBER
iz MU EREFERRBE

Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were assessed as
not impaired after taking into consideration the values and recovery of

collaterals.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. R AE B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Bk R Hak () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) BEIERBEZ B &2 (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
RFERR
A (BEEF) t¥ BHAE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
BRF E5RE and
&8 Group Credit  RBEF 2 AHER  RBER Trade Eft advances to
ZE-EE+-H=1-H At31 December 2010 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BHE-EALUT Past due up to 1 month 21,398 237,887 53,708 - 97,148 13,810 350,783 774,734
BHE—EANEZE={EA  Pastdue more than 1 month
and up to 3 months 10,265 16,301 14,135 - 3,564 1,124 45,921 91,310
BE=[EANLERER  Pastdue more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 5,007 893 3,016 - 156 368 1,775 17,305
AHNERNE Past due more than 6 months 2,417 - 782 - - - 36,574 39,773
At Total 39,177 255,081 71,641 - 100,868 15,302 441,053 923,122
BERARIATE Fair value of collaterals* - 254,931 1,635 - 100,165 5,737 302,153 754,621
EPENR
fEA(BERF) % BHEE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Total loans
HiRS VT and
£@ Group Credit  1RIBER £t BAHER BBER Trade Eff advances to
ZERENETZA=T—H At31 December 2009 cards  Mortgages Others ~ Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  customers
BE-EAINT Past due up to 1 month 2511 221,957 58,847 - 100275 19349 481780 904779
BH-EANEE=A Pastduemorethan 1 month
and up to 3 months 15,149 41,300 17,925 27,000 330 459 123,928 226,091
BH=EANEEREA  Pastdue more than 3 months
and up to 6 months 7,110 1,719 4,586 - 18,732 - 33,756 60,903
aMAEANE Past due more than 6 months 3,173 450 1,039 - 16,026 - 39,892 60,580
H) Total 48,003 265,426 82,397 27,000 130,363 19,808 679,356 1,252,353
BEAARIATE Fair value of collaterals* - 265,165 3,04 27,000 128,438 12,849 640,441 1,076,934
* B G 2 AFEDBREERRTERER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market value of
KEERESR  MEPREEMTE ° collateral and outstanding loan balance.

MIgERER R BT - PR 2 AFE
DKEBEEFEBEREEL BRA 2MHEET
AME o R - EAFEDNSEMS
ERMXFABEERRMERN -

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral
is based on valuation techniques commonly used for the corresponding
assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to

market price or indexes of similar assets.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. B )R B A PR () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Bk R Hak () 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1E 55 B2 5P B3 & E7 (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
AREERGT AR BRI R 2 IR ERATZ The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
ERRER P ER LB A169,261,0007%5 the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
T (ZZEZTNF : 529,399,000/8 T) ° collateral held is HK$169,261,000 (2009: HK$529,399,000).
ERREER KRB BEERANEE T The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
VEVE(R 2 MR RA IR 38 G A R IR L B 2 AT 40 and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows.

HEER

BA(BEEF) ¥ - AR

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

E5RE allowances

£m Group BBER Bt EHER  EBER Trade At Ait - individual

ZE-ZEFZA=1-H  At31December 2010 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

{ARIREER Individually impaired loans 11,380 1,379 15,678 4,892 27,011 108,921 169,261 91,405
FEEARZATE" Fair value of collaterals® 10,881 - 11,431 3,362 7,663 51,210 84,547

WEERE

fAA(ZEEP) % - [RIAHE

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment

2588 allowances

£H Group REEN i BHER  REEX Trade Hih A3 -individual

“EENEFZA=T-H  At31 December 2009 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment

ERAESR Individually impaired loans 17,635 3,830 53,185 35,992 57,384 361,373 529,399 316,378
HEERRZATE" Fair value of collaterals® 16,558 700 10307 33,672 11,851 142,426 215,514

* Rz ATFEDEEERRTEEER * Fair value of collateral is determined as the lower of the market

REBHELR  MEPBREEME ° value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 B KBk (4) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #mA=EAUEZERREK (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
() BMEAKREEERBE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
—E-ZF —ZETNF
2010 2009
BEAREER BEIRER
EXREE Bms
Gross 1H# %8 Gross ap ks
amount of BAL amount of Anth
overdue % of overdue % of
&M Group loans total loans total
KEBEEFER Gross advances to customers
e A which have been overdue for:
—=@ARNAEERER — six months or less but
over three months 69,776 0.10 102,346 0.18
—~ARREE—F - one year or less but
over six months 22,615 0.03 185,079 0.32
——F U E - over one year 116,304 0.16 267,141 0.47
208,695 0.29 554,566 0.97
(iy BEAREEBRERRIBRZREERR (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances against
R mE overdue loans and advances
BRRBX EfR HEEE

REEYE B BERm gl HEE - BRI
Outstanding Current FIRERH REAETH BREEEE Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other  allowances

&0 Group loans and value of coveredby coveredby creditrisk - individual

ZB-BF+ZAZ+-H At 31 December 2010 advances  collateral  collateral ~ collateral  mitigation assessment
BAREREPERREH Overdue loans and advances

to customers 208,695 185,117 129,463 79,232 - 71,569

LEVEE i HfE%ER

AEREE B ERm ERm AR - ERFE
Outstanding Current  FIAERH ReEAEDH BBRAEERE Impaiment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other  allowances

] Group loans and value of  covered by  covered by credit risk - individual

“EENF+-A=1—-H At 31 December 2009 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation ~ assessment
BHREREPERRER Overdue loans and advances

to customers 554,566 350,867 256,960 297,606 - 282,455

FrIFEfRnEERE e  BHREFRED Collateral held mainly represented cash, pledged deposits, and
L properties.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

3. HRE R B ()
15 B B (&)
3.2.5 B KBk (4)

(k) BEHEEN (BEHEEER LHZS
ZEHRIEEERZ BFE)

3.2

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

(e

advances shown above

Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in overdue

1G4 h4asE

—E-ZF Btk —EENEF Ant

£H Group 2010 % of total 2009 % of total

BEER Advances to customers 198,105 0.27 236,637 0.41
BB EE Impairment allowances 6,812 24,242

3.2.6 W IEHGH 4
RERZTA ZWEEFRHOT :

3.2.6 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

—g-%F -—TTh&

£ Group 2010 2009

AEME Nature of assets
Uy [B] 4 % Repossessed properties 5,820 49,109
Hth Others 2,695 8,240
8,515 57,349

WEHERRZATEREREE - BRKBEBAMN
BAEA 2 BERARERET -

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the

proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the

borrowers concerned.
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3. R AE B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.7 KBHHEF 3.2.7 Debt securities

() RAFRBIEETE 2RI (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRINTR-BE—ZFERZZETNF+ A=+ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
—BEFREBIEC 2RO 2 EEES © agency designation at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

AHHE BEIH

FIEEE HEN RE RE E¥R

REEE AVEFE  Available- Held-to- L ER
£ Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and &t
“E-ZF+-H=1+-—H At 31 December 2010 assets atfairvalue investments investments receivables Total
AAA AAA 213 744,296 1,175,020 118,770 - 2,038,299
AA-Z2AA+ AA- to AA+ 5,365,623 533,600 10,401,945 586,261 - 16,887,429
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 104,069 2,193,135 3,811,988 3,695,798 1,134,368 10,939,358
BRERIEERA- Rated but lower than A- - 673,144 1,358,600 2,990,868 6,085,672 11,108,284
AERR Unrated 3,536 277,463 301,606 1,722,757 497,720 2,803,082
Bt Total 5,473,441 4,421,638 17,049,159 9,114,454 7,717,760 43,776,452

A E FEH

HIFEE EE N RE RE EFR

REdE ATEAE Available- Held-to- FEM A
& Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity Loans and =X
“TEAFFTZA=+—H At31December 2009 assets  atfairvalue investments investments receivables Total
AAA AAA - 1,255,784 621,338 - - 1,877,122
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 5,581,585 470,944 3,729,687 636,628 - 10,418,844
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 80,793 1,538,306 5,217,334 3,543,850 1,953,883 12,334,166
Bl RIBERA- Rated but lower than A- 128,721 330,246 2,123,342 3,295,826 6,472,644 12,350,779
RER Unrated 3,354 194,392 251,182 1,325,978 372,821 2,147,727

Bt Total 5,794,453 3,789,672 11,942,883 8,802,282 8,799,348 39,128,638
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3. B R A B (8D
32 fEE B (%)
3.2.7 HEH#EF (H)

(2) BB

R-Z-—ZER_ZFTNFINREIRDREE
REERFBAZFSFRE - RERBER T A=
T—HRBHAWMTRAT

%

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 Debt securities (Continued)

(b)  Analysis by overdue period

Investments in securities which were classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition in 2010 and 2009, and were
overdue at the time of recognition, are overdue as at 31 December

as shown below:

Group 2010 2009

RN RERE S B AE R K
BYFEZ EHERE

- —FNE

RUAHERE D BAERMERHIE 2 EHIRE
HESRERERE LiaiBERE ZEEEY
AR RFER

Investments in securities classified as
loans and receivables upon

initial recognition

Overdue for
- over one year 426,044 302,236

The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition was recognised in the statement of
financial position at a value after taking into account the above overdue

status.
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3.2

3.2.8

T % B S B ()
15 B8R B ()

FH A 1 B0 I e 2 < 4 2 J B
R

(FF) =13
BEPFERZBESTHIRECDZEERARE
Bz ZGHFREMDE - —RME -
EEFRNERTEREAXZHF IR ZE
K ARERE -

TRARXFPERERERREDI -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(@ Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers by

geographical area.

—g-®F _TThE
t=A=+-B+t-A=+-8
As at As at

31 Dec 2010 31 Dec 2009

BEFERBR
-BE
—
— B F]
- Hitp

Gross advances to customers

- Hong Kong 61,040,284 48,779,171
— China 3,859,451 1,479,379
- Macau 6,699,625 6,151,486
— Others 1,149,628 755,123

72,748,988 57,165,159
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. R AE B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

32 faRmEBE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 M A 15 B B < <2 il 2 & I B 5 3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
R () (Continued)
(FF) =1 (%) (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)
TERAAEB ZRITHBRARBHAER K The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
B BHERERERITHERNTFRZ banking subsidiaries of the Group in relation to loans and
BIREEDNT © advances, investments in securities, and balances and

placements with banks.

RITRHEAM
CREE
Banks NERE
—E-ZF and other Public
+=BA=+—-H As at 31 Dec 2010 financial sector Hit gt
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAE TEERBEAR  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 14,008 93 8,918 23,019
EEREE North and South America 313 = 3,120 3,433
BUM Europe 5,040 89 2,813 7,942
19,361 182 14,851 34,394
RITRH A
T RIEE
Banks NERE
—ZThEF and other Public
+-A=+—H As at 31 Dec 2009 financial sector Hth T
BEEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TAR  AEEBEBERN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 9,965 98 8,120 18,183
tEREE North and South America 552 - 3,116 3,668
BUM Europe 13,870 - 2,910 16,780
24,387 98 14,146 38,631
LiEREEENETERRRNER The above information of cross-border claims discloses exposures to
1% - IRIBER 5% F /) FTAE b M 5% 55 B2 A0 foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived
MR SGEHFHEMEHERER - —RME according to the location of the counterparties after taking into account
ERXRFGEHFHNERSHETRBERN S — any transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to
FER - SETEER —HRITHEND another is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are
7 MEBTRENRTRAMER - 7 2% guaranteed by another party in a different country or if the claims are
REBHE-—BEREBEES —BER - on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in a

different country.
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3.2
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=l

A

T % B S B ()
15 B8R B ()

FH A 1 B0 I e 2 < 4 2 J B
R ()

(Z) 7%

BEFERRE—BOEREFRARDE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

3.2

Financial risk management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.8 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans

—g-%F -TThE

%6 Group 2010 2009
EBBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IE< Industrial, commercial and financial
—-MERRE - Property development 646,018 611,218
—MEKRE - Property investment 14,418,054 11,209,001
— SR E - Financial concerns 596,330 333,243
- RELL — Stockbrokers 116,122 52,265
—BEETER - Wholesale and retail trade 1,026,092 1,001,216
— Bl - Manufacturing 725,323 657,570
— B BRI RE — Transport and transport equipment 4,173,376 3,207,328
— REEEE - Recreational activities 246,262 157,565
— AR - Information technology 2,721 902
—HAf - Others 2,592,101 1,847,970
24,542,399 19,078,278
(PN Individuals
-BEIEEEEEE - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLA2ERE R3] Home Ownership Scheme, Private
RIHEEELRE Sector Participation Scheme and
BFER Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,264,406 1,398,373
-BEEHMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,790,753 10,462,174
- EAFRER — Credit card advances 3,654,569 3,173,620
—Hft - Others 8,572,323 6,510,864
24,282,051 21,545,031
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 48,824,450 40,623,309
25R%E G (F)) Trade finance (Note (a)) 4,042,434 3,136,776

EEBMIMERBER (F(2))

it

() B3Rz BIMERDERECHER
B&EELER]) BH 2 BREES Mo A
REBED HOMBONEE - UK
mEFRMEZEZER -

#418505,818,000 7L (Z T N F
144,756,000/57T) TR BB ZBHHME
BRI D ER [EE B AIMEA B E R
B o

EEBMMEANEREER TFTEBRF
BEBBAIMERZ B -

S

RA®E

Zl

TRl &
= ﬁ:yE

i

+
5

Al

Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (b)) 19,882,104 13,405,074

Note:
(@)

(b)

72,748,988 57,165,159

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines
issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

Trade financing loans not involving Hong Kong totalling HK$505,818,000
(2009: HK$144,756,000) are classified under Loans for use outside Hong
Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance

sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, Executive
Committee (“EXCO”), Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCQO”), and Treasury Investment and Risk Committee (“TIRC”). Risk
limits are set by products and by different types of risks. The risk limits
comprise a combination of notional, stop loss, sensitivity and
value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All trading positions are subject to daily
mark-to-market valuation. Risk Management and Control Department
(“RMCD?”) in Group Risk Division, as an independent risk management
and control unit, identifies, measures, monitors and controls the risk
exposures against approved limits and initiates specific actions to
ensure the overall and the individual market risks of the overall trading
portfolio and the individual trading instruments are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned

by the appropriate level of management of TIRC or by EXCO.

The launch of every new product is governed by the New Product
Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy in which the
relevant business units, supporting functions and Group Risk Division
review the critical requirements, risk assessment and resources plan.
The Group’s Internal Audit function performs regular independent
review and testing to ensure compliance with the market risk policies

and procedures by Treasury, RMCD and other relevant units.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”) which are subsidiaries of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”), run their treasury functions locally under their own set of limits
and policies and within the overall market risk limits set by DSB. RMCD
of DSB oversees and controls the market risk arising from the treasury
operation of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures

in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

As part of the management of market risk, the Group measures
market risks using various techniques commonly used by the
industry and control market risk exposures within major risks
limits set out by the Board. The major measurement techniques

used to measure and control market risk are outlined below.
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a “value at risk” methodology (“VaR”) to
its trading portfolio to estimate the market risk positions
held and the maximum losses expected, based on a
number of assumptions for various changes in market
conditions. The Board sets limits on the value at risk that
are acceptable for the Group which are monitored on a daily

basis by Group Risk Division.

VaR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on
the current portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses the “maximum” amount the Group might lose,
but only to a certain level of confidence which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. The VaR model assumes a
certain “holding period” until positions can be closed. It is
also based on the current mark-to-market value of the
positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of the
market risk factors over a period of 250 days (or over one
year). The Group applies these historical correlation and
volatilities in rates, prices, indices, etc. directly to its current
positions using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to
test the validity of the assumptions and parameters/factors

used in the VaR calculation.
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3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 i EBE () 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.1 JH HEHRZ i B3 b B (4) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(F) mBEfEE7 % (&) (a)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
() WEREEEE (i)  Value at risk (Continued)
FRINZ 7 AN TS Rt S B T m R 2 The use of this approach does not prevent losses outside
SFERELRFRBaLSERREZEK - of these limits in the event of more significant market
movements.
EmiZRREEARNERE 2 TSR R As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
ERHEEN—EBIRN EFEHRS risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
FIEEERBAE 2 EERE RN by the Board annually for all trading portfolio operations
HREBBERERDREESFEBKEL and allocated to business units. Actual exposures against
FI- WEEEH - SEERIERE limits, together with DSB’s VaR, is reviewed daily by Group
B|AFBIT 2 MIZRAREE - HHE Risk Division. Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading
SR REE c AEBERFERNEFR activities during the year was HK$3,319,000 (2009:
SEHzmsRBREEREER HK$5,727,000).

3,319,000 T (ZZE T N F
5,727,000 7T) °

AEEFEZCREARNEER 2SR The quality of the VaR model is continuously monitored by
BEELER  BEZEMSRREE back-testing the VaR results for trading books. All back-
B2 =S - fTEREARNREET testing exceptions are investigated, and all back-testing
KRERAEEERASER - results are reported to senior management.

@iy EAH (i) ~ Stress tests
B AR SRR SR Al gE IR 2 Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
BIERKZHFE o RERRIPETH losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
BAASEEE  RREREDAS - tests carried out by Group Risk Division include: risk factor
FE RIS RSB R e TR R 7 stress testing, where stress movements are applied to each
BE: REXBENAR - 5EAFA risk category; and ad hoc stress testing, which includes
BRI R N EEE N ER A MR applying possible stress events to specific positions or
HEITAIE o regions.
BHARZ ERESEBHIzEE The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior
BEEABREEZGERN - BENAEK management in each business unit and by the Board of
RET IR S E BRI R IBEEHIE Directors. The stress testing is tailored to the business and
RABRFRED - typically uses scenario analysis.
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3.

3.3

Financial risk management (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio

HE-Z-ZF+-HA=+-H HE-ZZNE+-A=1—H
E+=f8A IE+=fEA
12 months to 31 Dec 2010 12 months to 31 Dec 2009

¥ BE BI& ¥ 4] 54
£ Group Average High Low Average High Low
NI 2 Foreign exchange risk 1,438 3,056 427 2,040 6,375 620
Gilpde Interest rate risk 3,002 5,715 1,528 3,687 7,325 1,715
s R Equity risk 84 84 84 - - =
2 HER All risks 3,319 5,761 1,742 5,727 9,800 2,897

3.3.2 JF H BRATHR Z 17 53 ) B

AREEZRITHRT - MiEEAREZREMERE
HFRERMESZFER

(FA) MR ERETE 5%

EEFE Tﬁéﬂaﬁﬁéhé&ﬂﬁ
REGRUZAREEERREERS
ET$EW€@EHE%%%'%%%$
EEEHAEERTEPEEINERR -
NERBREABDESEREIREE 2R
o AEBETFEHETHEERBERARI
AR ZMEBENEENRBEEER
EN—BmEEsER TBEZ8ERED
i M BRI, - LB IR BT B A B RR A
HERBAFERAEBRITERER 2TS
[z o

7N £8 [ 35 B X SRR A Th 45 8L B BUEDE IART
ERERBITRP ZTHERR

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board, EXCO and TIRC, various management action
triggers (“MATs”) are established to provide early alert to
management on the different levels of exposures of the Group’s
banking book activities to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
and liquidity risk. Sensitivity analysis and stress testing covering
shocks and shifts in interest rates on the Group’s on-and
off-balance sheet positions, liquidity drift under institution-
specific and general market crisis scenarios are regularly
performed to gauge and forecast the market risk inherent in the

Group’s banking book portfolios against these MATs.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and

control the market risk of the banking book.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

The following descriptions on sensitivity analysis relate to DSB
and BCM.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and RMB) as
foreign exchange positions and foreign currency balances
arising from customer transactions are normally matched
against other customer transactions or transactions with
the market. Foreign exchange exposure in respect of MOP
and RMB arise mainly from the operation of overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and Mainland China. The net
exposure positions, both by individual currency and in
aggregate, are managed by the Treasury of the Group on a

daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, is normally
matched using foreign exchange forward contracts to

reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2010, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against US$ with all other variable held constant,
the profit after taxation for the year and equity would have
been HK$8 million higher (2009: HK$21 million higher),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain on translation
of US$ denominated financial assets compensated by
foreign exchange losses on translation of US$ denominated

financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against US$ with all other variables held constant, profit
after tax for the year and equity would have been HK$8

million lower (2009: HK$21 million lower).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(®)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate
risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins and net interest
income may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements arise.
The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest
rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored
daily by RMCD.

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with that set forth by the HKMA for reporting
interest rate risk exposures. In this framework, deposits
without a fixed maturity are assumed to be repayable and
to reprice on the next working day whereas loan
prepayments are not considered when allocating loan
balances into respective interest repricing time bands.

At 31 December 2010, if HK$ market interest rates had been
200 basis points higher and US$ market interest rates had
been 200 basis points higher with other variables held
constant, profit after tax over the next 12 months and
economic value would have been HK$77 million lower
(2009: HK$35 million lower) and HK$585 million lower
(2009: HK$189 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange and interest rate risk are on the
same basis for both 2009 and 2010.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the

Group’s investments in debt securities are also exposed to other

price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments could

change significantly depending on a variety of factors including

liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect

individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 S M ) B

TR AEBREEE D RIABEEEL 2

EREERAGESR -

3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by currency.

%8 Group BT En R 2ty Bt
“Z-Z%+-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2010 HKD usD MOP Others Total
EE Assets
Re RERITNER Cash and balances with banks 1,685,411 817,894 270,538 6,306,677 9,580,520
ERIT-Z2T=AR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months 140,000 3,109,320 - - 3,249,320
RIEEERENES Trading securities 5,358,361 198,877 - 11,638 5,568,876
BEAATEFHEREE Financial assets designated

SABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 647,260 4,980,945 - 156,263 5,784,468
fTHEERMT A Derivative financial instruments 29,007 289,885 - 333,846 652,738
FBEFREMES Advances and other accounts 61,536,516 12,408,250 2,530,580 6,833,421 83,308,767
At EES Available-for-sale securities 10,580,386 6,183,726 636 1,093,305 17,858,053
SRIEHES Held-to-maturity securities 28,406 5,785,797 1,494,925 1,805,326 9,114,454
SREERT Total financial assets 80,005,347 33,774,694 4,296,679 17,040,476 135,117,196
afs Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 406,824 985,515 246 130,962 1,523,547
fTEERMT A Derivative financial instruments 5,958 950,942 - 339,539 1,296,439
HIEEERANEE Trading liabilities 4,700,893 - - - 4,700,893
BFPER Deposits from customers 62,025,354 11,930,536 5,133,137 17,037,614 96,126,641
BREINERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,319,639 - 30,791 395,624 4,746,054
BREINELES Issued debt securities - 1,943,342 - - 1,943,342
BEES Subordinated notes - 4,644,192 - - 4,644,192
Hifk B kias Other accounts and accruals 2,850,978 513,442 385,743 248,883 3,999,046
SRAESH Total financial liabilities 74,309,646 20,967,969 5,549,917 18,152,622 118,980,154
BEABRLEREE Net on-balance sheet positions 5695701 12,806,725  (1,253,238)  (1,112,146) 16,137,042
BERBRIMNSRERTFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 4528576 (6,712,387 3 2,442,387 258,579
FERE Credit commitments 48,186,383 2,048,080 722,851 1,034,386 51,991,700

Y BERERIMNGFREEEFEEIZARNAEEEIN
EZBER I ESRITET RN FFHE -

*

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3.

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

£B Group BT e ik Hit 8%
“EENETZA=1—H As at 31 December 2009 HKD usb MOP Others Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNESR Cash and balances with banks 4,849,320 2,729,113 247,804 2915642 10,741,879
ERIT—Z2TZAR Placements with banks maturing

FHNER between one and twelve months 1,409,988 2,580,842 = 291,919 4,282 749
FIEEERGNES Trading securities 5,574,457 281,960 - 27,551 5,883,968
RENATETEAAES Financial assets designated

TABRNEREE at fair value through profit or loss 261,856 4,241,352 - 6,185 4,509,393
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 346,273 247 247 = 871 594,391
FBEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 51,710,083 9,508,621 1,953,201 4874175 68,046,080
AREEESR Available-for-sale securities 5,648,141 5,208,330 636 2,043917 12,901,024
FEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 41,969 5,707,953 1,100,627 1,951,733 8,802,282
SREEAF Total financial assets 69,842,087 30,505,418 3,302,268 12,111,993 115,761,766
BE Liabilities
RITEA Deposits from banks 45,053 1,195,287 63,476 131,320 1,435,136
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 168,935 811,898 = 237,392 1,218,225
RIEEER#MER Trading liabilities 2,068,300 = = = 2,068,300
REBER Deposits from customers 55,396,497 17,465,807 4,480,648 11,027,119 88,370,071
BETHNENE Certificates of deposit issued 1,612,015 - 100,066 347,929 2,060,010
BRITNERES Issued debt securities - - _ _ _
BREES Subordinated notes - 4,602,235 = = 4,602,235
Hifk B R BIR Other accounts and accruals 2,191,719 1,034,141 404,461 183,815 3,814,136
SHRBEA Total financial liabilities 61,482,519 25,109,368 5048651 11,927,575 103,568,113
BERBRRLFREFE Net on-balance sheet positions 8,359,568 5,396,050  (1,746,383) 184,418 12,193,653
BEAGRRIMNSE AR T Off-balance sheet net notional positions* (1,484,340) 841,816 - 702,229 59,705
EERE Credit commitments 36,265,552 719,456 829,480 250,702 38,065,190
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at

carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

=EAUL —-EHE
E-f Eik:3
ZEAZNT Over Over  FENE T8

8 Group 3 months 3 months 1 year Over Non-Interest &R
“E-B¥+t-A=t+-H At 31 December 2010 or less tolyear to5years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RERTHEH Cash and balances with banks 8,877,376 1,308 = = 701,836 9,580,520
ERT-ETZEAR Placements with banks maturing

Fill:CopcE between one and twelve months 528,664 2,720,656 = = - 3,249,320
BEEERENES Trading securities 2,266,983 2,544,018 662,226 214 95435 5,568,876
BENATEABEEEY Financial assets designated

AABRNEREAE at fair value through profit o loss 113,759 132,688 972,030 3,201,775 1,364,207 5,784,468
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 652,738 652,738
RBEFREMEE Advances and other accounts 63,032,715 4,039,215  9,314534 3,097,214 3,825,080 83,308,767
HHEES Available-for-sale securities 4410522 1,374,944 8,394,804 2,864,811 812,972 17,858,053
REISER Held-to-maturity securities 4,381,573 1,227,016 2,409,084 903,507 193274 9,114,454
SREEA Total financial assets 83,611,592 12,039,845 21,752,687 10,067,521 7,645,551 135,117,196
af Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 1,300,464 107,841 - - 115,242 1,523,547
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,206,439 1,296,439
KEEERGNER Trading liabilities 3,004,239 1,542,500 154,154 - - 4,700,893
BENATEHEEHET Deposits from customers designated

SABRNEPEN at fair value through profit or loss - - - - = -
EPREH Deposits from customers 79,595,913 11,911,003 1,485,406 - 3134319 96,126,641
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,640,184 2,498,325 556,924 50,621 - 4,746,054
BERETNEKES Issued debt securities 1,943,342 - - - - 1,943,342
REER Subordinated notes 1,165,995 - 1,200975 2,277,222 - 4,644,192
HifRE kR Other accounts and accruals 603,179 - - - 3395867 3,999,046
SREEAT Total financial liabilities 89,253,316 16,050,669 3,397,459 2,327,843 7,941,867 118,980,154
FESBEEEH (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (5,641,724)  (4,019,824) 18,355,228 7,739,678
RETEIRA N2 Effect of interest rate derivative contacts 2,494,376 2,484,441 (943,351)  (3,930,520)
FESQBEES (BHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)*  (3,147,348)  (1,535,383) 17,411,877 3,809,158
* R Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

i

CHEN S HEREENREEABERANEEN *

BENFEEET - KHENSHREERFA
FRBERI R @ R M 1T M ERITET A/ KM

o

on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. B )R B A PR () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.3 i EBE () 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 F @ Fr (#) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

ZEANE —Ep\F
B-F ERfE
=EAEUT Over Over RENE &8

£B Group 3months 3 months 1 year Over  Non-Interest ChH
ZEENETZA=T-H At 31 December 2009 or less tofyear  to5years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
BERERTROES Cash and balances with banks 9,822,408 - - - 919471 10,741,879
ERT-ET=EAM Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months 2,668,896 1,613,853 S S - 4282749
BEEERENES Trading securities 2503117 2,798,950 492,188 198 89,515 5,883,968
BENATEFEEAES Financial assets designated

TARRMEREE at fair value through profit or loss 52,329 156,014 1,001,598 2,579,730 719,722 4,509,393
TSI Derivative financial instruments - - - - 594,391 594,391
EREHRAMER Advances and other accounts 51,912,643 2538717 5367266 5219124 3008330 68,046,080
EHERS Available-for-sale securities 4828586 22396649 1763257  2,913481 999,051 12,901,024
FRIBES Held-to-maturity securities 4,958,272 820569 1,734,326 966,309 322806 8,802,282
SRHAEAH Total financial assets 76746251 10324752 10358635 11,678,842 6,653,286 115,761,766
ff Liabilities
ROEH Deposits from banks 1,104,802 81,366 - - 248968 1,435,136
fTEEBTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1218225 1,218,205
BEEERENAR Trading liabilities 1,932,085 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
BENATEFEEAETY Deposits from customers designated

STABRNEPER at fair value through profit or loss - - - = = -
EPER Deposits from customers 73301519 11354812 1,094,652 - 2619088 88,370,071
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,516,782 214,714 328514 - - 2,060,010
BEINERES Issued debt securities = = = - - =
kEEH Subordinated notes 2,326,470 - 1145786 1,129.979 - 4602235
AR RER Other accounts and accruals 313,001 - - - 3501135 3814136
ERAERT Total financial liabilties 80494659 11755822  2,600237  1,129979 7587416 103,568,113
MEGREERT (RERE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* (3,748408)  (1431,070) 7,758,398 10,548,863
MEGETAGN FE Effect of interest rate derivative contacts 4526950 3256917 1400523  (9,222,477)
MeGREEA (LH%)" Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 78542 1825847 9158921 1,326,386
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due
and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may
be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil

commitments to lend.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis to ensure that a
sufficiently high liquidity ratio relative to the statutory minimum is
maintained throughout the year. The average liquidity ratio of the
banking subsidiaries within the Group during the period was well above

the 25% minimum ratio set by the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Group’s Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALCO”)
regularly reviews the Group’s current loan and deposit mix and changes,
funding requirements and projections, and monitors the liquidity ratio
and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate limits on
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch are set and sufficient liquid assets
are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term funding

requirements.

The Group’s funding comprises mainly deposits of customers,
certificates of deposit and medium term notes issued. The issuance of
certificates of deposit and medium term notes helps lengthen the
funding maturity and reduce the maturity mismatch. Short-term
interbank deposits are taken on a limited basis and the Group is a net

lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these
are key periods for liquidity management. The starting point for those
projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial
liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets. The
cash flow projections also take into account unmatched medium-term
assets, the level and type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage
of overdraft facilities and the impact of contingent liabilities such as

standby letters of credit and guarantees.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant

HrEBEER maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
BIE reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
-fAANE  ZAANE —EHE
DHEE B=@RHNT E-f ERE
Repayable —fEEZAT 3 months or Over Over BERE

£8 Group on Upto lesshutover 3 months 1 year Over REHAH fit
ZE-ZEFZA=+-H  At31December 2010 demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
&E Assets
Re RERTNES Cash and balances with banks 5785073 3,743,903 50,236 1,308 = - - 9580520
ERT-ETZEAR Placement with banks maturing

HBOER between one and twelve months - - 528,665 2,720,655 = = - 3249320
FEEERRNES Trading securities - 12,999 2,246,521 2,544,018 662,226 1,677 95,435 5,568,876
EENATEHEAEES  Financial assets at fair value

TABRNERAE through profit or loss - 94,213 19,544 132,688 972,039 3,203,153 1,362,831 5,784,468
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 196,339 121,209 79,143 105,273 150,774 - 652,738
RESHRAMEE Advances and other accounts 6,850,790 5940649 5426321 8758952  27,393461 27685811 1,243,783 83,308,767
TREEES Available-for-sale securities - 2,215,800 1,994,239 1,395,249 8,574,895 2,864,808 812972 17,858,053
HEFHES Held-to-maturity securities - 310,651 471,206 2,038,828 4531512 1,762,107 - 0114454
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1558791 1,558,791
RREHEERE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 60,248 60,248
BE Goodil - - - - - - 050092 950,092
EWEE Intangible assets - - - - - = 114,832 114,832
NEREMEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3008105 3,008,105
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 604,648 604,648
EHEEE Current income tax assets - - - 1,816 - - - 1,816
ERHEBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - 1,164 5,406 - - 6,570
RESREBL Value of in-force long-term life

BHREEE assurance business - - - - - - 1318316 1,318,316
BEAT Total assets 12644863 12514644 10,858,031 17,673,821 42244872 35674330 11,130,953 142,741,514
8f Liabilities
RER Deposits from banks 27410 679,39 - 582,999 233,199 - - 1523547
fTE2RIA Derivative financial instruments - 114,848 13,940 42,504 207,456 827,691 - 1,296,439
RIEEERBNER Trading liabilities - 2177405 826,834 1,542,499 154,155 - - 4,700,893
S E Deposits fom customers 629 0696 19667337 12816953 1,485,406 - - 96,126,641
EEBEIEE Certificates of deposit issued - 363,964 1,047,991 2,656,553 626,925 50,621 - 4,746,054
EEINERES Issued debt securities - - - - 1943342 - - 1943342
kEEH Subordinated notes - - - 1165995  1,00975 2,277,222 - 4544192
EfER AR Other accounts and accruals 633,495 517,239 651,840 657,289 18,441 - 1,520,742 3,999,046
EHERE Current income tax liabiltties - - - 89,873 - - - 89,873
EXHESR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - 375 89,173 - - 89,548
HRERRANREREAZ  Liabilties to policyholders under

8f long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 5928783 5928783
BEAT Total liabilities 28,407,154 38,264,091 22,207,942 19,555,040 6,049,072 3,155,534 7,449,525 125,088,358
FRBMHEE Net liquidity gap (15,762,291)  (25,749,447)  (11,349,911)  (1,881,219) 36,195,800 32,518,796 3,681,428 17,653,156
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. AR B B () 3.
3.4 BG4S R (#E)
3.4.2 FH H 55 (4%)

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

—BANE  ZEANME
B=EAZHAT E-E
DEEE  -BAZNT  3monthsor Over —ELE2T%

£H Group Repayable Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year RENE  E3EHRY Aif
“ZENFt-A=T-H At 31 December 2009 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Indefinite Total
2E Assets
ReRESTHES Cash and balances with banks 2,801,468 7,888,470 51,941 - - - - 10741879
ERI-ET2EAR Placement with banks maturing

Bl lifesy between one and twelve months - - 266889 1,613,853 - - - 474
REERRBNES Trading securties - 199995 2065605 2,806,548 492,174 30,136 80515 5883968
BAENATEERLEY Financial assets at fair value

TABRNEREE through proft or loss - 44,575 7,754 156,014 985665 2,595,664 719,721 4509,393
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 197,480 30,938 5,117 195,911 117,285 - 504,391
EEERRAMER Advances and other accounts 6,166,395 4,746,153 3,953,468 7006823 20513549 24,967,452 692,220 68,046,080
HLERS Available-for-sale securities - 688,512 3,279,193 2,650,169 2,370,620 2,913,479 999,051 12,901,024
REHEES Held-to-maturty securities - 505,136 %52 151462 4205299 2,469,033 - 88028
BENIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1,299,257 1,299,257
AREHIEREE Investments in jointly controlled entiies - - - - - - 60,791 60,791
B Goodwill - - - - - - 950,992 950,992
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 139,030 139,030
EREBEREE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 24653 2426531
REns Investment properties - - - - - - 568,659 568,659
HEHEAE Current income tax assets - - - 65,283 - - - 65,263
ERREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 78178 - - 78178
RESREBZERREEE  Value of inforce long-term lfe

assurance business - - - - - - 1,225,668 1,225,668

AEAH Total assets 8,967,863 142702321 12,629,167 15602924 28841396 33,003,049 9171435 122,576,155
8 Liabilties
RAER Deposits from banks 109,127 349,816 9,561 733,985 232,647 - - 1,435,136
EERIE Derivative financial instruments - 77,618 31,254 35,719 163,325 910,309 - 1218225
FEEERRNAR Trading liabilities - 578,988 1,353,097 104,930 31,285 - - 2,068,300
RFE Deposits from customers 26496323 27064074 22104786 11,410,240 1,004,648 - - 88,370,071
BEANEE Certificates of deposit issued - 184,619 442,213 366,734 1,086,444 - - 2,060,010
BEANERES Issued debt securities - = - = = = = -
fkERH Subordinated notes - - - 1163235 230902 1,129,078 - 460223
KB RER Other accounts and accruals 1,569,932 449,677 362,888 483,943 346,068 - 581,628 3,814,136
HEfEaE Current income tax liabilties - - - 19,109 - - - 19,109
BRENBEE Deferred income tax liabiliies - - - 311 15,055 - - 15,366
HRERBADREREAZ  Liablities to policyholders under

EL long-term insurance contracts - - - - - - 4794792 4794792
BEAT Total liabilities 28,175,382 28,904,792 24,323,799 14,318,206 5,258,494 2,040,287 5376420 108,397,380
EliElizs Net iquidty gap (19207519 (14634471 (1169463 1284718 23582902 31082762 3795015 14178775
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose and
included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period, the relevant
balance, analysed based on the remaining period to contractual

maturity, is shown as follows:

-fAANE  ZAANE —EHE
DHEE B=@RHLNT E-f E3ik:3
Repayable —fAZMT 3 months or Over Over RELNE
Upto lesshutover 3 months 1 year Over REHAH fit
&8 Group demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
ZB-ZETZA=t-RA  At31December 2010
FRERER Certificates of deposit held included in:
ARNEES Available-for-sale securities - - 23,591 23614 - - 47,205
“EENEFZA=T-H  At31 December 2009
FREBER : Certificates of deposit held included in:
RLERS Available-for-sale securities - - = = - = =

BERABHREMERNEEMZZENELHSE
BEEE+THER - HRETHNEBRZKESR
T\ﬁ%iﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁ&?\@*ﬁﬁu CHHERITME - T2
FEMERL A EE - THRENFEMAEESR
Meen - @m@iﬂﬂﬁéﬂaﬁm g

BEHBENIHERAGENRANEREP 2
SFRAENESN  RHGEERBES RERM
RREXSHAAZRRNEZAE -

AEE—RIEHE=FSREESEHESH
RE&E® @ ERERMERERZETEIIEN
MEBESHRELNEENSE - HRBRZEE
AERFESKIERBESAES - ALARE
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The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of
the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types.
An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also

increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to

changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the

inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis

include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

° Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;
° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

interest rate swaps; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected maturities

B &0 (4) (Continued)
—-BASINT -fEANLLE =EAMUL -5 L BENE

8 Group Upto 2= Zt=fiA Pk Over H
ZB-BF+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2010 1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5years Total
FTETRRER Non-derivative cash flow
BfE Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 705,775 12,620 705,774 136,982 - 1,561,151
CYSVEE Deposits from customers 62,785,736 20,875,728 11,835,328 1,604,691 - 97,101,483
KEEERGNER Trading liabilities 2,177,500 827,243 1,547,355 153,085 - 4,705,183
BR{IMEHE Certificates of deposit issued 335,611 1,024,428 2,765,929 643,373 53,604 4,822,945
BEANERES Issued debt securities 8,096 - 24025 2,007,654 - 2,039,775
#EEK Subordinated notes - 106,976 1,268,652  1,795729  2,695001 5,866,448
HRARBANRERBAZAR Liabilities to policyholders under

long-term insurance contracts 24,299 48,427 322,780 2,849,886 19,624,804 22,870,196
EafE Other liabilities 1,276,098 426,580 616,038 2,880 - 2,321,59%
BfEBE Total liabilities 67,313,115 23,322,002 19,085,881 9,194,280 22,373,499 141,288,777
TEIARER Derivative cash flow
RRFELEETEERIA Derivative financial instruments

settled on net basis 7,034 8,311 13,303 121,660 10,983 161,291
REBLEEZTEERTIA Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
Hitas Total outflow 22,035,033| [ 11,800,162 | 15,062,574] | 2,183,446 951,378 | | 52,932,793
MABE Total inflow (23,044,627) [(11,932,748) |(14,896,237), | (1,165,290) (873,256)| {(51,912,158)

(109,304)  (132,586) 166,337 1,018,156 78,122 1,020,635
—f@AEMUT —MEANRE Z=M@EAMNE —EpF BENE

£E Group Upto ZE=fAf Zf+=fEA ZRE Over At
ZEENETZA=T-H As at 31 December 2009 imonth  1-3months 3-12months  1-5 years 5 years Total
FITEIER SR Non-derivative cash flow
RE Liabilties
BOFH Deposits from banks 716,212 22,209 742,800 235,188 - 1,716,429
RPER Deposits from customers 54234903 22,323,747 11,484,862 1,122,343 - 89,165,855
BEEERENEE Trading liabilities 579,000 1,358,358 105,165 31,355 - 2,073,878
BETNTRE Certificates of deposit issued 191,705 448,145 393,790 1,079,481 - 2,113,121
BEANERES Issued debt securities = = = = = =
{EERE Subordinated notes - 87,238  1,255208 2854368 1,797,200 5,994,113
HRARBENRERAAZAR Liabilities to policyholders under

long-term insurance contracts 31,414 63,584 296,514 2,703,091 16,384,070 19,478,673
AR fE Other liabilities 2,725,047 199,926 372,604 331,512 8211 3,637,300
REAR Total liabilities 58,478,281 24503227 14,651,033 8,357,338 18,189,490 124,179,369
TETERSR Derivative cash flow
REFEEE 2 fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments

settled on net basis 8,549 1,053 (5,462) 176,731 36,742 217,613
REEEEVTEERIA Derivative financial instruments

settled on a gross basis
ML Total outflow 42,489,472 | | 16,358,494 | | 16,695,729 2,736,267 1,294,473 | | 79,574,435
EARE Total inflow (42,599,101)| [(16,336,126)| |(16,423,678)| | (1,394,125)| | (572,498)| |(77,325,528)

(109,629) 22,368 272,051 1,342,142 721,975 2,248,907
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual or expected maturities
(Continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in the
course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to banks;
and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course of
business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable within
one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and treasury bills
have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group would also be able
to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling securities and

accessing additional funding sources such as asset-backed markets.

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

° Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

° Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
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3. WAES R B A B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
34 WMEBIE S m B () 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 HERMFEINEH (#) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
—F LR —F % BEUE
£5 Group No later ERE Over B
—E-ZF+-H=1+—H At 31 December 2010 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRAE Loan commitments 47,723,006 2,602,132 360,870 50,686,008
R AR REME RS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- &5, - Acceptances 3,975 - - 3,975
-ERRERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 304,210 56,441 83,571 444,222
- REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 743,794 106,719 - 850,513
BEHIFR Forward forward deposits placed 6,982 - - 6,982
4B TH 4R Operating lease commitments 87,749 101,470 63,298 252,517
BRI Capital commitments 115,922 - - 115,922
A&t Total 48,985,638 2,866,762 507,739 52,360,139
—E PR —&EPA1B RENRE
& Group No later ERF Over =H
—EEAF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2009 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
B U Loan commitments 36,065,726 757,991 - 36,823,717
R AR REME RS Guarantees, acceptances and
other financial facilities
- &N - Acceptances 7,434 - - 7,434
-ERRERERT - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 507,094 58,200 83,572 648,866
- REREEERT - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 523,665 - - 523,665
AR R Forward forward deposits placed 61,508 - - 61,508
R TR I Operating lease commitments 86,430 115,061 33,392 234,883
BINEHE Capital commitments 92,920 = = 92,920

a5t Total 37,344,777 931,252 116,964 38,392,993
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(@)  Determination of fair value

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices, dealer price quotations or broker
quotes from Bloomberg and Reuters. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price;
the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the

current ask price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If the
above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being
inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a
wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in bid-offer spread

or there are few recent transactions.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. In
these techniques, fair values are estimated from observable data
in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to
estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other
valuation techniques using inputs (for example LIBOR yield curve,
FX rates, volatilities, comparable credit spreads, and counterparty

spreads) existing at the end of the reporting period.
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Financial risk management (Continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models including
present value techniques and option pricing models for
determining the fair values of non-standardised financial
instruments of lower complexity such as options or interest rate
and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into
models are generally market-observable. The fair value of
interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward rates
while other derivatives are valued using appropriate pricing
models, such as Black-Scholes option pricing model. Structured
interest rate derivatives are measured using appropriate option

pricing models, for example, the Black-Derman-Toy model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit risk
spreads in determining the current value for its derivative liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a
gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the

liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement procedures
applied are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take

consideration of the current market developments.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(®)

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on

whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable

or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained

from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the

Group’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have

created the following fair value hierarchy:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. This level includes listed equity
securities and debt instruments on exchange (for
example, Hong Kong Stock Exchange, London Stock
Exchange, Frankfurt Stock Exchange, New York Stock
Exchange) and exchanges traded derivatives like futures
(for example, Nasdaqg, S&P 500).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices). This level includes the majority of the over-the-
counter derivative contracts, and issued structured debt.
The sources of input parameters include LIBOR yield
curve, or Bloomberg and Reuters for counterparty credit

risk.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity investments and debt instruments with

significant unobservable components.

The hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when

available. The Group considers relevant and observable market

prices in its valuations where possible.
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3. R AE B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
35 ambEERAMRZATE @) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) NFEER(E) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BAVEFECEEREE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
%
—2-%F Group E1R Fof E3 &%
+=ZA=+—H At 31 Dec 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AAFEEAE Financial assets at fair value through
SEETABZNEMEE  profit or loss
FIEEE A% Held for trading
ERES Debt securities - 5,473,441 - 5,473,441
B ES Equity securities 85,161 10,274 = 95,435
PTAETA Derivatives - 503,118 - 503,118
EBENATEFERER Designated at fair value through
St AR profit or loss
BISHES Debt securities - 4,421,638 - 4,421,638
ST Equity securities 733,447 262,383 367,000 1,362,830
FEAEEHOITETE  Derivatives held for hedging - 149,620 - 149,620
AtEEzeREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BB Debt securities - 17,049,159 - 17,049,159
RSB E Equity securities 228,507 580,387 - 808,894
BAF(EFEZEEAR  Total assets measured at fair value 1,047,115 28,450,020 367,000 29,864,135
NAFEFEEEES Financial liabilities at fair value
STABRNERAR through profit or loss
RIEEEAR Held for trading - 4,700,893 - 4,700,893
EBENATEFEER Designated at fair value through
FEHETABE profit or loss - 1,666,701 - 1,666,701
FTETA Derivatives - 295,973 = 295,973
BFAEBESTWITETE  Derivatives held for hedging - 1,000,466 - 1,000,466
BAFEFEZEEAR  Total liabilities measured at fair value - 7,664,033 - 7,664,033
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) NFEER(E) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
&
—ETNF Group ERFE FEoM FEIM A5t
+=-A=+—8 At 31 Dec 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ARFEFEEHE Financial assets at fair value through
FFABEMEREE  profit or loss
RIEEER®R Held for trading
BT 5 Debt securities - 5,794,453 - 5,794,453
RS Equity securities 76,290 13,225 - 89,515
PTETE Derivatives - 463,996 - 463,996
?bﬁ ARATEF=ER Designated at fair value through
""""" FFAER profit or loss
Laﬁ% EH Debt securities - 3,789,672 - 3,789,672
S EEH Equity securities 250,358 150,363 319,000 719,721
BAEBEYFNITETEA  Derivatives held for hedging - 130,395 - 130,395
AL EreREE Available-for-sale financial assets
BIEES Debt securities - 11,942,883 - 11,942,883
T B A Equity securities 337,973 620,168 = 958,141
BAFEFECEER  Total assets measured at fair value 664,621 22,905,155 319,000 23,888,776
UATFEFEEEES Financial liabilities at fair value
SABRNERAR through profit or loss
TT(’FEE?%L Held for trading - 2,068,300 - 2,068,300
BENATEFEZE Designated at fair value through
& @ﬁ TABZ® profit or loss = 1,666,576 = 1,666,576
PTETHR Derivatives - 309,111 - 309,111
BFAEBESRNITETR  Derivatives held for hedging - 909,114 - 909,114
BATEFECEERS Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,953,101 = 4,953,101

AEREIPHEEZCRMEERIREN —
MR AR ERIERES
T TFF+_A=+—HZAVFEAR
367,000,000/ 7T (ZZZT N4 :
HERERZREBA

/EJE)

ZATEBEEERME

AIASRBRER

FEEFN

319,000,000

The financial asset classified as a Level 3 asset represents
investment in the equity security of an insurance company with a
fair value of HK$367,000,000 as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$319,000,000). It is valued on the basis of the appraisal value
of the life assurance business of the insurance company.
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3. R AE B () 3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
35 ambEERAMRZATE @) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) NFEER(E) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

TRIRE T ERIBRREFEIRFFTEH The following table shows the sensitivity of Level 3 measurements

BRRE : to some possible alternative assumptions:

R 2R IR R R R

Reflected in income statement
HREE EE&L BEEM
Carrying Favourable  Unfavourable
TERR Main assumptions value changes changes
KA BRI N0.1% Increase in investment returns by 0.1% 389,000 22,000 =
BEBHRD0.1% Decrease in investment returns by 0.1% 346,000 - (21,000)
X N10% Increase in expenses by 10% 359,000 - (8,000)
F R 10% Decrease in expenses by 10% 376,000 9,000 =
i/ BIREEMN10% Increase in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 357,000 - (10,000)
i/ B IRER10% Decrease in lapse/surrenders etc. by 10% 378,000 11,000 -
T/ BIREIEN.0% Increase in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 367,000 = -
W/ BRERD1.0% Decrease in mortality/morbidity by 1.0% 367,000 = -
2B Bt 3 R 32 101.0% Increase in risk discount rate by 1.0% 302,000 - (65,000)
BB A3 401.0% Decrease in risk discount rate by 1.0% 448,000 81,000 -
EBEUAFEFTE
BES5A
BEHNEREE
Financial assets
designated at fair value
through profit or
loss
ERMES
Equity securities
—E2—FTF—-H—H At 1 January 2010 319,000
NFE W = Fair value gain 48,000

—E—ZEF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 367,000

BIEEEHERNEEN —Z—Z 4 Total gain for the year included in profit or loss
+=—A=+—BEBZFHE3H for Level 3 assets held at 31 December 2010
BENFEE RS 48,000
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in the
Group’s statement of financial position at their fair value. For
disclosure purposes, these fair values have been estimated by

discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current

mihat © market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, if applicable.
ARMEE AEE
Carrying value Fair value
—E-BF C—ZTHhE CZE-FF —TITHEF

&M@ Group 2010 2009 2010 2009
CREE Financial assets
e RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 9,580,520 10,741,879 9,583,653 10,741,970
ERIT—E+EAR Placements with banks maturing

El}- L gYE N between one and twelve months 3,249,320 4,282,749 3,262,438 4,291,301
REER Advances to customers

BAER Loans to individuals

-ERAF - Credit cards 3,793,409 3,289,460 3,793,538 3,289,581

- RIBER - Mortgages 21,904,593 18,972,569 21,913,861 18,982,207

- HAh - Others 3,945,998 3,283,575 3,937,833 3,286,840

TEER Loans to corporate entities

-EHEXR — Term loans 17,630,333 11,317,643 17,630,498 11,317,787

- RIBEXN - Mortgages 10,523,436 8,088,435 10,528,761 8,095,166

-BIHME — Trade finance 4,548,252 3,281,532 4,548,282 3,263,180

- HAh - Others 10,402,967 8,931,945 10,397,969 8,919,961
RITER Advances to banks - 150,000 = 150,120
BREEER M E WA Investments in securities included in

BRlzBAREE loans and receivable category 7,717,760 8,799,348 7,167,315 7,771,125
BFEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 9,114,454 8,802,282 8,688,469 8,090,515
TRIBE Financial liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 1,523,547 1,435,136 1,526,492 1,444 477
BEPER Deposits from customers 1,296,439 88,370,071 1,305,482 88,341,466
BBETHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 4,280,328 1,539,220 4,277,768 1,535,369
BEITHNERES Issued debt securities 1,943,342 = 1,950,690 =
BEBR Subordinated notes 3,443,217 3,456,449 3,411,112 3,316,603
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

()
(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

Placements with and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

Loans and advances to customers

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents
the discounted amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held to maturity
categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets and loans
and receivables is based on market prices or broker/dealer
price quotations. Where this information is not available,
fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.

Debt securities in issue including subordinated notes issued

For those notes where a quoted market prices are not
available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity to estimate fair value.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking and
insurance regulators in the markets where the entities within the
Group operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

3.6.1 Banking business

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and MEVAS Bank Limited
(“Mevas”), and another overseas banking subsidiary, D.A.H. Hambros
Bank (Channel Islands) Limited (“DAHCI”), are monitored regularly by
the Group’s management, employing techniques based on the
guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the
HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with

the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires DSB and Mevas to maintain a ratio of total
regulatory capital to the risk-weighted amount (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) at or above the internationally agreed minimum of 8%. These
banking subsidiaries’ regulatory capital as managed by the Group’s

management is divided into two tiers:

° Core capital: share capital, profit and loss, and reserves created
by appropriations of retained earnings. The book value of goodwiill
and other intangible assets is deducted in arriving at core capital;
and

° Supplementary capital: qualifying perpetual and term
subordinated debts, collectively assessed impairment
allowances, regulatory reserve, and fair value gains arising on
revaluation of holdings of land and buildings and available-for-

sale equities and debt securities.

Investment in subsidiaries, significant investments in non-subsidiary
companies and shares, exposures to connected companies and
investments in other banks’ equity are deducted from core capital and

supplementary capital to arrive at the regulatory capital.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.1 Banking business (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognized by
the HKMA or other principles as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were

on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking Regulatory

Commission (“CBRC?”) respectively for supervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy

ratio) at or above the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such

as the Securities and Futures Commission.



B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

3. HRE R B ()
3.6 HEAREH ()
3.6.2 R EH

RAEEZ MBREARKLEHNEETSA -
iR EERBRERTERRAGN - %Pﬁ%
REMARFERNZ B BENEE - XWERE
i{ﬂﬂﬁvf?i’&ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ$£ﬂ? o AEREZHKE

AAREBERBREREA D TS ZRRE
ﬁ EREE  BEETEHZEMNEE

ﬁEIEB\,\éﬁﬁfaa BENRLAHE
Z AR UHERBERT2ETERER - &
BRZER A"TZTEH ENERABRER
E - MEEEERIRTEAELER -

REE  AEBZHBASRRARRKHABR
RRERRAZREENENEESIBAKEM
ERzBEMRETERRAF (B8 ‘;’%1%
&) ROIETE - o RREEETTREAQA
TERREMNENIR  RIEELERET - E‘%%E'J
R EZ B BE AR K B] B H R 4 B T AR 0 3
EZBE ° %:%—fi&:%%ﬁﬂi NN

37 Z%iLEW

AEFBRHRFEEA  ZFEA  XEE REE
BRHARBTE=F  ERFRAEERTF
ZEMTEFERDEREERE - BHEUZES
MHAZEE XAIIAREB 2 MHHREK - Ut
ERBASIBAKEREREREE ZRAR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)
3.6.2 Insurance business

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries operate,
the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum amount and type
of capital that must be held by each of the subsidiaries in addition to
their insurance liabilities. The minimum required capital must be
maintained at all times throughout the year. The Group’s subsidiaries
are subject to insurance solvency regulations in the markets in which
they issue insurance and investment contracts, and where they have
complied with the local solvency regulations. The Group has embedded
in its asset and liability management framework the necessary tests to
ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations. The
solvency requirement of each insurance company in each market is
subject to local requirements, which may differ from jurisdiction to

jurisdiction.

In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for the Group’s life
insurance subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited, is
determined by the Group’s appointed actuary in accordance with the
Hong Kong Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) Regulation. In
addition, dynamic solvency test is also required by Insurance Authority
to identify the solvency position of the company on a going concern
basis and plausible threats to satisfactory financial condition. For both

2010 and 2009, the results of dynamic solvency test are satisfactory.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are not
included in the Group’s financial statements. These services could give

rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-administration.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk
3.8.1 Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant
factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims are epidemics
or wide spread changes in lifestyle, resulting in earlier or more claims

than expected.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future
premiums, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the
insurance risk accepted. For contracts with discretionary participating
features, the participating nature of these contracts results in a
significant portion of the insurance and financial risks being shared with

the insured party.

The Group charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all insurance
contracts without a fixed term. It has the right to alter these charges
based on its mortality experience and hence minimise its exposure to
mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in charges and market
or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its

mitigating effect.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and

reinsurance arrangements.

The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced
portfolio and is based on a portfolio of similar risks over a number of
years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces the variability of the
outcome. Premium pricing is set at an appropriate level that
corresponds with the underlying exposure of the risks underwritten.
The Group has a company-wide retention limit on any single life insured.
The Group reinsures the excess of the insured benefit over the limit for
standard risks (from a medical point of view) under an excess of loss

reinsurance arrangement.

Within the insurance process, concentrations of risk may arise where a
particular event or series of events could impact heavily upon the
Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single
insurance contract or through a small number of related contracts, and

relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.

The Group is subject to concentration risk arising from accidents or
epidemics on policies taken out by its policyholders. Therefore, to cover
the risk, catastrophe reinsurance arrangements have been made by

the Group.
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.2 Sources of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefit payments

and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium
receipts for long-term insurance contracts arises from the
unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and

the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Group uses appropriate industry tables of standard mortality
adjusted according to the type of contract being written. An
investigation into the actual experience of the Group is carried out
annually. Realistic estimates of future mortality is made based on
standard industry tables adjusted for the Group’s overall experience

with appropriate margins.

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance contracts

Estimates are made in calculating the future insurance liabilities under

insurance contracts.
Key assumptions are summarised below:

— Mortality
An appropriate table of standard mortality is chosen with adjustment

for the Group’s own experience with appropriate margins.

— Valuation interest rates

The valuation interest rates as at 31 December 2010 range from 1.60%
10 4.17% (2009: 2.45% to 4.48%) depending on type of plans and varies
with changes in the appropriate risk free rates.

Change in assumption

The valuation interest rates change with variations in the appropriate
risk free rates at each end of the reporting period. Valuation interest
rates in 2010 changed by -1.04% to -0.3% (2009: -1.36% to +0.69%)
depending on types of plans from 31 December 2009 to 31 December
2010. The impact of changes in valuation rates and other minor changes
in actuarial assumption increased the future insurance liabilities under
insurance contracts as at 31 December 2010 and reduced the net profit
for 2010 by HK$222,946,000 (2009: decreased the future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts and increased the net profit for 2009
by HK$267,821,000).
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3.  Financial risk management (Continued)
3.8 Insurance risk (Continued)

3.8.3 Assumptions and sensitivity of long-term insurance contracts
(Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The follow table represents the sensitivity of value of future insurance
liabilities under insurance contracts to movements in the key
assumptions used in the estimation of future insurance liabilities under

insurance contracts.

—E-%F —ETNF
2010 2009

RIRRE ARERE

SEED BREEE

Change in Change in
2HEH future FRAEE future FE 2 E)
Change insurance Change in insurance Change in
in variable liabilities net profit liabilities net profit
FTRE( Worsening of mortality 1% +2,082 -2,077 +2,926 -2,915

EAERUESN Decrease in valuation

interest rates 0.1% +44,984 - 44,838 +51,599 - 51,511

RS ERR LR EDT ARG
BEHTRMEL BB E - BERTATES
B TE TR AR x5
DRMESD  KWADEXREC LD -

The above analyses are based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated — for
example, change in interest rate and change in market values; change

in lapses and future mortality.
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4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies
4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the Group
arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable

in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has
been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of recoverable
amounts. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and

actual loss experience.
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4.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets during
2008 and 2009, the Group had witnessed observable declines in
market liquidity and the range of market quotations for certain
securities have widened. The Group applies judgment in selecting
the most appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on
its assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent
observable transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing

source, and the value of securities of a similar nature.

(c)  Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be
generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates which
could be caused by major changes in market conditions and
outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values of such
assets. In the event that the expected recoverable amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than their
carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be

recognised.
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V1 5 BOR IR 2 & s st A 4.  Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

Br (50 applying accounting policies (Continued)

B Al R B AR () 4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(T) REZERESZBENIREEE (d)  Value of long-term life assurance business

AERASREB 2B MREBERAE Estimates are made in calculating the value of long-term life

H&ET o assurance business.

FEZBEBANAT : Key assumptions are summarised below:

() FETEX -BESEIERERTCERR ()  Mortality. An appropriate base table of standard mortality
A WIRAR ARG 2 B EH is chosen with adjustment for the Company’s own
) experience.

(i) BHIRE - BRIRE BB.75% (ZFZT N (i)  Discount rate. A discount rate of 8.75% (2009: 9%) being
F:9%)  AERBRAENEE 2 the risk free rate plus an appropriate equity risk premium is
= B R B o applied.

(i) "EER - BT TEIETEEEE @iy Investment return. Investment return assumption ranges
ZEBRE  FHEEHRBENTFEX from 4.75% to 6.5 % per annum (2009: 4.75% to 6.75%
475%E6.5%(— T NE  £X per annum) depending on risk characteristics of
4.75% %6.75%) ° investments matching the liabilities of different plans.

(iv) BRIE - BRIEIBEERLS (iv) Renewal expenses. Renewal expenses based on actual
MBERKEBTEMETE © experience and with reference to future business plan are

adopted.

Rk &t e - Change in assumptions:

AEBTFHRNAKAZRE - TREE Assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and adjusted based

A% 4 B 70 35 FRORI /B () FA 2 o on the actual experience and new forecasts.

RIEE DT Sensitivity analysis:

TR R ASEELEE RS The following table represents the sensitivity of value of long-

RSB EBEECETERREH 2K term life assurance business to movements in the key

JEE o assumptions used in the estimation of value of long-term life

assurance business.
—2-2f “ZTNF
2010 2009

ZERRE ZEHRE

BELE EBEZE

Change in Change in

value of value of
£ long-term FRAEE long-term A EE
Change in  life assurance Change in life assurance Change in
variable business net profit business net profit

BRI 7 S Increase in discount rate +1% (142,099) (141,892) (101,705) (101,499)

BT EzRE Worsening of mortality +1% (16,901) (16,900) (8,864) (8,863)

KB E W T’ Decrease in investment return - 0.1% (61,641) (61,481) (69,408) (69,116)

BERX Iz m Increase in renewal expense +10% (10,937) (10,810) (11,279) (11,121)
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4.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(e)  Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising

from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance
contracts is dependent on estimates made by the Group.
Valuation interest rates are determined from a prudent
assessment of the yield on existing assets and the expected yield
taking into account the Insurance Companies (Determination of
Long Term Liabilities) Regulation. Estimates are made as to the
expected number of deaths for each of the years in which the
Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases these estimates on
standard industry mortality tables that reflect recent historical
mortality experience with margin, adjusted where appropriate to
reflect the Group’s own experience. The estimated number of
deaths determines the value of the benefit payments and the
value of the valuation premiums. A main source of uncertainty is
that epidemics such as AIDS, SARS and wide ranging lifestyle
changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise habits, could
result in future mortality being significantly worse than in the past
for the age groups in which the Group has significant exposure to
mortality risk offset by continuing improvements in medical care

and social conditions.

For contracts without fixed terms, the Group will be able to
increase mortality risk charges in future years in line with emerging

mortality experience.

Estimate of critical iliness related morbidity is based on industry
data with margin, adjusted where appropriate to reflect the
Group’s own experience. The uncertainty is greater for mortality
due to a smaller pool of insured, shorter history of the coverage,
medical advances and change in treatment as well as wide-
ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise
habits.

The Group reserves the right to increase the premium rates in
future years for all contracts providing such coverage during the

premium term.
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Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgment, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but

also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease),
the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as investment property. The

Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and

receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (‘HTM”) and loans
and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end of the year and
up to the date of the approval of the financial statements of the
Group. Assessment for any impairment, on individual and
collective basis, is made with reference to the financial strength
and credit rating of each issuer, industry development and market
conditions, and historical loss experience of a portfolio of similar
credits provided by rating agencies. Apart from the investments
in structured investment vehicles (“SIV”), and those HTM and LNR
debt securities having been assessed as impaired, the Group has
concluded that there are no objective or specific indications that
any of its other AFS, HTM and LNR securities is impaired. Except
for the impairment losses recognised on the SIV investments,
those HTM and LNR debt securities (which had been written off
as at 31 December 2010 and 2009), no impairment allowance is
provided on other AFS, LNR and HTM securities.

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances - for example, selling
an insignificant amount close to maturity — it will be required to
reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The investments

would therefore be measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

42

Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in

applying accounting policies (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting

policies (Continued)
(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgment is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to
be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In
making this judgment, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement

experiences and advice from legal counsel.

(e)  Resolution of the Lehman Brothers incident

On 15 September 2008, Lehman Brothers (“Lehman”) filed
Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection to the United States
Bankruptcy Court. On 22 July 2009, the Group, together with
other Minibonds distributing banks in Hong Kong, agreed with
the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and the HKMA
to make an offer to eligible customers to repurchase their holdings
in all outstanding Lehman Brothers minibonds (“Minibonds”) in a
general repurchase scheme (the “Minibonds Repurchase
Scheme”). The Group, on 23 December 2009, further announced
a separate voluntary repurchase scheme to customers for the
principal protected notes (“PPN”) subscribed through the Group.
The Group recorded provisions for payments under these two
repurchase schemes in its 2009 financial statements after
considering the estimated recoverable value of the Minibonds and
PPN, and the estimated aggregate amount paid and payable

under the two repurchase schemes.

Under the Minibonds Repurchase Scheme, the Group is obliged
to top up the distribution to eligible and other investors if the
values received from the Minibonds collateral exceed the levels
paid to Minibonds investors having accepted the Minibonds

Repurchase Scheme.
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5. Operating segment reporting

Segment reporting by the Group was prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, which includes the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, is determined on the basis of banking
business and insurance business. For banking business, operating
performances are analysed by business activities for local banking
business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking business.
For insurance business, resources allocation and performance

evaluation are based on insurance business entity basis.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment, and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable

segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and
the provision of trade financing. Hire purchase finance and leasing
related to equipment, vehicle and transport financing are

included.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking and
lending, interest rate risk management, management of

investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses includes personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a

commercial bank in China.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

° Insurance business includes the Group’s life assurance and
general insurance businesses. Through the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in Hong Kong and 96% owned subsidiaries
in Macau, the Group offers a variety of life and general insurance

products and services.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt

funding (including subordinated notes).

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments are
reported directly under respective segments, while revenue and funding
cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and funding
resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated

on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are

grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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5. ERESEEHE @) 5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)
BE_Z-ZF+-A=1+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2010
8o
BART BERT BAER R
Personal  Commercial BEZH  Overseas  Insurance Hih @t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others Total
FHBMA/ (L) Net interest income/(expenses) 866,702 744,733 196,901 285,499 221,335 (135,680) 2,179,490
-HREP - external customers 451,449 801,492 528,129 305,858 214,828 (122,266)| | 2,179,490
-BER - inter-segments 415,253 (56,759)| |  (331,228) (20,359) 6,507 (13,414) -
FERBMA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 211,365 105,437 104,384 81,009 154,162 (43,913) 613,034
ERRZREEE Total operating
WA/ (%) income/(expenses) net of
insurance claims 1,078,067 850,170 301,785 366,598 375,497 (179,593) 2,792,524
BB Operating expenses (654,054) (241,562) (82,477) (273,521) (149,995) (52,343)  (1,453,952)
NRAEERZEE Operating profit/{loss) before
&/ (B8 impairment losses 424,013 608,608 219,308 93,077 225,502 (231936) 1,338,572
ERREEERAMEERE Loan impairment losses and
(RB) /B other credit provisions
(charged)/written back (51,789) 48,534 (76,465) (18,067) - - (97,787)
ETRAREREENAAER Operating profit/{loss) before
2 EERT/ (BR) gains or losses on certain
investments and fixed assets 372,224 657,142 142,843 75,010 225,502 (231,936) 1,240,785
HERENE  TEREMER Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
BERHATERELF and fair value adjustment
(E8) /s on investment properties,
premises and other fixed
assets (359) @ - (140) 84,112 (6,497) 7,114
HEEFRET (BR) /s Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
investments in securities - - (192,598) (6,301) 20,812 19,430 (158,657)
ERBENRzEE Share of resilts of an associate - - - 249,001 - - 249,001
EELRENESE £E Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 8,029 8,029
Rk ERS 2T Net gain on repurchase of
subordinated notes - - - - - 82,784 82,784
REEH/ (58 Profit/loss) before income tax 871,865 657,140 (49,755) 317,570 330,426 (128,190) 1,499,056
B (R it) /I Income tax (expenses)/credit (57,704) (110,384) 8,208 (14,323) (16,519) (23,304) (214,026)
RieEH/ (58 Profit/loss) after income tax 314,161 546,756 (41,547) 303,247 313,007 (151494) 1,285,030
BE-S-If% For the year ended
TZA=Z+t-HI%E 31 December 2010
MEREHER Depreciation and
amortisation 38,850 11,784 14,716 51,696 7,963 29,679 154,688
RZE-ZEF-A=1-H As at 31 December 2010
ABAE Segment assets 26,616,109 35,878,097  47,658500 19,626,000 11,323,887 1,638,831 142,741,514
AEEE Segment liabilities 61,005,220 16,086,411 16,362,311 15,792,272 8,261,499 7,580,645 125,088,358




B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B

For the year ended 31 December 2009

Operating segment reporting (Continued)

85
{BARTT AERT RIEH NS
Personal  Commercial BEEK Overseas  Insurance i) &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Business Others Total
BRI SR/ (%) Net interest income/(expenses) 852,694 884,942 396,663 239,432 171,926 (201528) 2,344,129
-HREE - external customers 548,671 862,120 741,014 244,845 154,581 (207,102) 2,344,129
~BBE - inter-segments 304,023 22,822 (344,351) (5,413) 17,345 5,574 -
ERBMA/ (Ri) Non-interest income/(expenses) 217,516 88,333 59,085 61,092 197,136 (243,315) 379,847
hRBZEZEE Total operating income/
WA/ (i) (expenses) net of
insurance claims 1,070,210 973,275 455,748 300,524 369,062 (444.843) 2,723,976
EETH Operating expenses (1,152,377) (243,345) (90,275) (223,061) (145,727) (14,295)  (1,869,080)
TR AEERN 28 (B58) Operating (loss)/profit before
Va:iil impairment losses (82,167) 729,930 365,473 77,463 223,335 (459,138) 854,89
ERREERRAMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions (121,425) (278,401) (17,941) (9,254) (1,732) (4,527) (433,280)
ETREREEEERRIEE Operating (loss)/profit before
HIZRE (BB) /&7 gains or losses on certain
investments and fixed assets ~ (203,592) 451,529 347,532 68,209 221,603 (463,665) 421,616
HEREME  TEREMER Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
BERHATERAE LS and fair value adjustment
(B8) /i on investment properties,
premises and other fixed
assets (1) - - 1,193 68,625 9,603 79,400
HEBFRET (BR) /s Net (loss)/gain on disposal of
investments in securities (368) - (31,279) - (35,734) 7,048 (60,333)
EEBENFZEE Share of results of an associate - - - 195,770 - - 195,770
FlLEEREHEE X5 Share of results of jointly
controlled entities - - - - - 5,103 5,103
P& ERS2E N Net gain on repurchase of
subordinated notes - - - - - 243,983 243,983
B (BE) /#A (Loss)/profit before income tax ~ (203,981) 451,529 316,253 265,172 254,494 (197,928) 885,539
HEER/ (L) Income tax credit/(expense) 30,025 (74,946) (52,262) (6,754) (13.172) 20,859 (96,250)
Btk (B8) /@7 (Loss)/profit after income tax (173,956) 376,583 263,991 258,418 241,322 (177,069) 789,289
HE-ZENE For the year ended
TZA=+-BILEE 31 December 2009
MERBEER Depreciation and amortisation 35,518 16,040 7,525 40,564 8,207 24,685 132,539
RZEENE+-A=+-H As at 31 December 2009
PEEE Segment assets 23774530 27,743,861 46,356,147 14,782,608 9,718,569 200,431 122,576,155
AEEE Segment liabilities 53,914,872 14216278 18416822 11,452,134 6,917,631 3,479,643 108,397,380
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5. ERESEEHE @) 5. Operating segment reporting (Continued)

ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ’\ZﬂiL?l\ﬁq*}EZHﬁZmﬂmEﬁﬁ’;‘% More than 90% of the revenues from external customers were
s ORPIRFBZRITMB AR - KEMREHRZ contributed from banking subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and
Ez?uﬂuiﬁiﬁlﬁ% FEXTER - EEpE  BE People’s Republic of China, with major products and services including
BE  RHEFEHFKRERES - deposit taking, extension of credit, asset-based finance, securities

investment services offered to customers.

TREHZREBECZER - BEDREAEE
EERBRINAEPRERY - REEHER
5 ML RRR 2 FRFEH T FERR

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities within
the group with business dealing and relationship with, and services to

external customers.

&5 2 EE
85
EBRHM Inter-
Hong Kong R segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BE-_Z-Z% For the year ended
+tZA=t+—HLEE 31 December 2010
HRREREZEERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,512,299 280,568 (343) 2,792,524
BR 5% A1 4 A Profit before income tax 1,430,731 68,325 - 1,499,056
R-E-—ZF5+-A=+—H As at 31 December 2010
BEAG Total assets 131,497,724 13,106,199 (1,862,409) 142,741,514
BEAE Total liabilities 115,845,243 11,105,524 (1,862,409) 125,088,358
BREEREE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 747,157 - 1,065,824
kA B R RAEIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 52,294,901 1,898,534 - 54,193,435
& 15 2 TE
G|
BEREM Inter-
Hong Kong SRS segment Bt
and Others Macau elimination Total
BHEZZTNF For the year ended
TZRA=+—HLEEE 31 December 2009
HRRBRREZEERA Total operating income net of
insurance claims 2,440,229 284,089 (342) 2,723,976
PR 35 A4 A Profit before income tax 794,185 91,354 - 885,539
R-ZZENEF+=-_A=+—8H As at 31 December 2009
BEAG Total assets 113,045,083 12,110,240 (2,579,118) 122,576,155
BEGR Total liabilities 100,675,307 10,301,191 (2,579,118) 108,397,380
BREERBE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 771,355 = 1,090,022
kA B R R Contingent liabilities and
commitments 42,726,720 1,379,709 - 44,106,429




B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

6. FMEWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. Net interest income

—EBE-TF —ZTThHF
2010 2009
FEWA Interest income
e RERITH R Cash and balances with banks 123,302 132,529
BHKE Investment in securities 752,129 833,760
EEMIBITER Advances to customers and banks 2,091,087 2,204,848
HAth Others 6,664 6,085
2,973,182 3,177,222
FEXZH Interest expense
RITFERBFEFER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 660,051 578,529
BETHERE Certificates of deposit issued 18,355 42,663
BETHESE S Issued debt securities 9,478 90,611
BERE® Subordinated notes 87,665 102,216
Hitb Others 18,143 19,074
793,692 833,093
FMEWABRE Included within interest income
EWREZFBWA Interest income on listed investments 428,786 425,404
JEETHIRE 27 B U A Interest income on unlisted investments 323,343 408,356
752,129 833,760
JEARAFEFEBEEHT ABR Interest income on financial assets not
ML EEEZHEWMA at fair value through profit or loss 2,826,664 3,044,506
REEER WA Interest income on impaired assets 11,679 15,429
FMEXZHBEHE Included within interest expenses
AR FEFZ HHEBT AER Interest expenses on financial liabilities
e B E s ExH not at fair value through profit or loss 640,742 660,576
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7. EMEEEMEWRA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. Net fee and commission income

—EBE-TF Z—ZTTHHF
2010 2009
BREERASEA Fee and commission income
AR FEFE B EEBTA Fee and commission income from
BamemEERAEEZ financial assets and liabilities not
fR# & kA& A at fair value through
profit or loss
-EEEREZREE LB — Credit related fees and commissions 88,127 73,394
-EH5E — Trade finance 38,997 38,066
- 2R — Credit card 245,284 203,153
Hi B ERASKA Other fee and commission income
- kB RERE - Securities brokerage and investment
services 49,617 46,841
- RE2HE K E A - Insurance distribution and others 14,781 17,089
-TEREES RZERS - Retail investment funds and fiduciary
services 13,092 9,337
- HMRBE — Other fees 85,645 72,838
535,543 460,718
REERASIH Fee and commission expense
FEURFEFEREEB T ABEN Fee and commission expense from
SREERBBZRBERASST S financial assets and liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss
-FRERAS — Handling fees and commission 162,119 120,629
-EfNEMREEA — Other fees paid 11,716 12,890
173,835 133,519

AEERAF=DFRHAE - X5t EXFEERR
BEERY - RENXEAFNRBEZEEL T
BEEMFMBRERA

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and

investment management services to third parties. Those assets that

are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial

statements.
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8 FEBEWA (EH 8.  Net trading income/(loss)
—E-EF Z—ZTThHF
2010 2009
AATFEFEEEZEHT ABEN Dividend income from financial assets
ERMEEZREWA at fair value through profit or loss
- EWE — Listed investments 12,025 2,030
-JELEMEE — Unlisted investments 50 155
SNEE B B )F W= Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 278,260 160,780
BIEBERABRMNES 2Rz (B8 Net gain/(loss) from trading securities 27,607 (2,515)
BIEEERRMNITET A ZF (B18) I Net (loss)/gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose (83,703) 3,022
BAFESHHNERSRITAE 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial instruments
subject to fair value hedge (57,302) (60,476)
EEN AT EGFEREHEEZHTABEEN Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
SR T A2 Fkes  (Ei8) instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 284,609 (160,934)
461,546 (57,938)
9 R B S A A 9. Net insurance premium and other income
“E-%F% ZETNE
2010 2009
R —RRR =k —BiER
Life General &t Life General =
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
REKALE Gross written premiums 1,462,898 361,622  1,824520 1,427,701 269,539 1,697,240
RAURBZREED Movement in unearned premiums - (57,990) (57,990) - 34,891 34,891
BRMZRELE Gross earned premiums 1,462,808 303,632 1,766,530 1,427,701 304,430 1,782,131
REMABE 2 HRINVE Gross written premiums ceded
{o reinsurers (54,687) (212,745 (267432  (60614)  (146541)  (207,155)
KRR REZS 2 RNE Reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned premiums - 39,227 39,227 - (31,189) (31,189)
ERRZRERE A ROE Reinsurers’ share of gross
eamed premiums (54,687)  (173,518)  (228205)  (60.614)  (177,730)  (238,344)
REKAFE Net insurance premium income 1,408,211 130,114 1,538,325 1,367,087 126,700 1,493,787
REEREBZBUREERELE Change in value of in-force long-term
life assurance business 92,648 - 92,648 (48,784) - (48,784)
a5 Total 1,500,859 130,114 1,630,973 1,318,303 126,700 1,445,003
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10. H b @E g A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. Other operating income

—E-BF —ZTTHhF
2010 2009
AHEEEFEFEE ZKREMA Dividend income from investments
in available-for-sale securities
- W& - Listed investments 6,863 10,575
-JEEMEE - Unlisted investment 5,767 13,424
BEYE 2B WA BT Gross rental income from
investment properties 22,168 19,209
H AW A Other rental income 5,331 5,752
Hh Others 8,773 6,429
48,902 55,389
11, PRI 8 S 32 i 11. Net insurance claims and expenses
—E-EZf “EETNF
2010 2009
Bk KRR sk KRR
Life General & Life General A&t
Insurance  Insurance Total Insurance Insurance Total
BEREE  MERER Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 485,661 205,488 691,149 677,906 96,067 773,973
ks Movement in provisions 1,238,491 39,785 1,278,276 443,274 45,504 488,778
RBRREAERARE Gross insurance claims and movement
REABEZE in liabilities to policyholders 1,724,152 245,273 1,969,425 1,121,180 141,571 1,262,751
BERZRE - FERREZHRNE Reinsurers’ share of claim, benefits
and surrenders paid (11,079 (143475 (154,548) (0646) (36289  (45,935)
EREH ARNE Reinsurers’ share of movement
in provisions (B075T)  (22126)  (52883) 12904  (26717) (13,723
RBEREERGRESEAEEZE  Reinsurers’ share of insurance claims and
LARNE movement in liabilities to policyholders (41,830)  (165601)  (207,431) 3,348 (63,006) (59,658)
RBREERHRERBALES Net insurance claims and movement
LFE in liabilities to policyholders 1,682,322 79,672 1,761,994 1,124,528 78,565 1,203,093
RBRESIHFE Net insurance commission expenses 122,047 6,054 128,101 186,196 517 186,713
At Total 1,804,369 85,726 1,890,095 1,310,724 79,082 1,389,806
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(CABET ThLHIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. BEXH 12.  Operating expenses
—EBE-TF Z—ZTTHHF
2010 2009
EEFMEREN B (RREESHM) Employee compensation and benefit
(M$5E13) expenses (including director’s
remuneration) (Note 13) 905,392 833,323
TEREMEEEESR L - Premises and other fixed asset expenses,
TEEFE excluding depreciation
-TEZME® - Rental of premises 95,125 87,573
- Hit — Others 87,033 88,334
& (FIE35) Depreciation (Note 35) 130,490 113,217
BERHEHES T Advertising and promotion costs 98,251 65,334
B AEEIHER Amortisation expenses of intangible
(PfF7E34) assets (Note 34) 24,198 19,322
% SRR B & Auditors’ remuneration 7,380 7,380
Hh (FE) Others (Note) 106,083 654,597
1,453,952 1,869,080
G Note:

BREE_ZENFREEMI AT 2EERH  EHEXR
B ARESHRERNEEE (HRE4.2(K)) 2%

R B o

13. 1 B R g A 32

A substantial portion of operating expenses included in “Others” in 2009 was

expenses and provisions incurred on Lehman Brothers related products in

relation to the Repurchase Schemes (Note 4.2 (€)).

13. Employee compensation and benefit expenses

—E-BF _—TThHF

2010 2009

R EtAEE R Salaries and other staff costs 875,869 767,176
LARR A9 o B SR B 2 5 (B 48%) 4 43 Provision for share-based compensation

(Bff5E54) (reversed)/charged (Note 54) (19,556) 29,796

RRe X Pension costs
- REH-KETE — defined contribution plans 49,079 36,351
905,392 833,323
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

13. 18 B #H W K45 A 32 @)

ReMez B AL :

() B

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. Employee compensation and benefit expenses

(Continued)

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals:
(i) The aggregate emoluments

—B-%F C"TTIhF

2010 2009

e BE - BV EMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 57,710 52,160
BRE Pensions 1,553 1,065
59,263 53,225

iy FANZEBAALTHBSAERNAT

(i)  The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are within

the following bands:

A
Number of individuals

—g-%% -—TThE

2010 2009
77T HK$

7,000,001 - 7,500,000 - 1
8,000,001 - 8,500,000 = 1
9,500,001 - 10,000,000 1 =
10,000,001 - 10,500,000 1 =
11,000,001 - 11,500,000 1 1
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 - 1
13,000,001 - 13,500,000 1 =
14,000,001 - 14,500,000 - 1
14,500,001 - 15,000,000 1 =
5 5

ELf&ZeMEeBRAZALTA - FOML(ZEF
NE M) REEES - EEBNESHEE
BIEERERME14A

RERN - AEBEVERAEFALUCZSHEAALS
NS - (ERINASINBEAREE 2 RE R

=
g o

iR sRBAALOMESBREREEZF
JZ PR AR TS AN AN SR 8] 2 ZE AR HO TR IR RN TEAT ©

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 4 (2009: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 14 below.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of offices during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above
included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered

and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
14. EHHEME 14. Directors’ emoluments
BEFBZFHM T The remuneration of each Director is set out below:
BBER
Rt
BREBRL
Incentive
2R bonuses
ENRE accrued
Salary, inrespect of RRHA fit
allowances services BB (&1)
EZHE  and benefits rendered  Share-based e Total
BECZ-SET-A=T-HLEE Year ended 31 December 2010 Directors’ Fee in kind in the year payment Pensions (Note 1)
£ Chairman
IFERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 8,500 - - 13,460
HTES Executive directors
BEREE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 6,000 - 575 14,575
ZEERE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3,950 1,000 - 693 5,643
Bael g Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 6,000 - 345 10,245
REBLE Nicholas John Mayhew - 3,600 6,000 - 345 9,945
FiES Non-executive directors
FHERZEE Akimitsu Ashida o - - - - 9
RAPBERE Kunio Suzuki 89 - - - - 89
ik Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180
AERRRE Hidemitsu Otsuka 90 - - - - 90
BIE-%AE Eiichi Yoshikawa 90 - - - - 90
ARELE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180
hgALE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 - - - - 180
BIFHTES Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birch’t & Peter Gibbs Birch 289 - - - - 289
LERLLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
VN bt Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
REEEE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 89 - - - - 89
BRBLE Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 2,500 - - - - 2,500
& Total 5,558 23,410 27,500 - 1,958 58,426
i Note:
1. ERERKITAAMRITEEBRA R REHN B 1. For directors who are also directors of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
RAIBEZEE  HAREWNB AR 2 5 or its subsidiaries, remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included
EREE LA ZEEHMEETA - in the consolidated total remuneration set out above.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

14. EHME @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EBER
Rtk
BREETL
Incentive
FER bonuses
Enfla accrued
Salary, in respect of MR A fit
allowances services ERRN G3)
Eshe and benefits rendered  Share-based R’ Total
HEZZENETZA=T-BLEE Year ended 31 December 2009 Directors’ Fee in kind in the year payment Pensions (Note 1)
iR Chairman
FTEEE David Shou-Yeh Wong 1,000 3,960 7,000 - - 11,960
gz Executive directors
BEERE Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,000 6,000 = 400 14,400
REERE Roderick Stuart Anderson - 3950 1,000 - 711 5,661
gLk Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 3,900 4,000 - 240 8,140
RBELE Nicholas John Mayhew - 3,450 7,600 = 225 11,275
FHES Non-executive directors
ARELE Chung-Kai Chow 93 - - - - 93
RABERE Kunio Suzuki 180 - - - - 180
B EDEE Tatsuo Tanaka 180 - - - - 180
AERELE John Wai-Wai Chow 180 - - - - 180
mERLE Yiu-Ming Ng 180 - - - - 180
ElESe Eiichi Yoshikawa 180 - - - - 180
Busngs Independent non-executive directors
Peter G. Birchc £ Peter Gibbs Birch 300 = - - - 300
2 ERBLE Robert Tsai-To Sze 600 - - - - 600
VN bt Tai-Lun Sun (Dennis Sun) 180 - - - - 180
REEEE Kwok-Hung Yue (Justin Yue) 180 - - - - 180
BkALE Nicholas Robert Sallnow-Smith 70 - - - - 70
At Total 3,323 23,260 25,600 - 1,576 53,759

|1+
Ay 2
| K
;jé_‘
Hm
Erat
i
!
el
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(CABET ThLHIR)

15, Bk e 48 S I A 15 S 1t

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. Loan impairment losses and other credit provisions

—E-BF _—TThHF
2010 2009
EFRERE Loan impairment losses
EFEER Advances to customers 21,477 408,925
IRITE Advances to banks (155) 155
FEETFI B K E AbBR B Accrued interest and other accounts = 434
21,322 409,514
BRI A SR IE R B RS F 2 Net charge of impairment losses on
advances and other accounts
— (& B FE1& — Individually assessed 1,556 176,416
- fFa R - Collectively assessed 19,766 233,098
21,322 409,514
BEHELE Of which
- EE (BENFANEEMEZ %) - new allowances (including amounts
directly written off in the year) 181,793 681,034
- [B & - releases (90,277) (207,596)
- 8 — recoveries (70,194) (63,924)
21,322 409,514
HMEERE Other credit provisions
1 Bl R (B 5 18 Individual impairment losses on
-BREEERREWRIBEN 2EHFRE — Investment in securities included in
the loans and receivables category 76,465 17,941
- Eft - Others - 5,825
76,465 23,766
Wz IR OF 2 Net charge to income statement 97,787 433,280
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(CABET ThLHIR)

16. B AT A M Ath T A2 28 AT RE FLAY

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. Net gain on disposal and revaluation of premises and

Z F W Es other fixed assets
—EBE-TF —ZTThHF
2010 2009

TTEE B R (B 2 Deficit recovered on revaluation

of premises 180 1,453
HETE 2 F R Net gain from disposal of premises 2,752 1,463
o H A B E & E 2 R &R Net loss from disposal of other

fixed assets (2,342) (113)

590 2,803

17. W BE 38 AP B 2 I

17. Net gain on disposal of and fair value adjustment on

fin. investment properties
—E-BF Z—IZTThHF
2010 2009
BEMEATERARE 2 F NG Net gain on fair value adjustment

of investment properties 74,262 73,307

HEREYHEZF Net gain from disposal of investment
properties 2,262 3,290
76,524 76,597

|1+
A 2
| K
;jé_‘
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Erat
i
!
el
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(CABET ThLHIR)

18.

H B % 1o At e ik TR 2 38 (B4R
/Wi

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

18.

Net (loss)/gain on disposal and repurchase of other

financial instruments

—E-2F C—ZZTIThF
2010 2009
O BEEEER 2 F W GE(F)) Net gain on repurchase of
subordinated notes (Note (a)) 82,784 243,983
HERREEERREWFIBER 2 #FHEEFEIE  Netloss on disposal of investments
in securities included in the loans
and receivables category (136,530) -
PEREINPEFFEEGE(2D)) Net loss on disposal of
a held-to-maturity security (Note (b)) (65,837) -
(119,583) 243,983

R_ZB-—ZER_TTNF  AEEERBFEE
SERBEREER  MTRERBREASHERE
RETHABERT (CZEENAF : £ TEET)H
REFBITR_ZTLF AT RNHBITZKAE
EREES (MEK)) (EE43 (%) - REMREE
BREBMNXEZHNEER AR NEELT
FAEBET (CETRNF - £ TEEL) ZHEE7
s IR E UMM AL LE o AR B PrEREL 2 FH
)9 BB A R AR EARR A Rie i IR 2
FE o ZEBWEBHOE N REFERER/KN
MRITZSRMMER - BR-F-—FFR_F
TNEF 2 DR B A H I AR EER AR
RITZBERMMER -

R E TR AR B N R S BT AR DAY &
EBEEES ZZEMED

Note

(@)

(b)

During 2010 and 2009, the Group, after receiving the prior consent of the
HKMA, repurchased a total of US$75 million (2009: US$70 million) notional
principal value of the Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes issued by
DSB on 16 February 2007 (the “Notes”) at a discount (Note 43(e)). Notional
contract amount of the associated interest rate swap totalling US$75
million (2009: US$70 million) originally taken to swap the interest rate of
the Notes to a floating rate basis was also terminated upon the
repurchase. The net gain recorded is the net realised gain arising from the
repurchase of the Notes and the termination of the related interest rate
swap. The repurchased part of the Notes, previously qualified as upper
supplementary capital of DSB, were cancelled and de-recognised as
DSB’s liability and also supplementary capital upon the completion of the
purchase in 2010 and 2009.

The disposal was made pursuant to the acceptance by the Group of an

offer made by the issuer of the security to redeem the security at a
discount.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

19. BilE S H

H BTGB T0 32 BB A A At FE AR B 0 I DA B =R
16.5% (T N4F : 16.5%) IR B EME - BN
1B H TR F NI IME s IR B F R A 5 B A
EEBHE ZRTHETHE o

REEHBERAAEAREREE  UHE
16.5% (CZEZTNF : 16.5%) (E2 BRER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a taxation rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%).

—g-2F —TINF
2010 2009
RNEEHIE : Current income tax:
BEAENEH Hong Kong profits tax 141,204 93,933
N IE Overseas taxation 18,184 11,783
RBAEFETR (B 2B Under/(over) provision in prior years 3,552 (2,108)
RIEFLIE (Mi5E46) - Deferred income tax (Note 46):
-BREREENEERED — Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 51,086 (7,358)
FHIEZ H Income tax expense 214,026 96,250

AREBRBADGEN 2 HIRBRIRGA SR AINE
FIERERABEZERBBEAT ¢

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

—E-BF _—TThHF
2010 2009
R 75 B4 ) Profit before income tax 1,499,056 885,539
1238 AR & M R 5 Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
AR AT E 2 B I8 application to profits in the respective
countries 247,344 146,114
THIBAZIRR Tax effects of:
EREEZTRRVERE Different tax treatment of results of
life insurance business (37,154) (69,295)
HMBR 2T REFE Different taxation rates in other
countries (3,235) (3,193)
R 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (18,800) (77,098)
S BE IR Y 2 Expenses not deductible 64,382 135,609
IPNIRE B =S /N Results of associates and jointly
N ARG B 2 4R controlled entities reported net of tax (42,410) (33,144)
RBEBEREERIEE E/RGER Tax losses for which no deferred
tax asset was recognised 347 =
fE AR AR R 2 TIEE 1R Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses - (635)
RBAEFETR (B 2B Under/(over) provision in prior years 3,552 (2,108)
RIS W Income tax expense 214,026 96,250
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(CABET ThLHIR)

20. B ME AN v A

PR AR A Al R R Rz R RS i R R
29,987,000 7T (ZF T N4 : 201,128,000/
L) °

RBEZZE-—ZF+-_A=+—HLEFER
ENER0208T (ZESNG : &) - BFEA
52,054,000/ FHIR S - EE G ERIKE

T-TFERAR, ﬁiﬂxO%ﬁén(f??ﬂ
F:m) o

n

al

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$29,987,000 (2009:
HK$201,128,000).

21. Dividends

An interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share (2009: Nil), totalling
HK$52,054,000, was paid in the year ended 31 December 2010. The
Directors propose the payment of final dividend of HK$0.86 per share
in respect of 2010 (2009: Nil).

—F-FF “TTNF
Company 2010 2009

ENFHRE - SR EEK0.208 T
(= TTHE )
BORARHI R - SREERR0.86/E T

(Z2TNF : §)

22. AN

Interim dividend paid of HK$0.20
(2009: Nil) per ordinary share 52,054 -
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.86

(2009: Nil) per ordinary share 251,812 -

303,866 =

22. Earnings per share

—g-BF _—TTAF

2010 2009
B3
Restated
(% T) (BT)
(HKS) (HK$)
% & A Earnings per share
AR Basic 3.67 2.30
e Diluted 3.67 2.30

—TDEEREARNRSREERF TR
#8 21 7511,006,290,0007% 7T & F N B 2817 3 18 A A%
5 2 INkE 5 8274,326,189% 51 & -

ZEENFZERERRT R GIREE R TR
E&?‘M&G 049, ooo,%yc&f%?gnimaﬁ*ﬁ ,
WERRARRZZE—ZF+= AR Z R
?;%%L‘AEME%LM 1 2 #8551 hn e F 35 25
271,923,438% Z 5t &

BLE—F-—FTFER_FTAF2+_A=+—H
Jtﬁrmzikﬂﬁéu A S B A AR ) 2 DA
VYL EEETE

The calculation of basic earnings per share and fully diluted earnings
per share for 2010 is based on earnings of HK$1,006,290,000 and the
weighted average number of 274,326,189 ordinary shares in issue
during 2010.

The calculation of basic earnings per share and fully diluted earnings
per share for 2009 is based on earnings of HK$626,049,000 and the
restated weighted average number of 271,923,438 ordinary shares in
issue during 2009 after adjusting for the effects of the rights issue of

the Company completed in December 2010.

The share options outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009 have no dilutive effect on the weighted

average number of ordinary shares.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

23. Bl& A SRAT W A5 R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. Cash and balances with banks

—E-BF _—TThEF

&% Group 2010 2009
e REIRITHAR Cash and balances with banks 6,306,893 2,566,436
BRI HATE R Money at call and short notice 3,273,627 8,175,443
9,580,520 10,741,879

24, FREHERBNE S L3t E DAFE
wi e HLHC 8 B 5 AR 25 0 4 Rl

24. Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss

—E-BF —TTHE
£E= Group 2010 2009
FHEEERGENEF Trading securities:
BEREF Debt securities:
-BHELEM - Listed in Hong Kong 781,231 1,051,938
- BB LT - Listed outside Hong Kong - 61,348
-3k — Unlisted 4,692,210 4,681,167
5,473,441 5,794,453
T 2 M 5 2 Equity securities:
- BAEAIN T — Listed outside Hong Kong 85,161 76,290
-JELEH REESHER — Unlisted, interests in investment
funds 10,274 13,225
95,435 89,515
HIEEERZNEHFBE Total trading securities 5,568,876 5,883,968
EELAAFEFEEESZ Financial assets designated at fair value
ARG EREE through profit or loss:
BEHES Debt securities:
-BEEM — Listed in Hong Kong 466,536 154,084
- BB ETH — Listed outside Hong Kong 2,564,312 1,684,054
-JELT - Unlisted 1,390,790 1,951,534
4,421,638 3,789,672
REEMES Equity securities:
-BELETM - Listed in Hong Kong 212,222 69,611
- BB LT - Listed outside Hong Kong 521,225 180,747
-3 — Unlisted 629,383 469,363
1,362,830 719,721
HENAFEFEBEEZEHTABEN Total financial assets designated at fair
CREELTE value through profit or loss 5,784,468 4,509,393
RIEEERBNEBESRIEENATEFZ Total trading securities and financial
BEZTAEBEENEREELT assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 11,353,344 10,393,361
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(CABET ThLHIR)

24. FAEEEHENES L E DA P
al i H 388 B 51 A 25 00 4 il A
(%)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss (Continued)

—EBE-TF —ZTThHF

&5 Group 2010 2009
BREEEHRESFANER : Included within debt securities are:
-BREBIEEEREZES — Government bonds included in

2 BN ES trading securities 5,354,258 5,570,751

- BB ES — Other government bonds 61,674 686,265

- HA BB H 5 — Other debt securities 4,479,147 3,327,109

9,895,079 9,584,125

RIEBE—TER-_TTHF+_HA=+—H " t As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no certificates of deposit

MERBSREAGEBANTERIEZEETRE ° held included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

FEEERENESFNEENRA T EFEA A
BEt ABRN S R E EREITHEER S
N

Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value through

profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

—E-ZFF —_ZTThF
£H Group 2010 2009
— R ERFFFI A RIETT - Central governments and central banks 5,415,932 6,257,017
- NEHRE — Public sector entities 14,198 21,650
- RITREME REE — Banks and other financial institutions 1,051,223 637,875
-1 - Corporate entities 4,834,933 3,444,399
— HAth — Others 37,058 32,420

11,353,344 10,393,361
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. fik&mT R 25. Derivative financial instruments

R-F-—ZFE+_A=+—"RBRIHPITETASL

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and

8z % EArAEREQAFERAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2010 were as follows:
R/ BELHE DFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =R
£5 Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMNESTAETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHRBHESY Forward and future contracts 49,897,507 268,015 (116,031)
B Currency swaps 189,434 = (21,773)
BB\ R i AN HR 4 Currency options purchased and written 389,362 1,225 (1,218)
b) FELTAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures 8,206,273 533 (5,185)
| % 45 2 Interest rate swaps 7,212,245 39,562 (145,310)
FE A\ RO o ) R A Interest rate options purchased and written 89,113 3,139 (3,701)
c) BmMITETA c) Equity derivatives
B8\ R i e M A Equity options purchased and written 31,559 43 (866)
d EMITETA d) Credit derivatives
ERBORBREN Credit default swaps 233,199 942 (1,889)
RIEEER®ZTETIA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (BB &5 held for trading 66,248,692 313,459 (295,973)
2) FHEEHRABRZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) BEURFEH T a) Derivatives designated
ZOTETA as fair value hedges
] &4z 5 Interest rate swaps 14,132,574 149,620  (1,000,466)
RIEHHRRA®ZZTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (AR &5 held for hedging 14,132,574 149,620 (1,000,466)
3) e EANFEEL R 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
R#%  BREEENATE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
:ﬁr; BHEHF ABEN with the financial instruments designated at
CRIA-—REEZITETA fair value through profit or loss
Bk Currency swaps 395,603 112,779 -
) 2 45 1Y Interest rate swaps 1,235,995 76,880 =
IEEEEHABEZITETIR Total derivative assets not qualified
BESR as hedges 1,631,598 189,659 -
BERRZITESRIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(AfF) A& assets/(liabilities) 82,012,864 652,738 (1,296,439)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. fifE4mh T H @)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

R-ZEEANF+-_A=+—HAREHITETES The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
NzBaBAREATFENDT their fair values as of 31 December 2009 were as follows:
CROVES £ NEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8fE
& Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
a) JMNESTAETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHRBEEH Forward and future contracts 75,225,545 233,267 (105,582)
B Currency swaps 464,225 3,525 (47,588)
B8 A\ R H OB B Currency options purchased and written 1,378,430 1,660 (1,639)
b) FELTAETA b) Interest rate derivatives
T=HE Interest rate futures 5,428 - (243)
&4 5 Interest rate swaps 8,772,016 62,674 (149,844)
i A o ) 2 Interest rate options purchased and written 76,215 - (1,491)
o) BaltiT#TA c) Equity derivatives
B8\ R i e M A Equity options purchased and written 66,449 531 (531)
d FEMITETA d) Credit derivatives
EREARKRERN Credit default swaps 174,485 4,151 (2,193)
FIEEER®ZITELAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(8F) &: trading 86,162,793 305,808 (309,111)
2) FEH 543 R#zfTETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
a) EHEULFELT a) Derivatives designated
Z o7 &f IA as fair value hedges
M &4z 5 Interest rate swaps 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)
FEHRRA®ZITETAR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (AR A held for hedging 11,688,807 130,395 (909,114)
3) RE LTS ELH 3) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
Ri& - BEEENAFE purposes but which are managed in conjunction
STEEHEEFABEN with the financial instruments designated
CRMIE—REBRZIMETIR at fair value through profit or loss
itk Currency swaps 448,815 66,392 -
F == 5 Interest rate swaps 1,233,235 91,796 =
PEEEE AT ZITETR Total derivative assets not qualified
BEAR as hedges 1,682,050 158,188 =
ERRZiTE2fMIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BE) A assets/(liabilities) 99,533,650 594,391 (1,218,225)

TEREZERRAMN ZEEFE

The effect of valid bilateral netting agreements has been taken into

account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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25. fifE4mh T H @)

LaREEERAEAIGTE RRFTARKEET L2
BEFRBERH IR EZEERBRINEED
SRR INEREE - 2500

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures calculated under Basel Il basis and without taking into
account the effect of bilateral netting arrangement that the Group

entered into, are as follows:

—®-BF C—TINF

£ Group 2010 2009

PTEITER Derivatives
XRG4 Exchange rate contracts 419,056 465,916
FEEH Interest rate contracts 164,232 200,489
HEia% Other contracts 5,289 6,299
588,577 672,704

WETEZENBEERENBEHRNRS
E U TMKKRERBREE -

EERRMERBEHI2ZEEELERBEL 2GR
TEER)RAMAE 2B FAEMF 2
BARTIRZHEFREBRENOINHBEME

SR IER G RIE T R 2. 95 5 o

ANEE BB AR R B 2 2 A B A R
BREERREBGRIEER 2 EFHFIRE - AlH
EEBEFREETABZHBNREFNERR
¥ T B 7 5518 5154,709,0008 7L (ZZZ A,
& 25 £331,400,000787T) © ¥HIEE EEE
SRR 2 Y25 £96,089,000/8 7T (T ZNAF : 5
$67%391,876,000% 7T) ° LLFEE 25N
8Z[AAFEH TN BEBEEmMI A FEE]
ﬂq °

[1>+
D2
| K>
;ﬁé_\
RN
St
a
)
o

e
Sk

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do

not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the

counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category,
available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities by fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The losses on the hedging
instruments were HK$154,709,000 (2009: a gain of HK$331,400,000).
The gains on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk were
HK$96,089,000 (2009: a loss of HK$391,876,000). The net impact is
disclosed in “Net loss arising from financial instruments subject to fair value
hedge” in Note 8.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

26. HIHEHRLILMBIRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts

—®-BF -TINF

£ Group 2010 2009
EAAERRBR Loans and advances to individuals
- AR — Credit cards 3,793,409 3,289,460
- RiBE® - Mortgages 21,904,593 18,972,569
- HAth - Others 3,945,998 3,283,575
TEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate entities
- BHIEX® — Term loans 17,630,333 11,317,643
- RiBE® - Mortgages 10,523,436 8,088,435
-B5mE - Trade finance 4,548,252 3,281,532
- Hib — Others 10,402,967 8,931,945
XEERBTE Gross advances to customers 72,748,988 57,165,159
IRITER 4R Gross advances to banks - 150,000
72,748,988 57,315,159
H fth & 2= (FT3E38) Other assets (Note 38) 3,237,756 2,606,802
Wk - BEERE Less: impairment allowances
— (&R FE A — Individually assessed (92,044) (317,017)
- R E A - Collectively assessed (303,693) (358,212)
(395,737) (675,229)
BREEER K EKRZIELER Investments in securities included
ZBHEE (Mzx27) in the loans and receivables
category (Note 27) 7,717,760 8,799,348
ZEERREMERE Advances and other accounts 83,308,767 68,046,080

FlEFEREERSE 5 E15849,125,000/8 T
—ZET N : 348,026,00056 7T) ©

Included in gross advances to customers above are trade bills of
HK$849,125,000 (2009: HK$348,026,000).
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26. HEEHRKITLMIEE &) 26.

(F) % P S0k S 3k = i 4R 1 i M 3 IR (a)
%

Advances and other accounts (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
advances to customers
AEEE - ERIF M
Impairment allowances -
Individual assessment

RZREXN Hity %
£8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BABRRBIHMELEE 2®E  Movement in impairment allowances

on loans and advances to individuals
—TENFE-HA-BR&EH Balance at 1 January 2009 3,927 3,238 7,165
BB B 18 [ Impairment losses reversed (1,793) (284) (2,077)
ReLEEE M EE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,983) (1,500) (3,483)
W E B R FME 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,594 823 2,417
BT (B B 5 Unwind of discount on allowance 91) - 91)
—EENEFZA=T—H At 31 December 2009 1,654 2,277 3,931
—T-TFE-F—HNEH Balance at 1 January 2010 1,654 2,277 3,931
(B &5 18 2] Impairment losses reversed (2,061) (644) (2,705)
RECERE T HE Loans written off as uncollectible (279) (1,811) (2,084)
WEIBREEME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,485 772 2,257
“E-ZE+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2010 805 594 1,399

REEE - RETME
Impairment allowances -
Collective assessment
ER+ RBEN Hity &%
58 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAEBREBREEEEZ Movement in impairment
LX) allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
“ETNFE-A—BHNEHR Balance at 1 January 2009 39,464 2,985 80,794 123,243
RE BB Impairment losses charged 117,446 192 268 117,906
REEEBETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (135,833) = (76,612) (212,445)
W Bl E R EEME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 13,968 - 40,115 54,083
BE 5 58 B Exchange adjustments - - ) o)
“ETNE+=_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009 35,045 3,177 44,564 82,786
T -TFE-A—HNEH Balance at 1 January 2010 35,045 3,177 44,564 82,786
EBERE Impairment losses charged 50,067 2,382 3,193 55,642
KEEEEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (73,378) = (46,163) (119,541)
W Bl E R E#E 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 14,326 - 34,433 48,759
B 3, 2 H fth S Exchange and other adjustments (449) - (564) (1,013)
Z2-BF+=A=+-H At 31 December 2010 25,611 5,559 35,463 66,633
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HIHEREHAWRE @) 26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(H) &5 83k B Bk 2 M 18 4 A e JE SR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
7= () advances to customers (Continued)

B EZEE - 185 L

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

BHEX EZRE
Term BEBREN Trade Hity a5
&8 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2E allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
—ZTHhF—F—HWAES  Balance at 1 January 2009 87,200 25,824 202,417 228,303 543,744
HEBERE (B8) Impairment losses

charged/(reversed) 6,009 (10,159) 23,725 158,279 177,854
RELEBE M S Loans written off as uncollectible (42,019) (12,055) (181,997) (165,164) (401,235)
W Bl B R E#E 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 1,513 470 3,452 1,989 7,424
LB 2 1 R (B [0 3% Unwind of discount on allowance (760) (236) (1,735) (12,607) (15,338)
BEE 5, 8 B Exchange adjustments @ - - - @
—ZEENEFEF+ZRA=1+—H At 31 December 2009 51,941 3,844 45,862 210,800 312,447
I =1 0) =13 Balance at 1 January 2010 51,941 3,844 45,862 210,800 312,447
HEEE (E#) /IR #& Impairment losses

(reversed)/charged (5,300) (3,294) 6,651 6,204 4,261
RELEBE M HE Loans written off as uncollectible (39,491) - (33,332) (173,218) (246,041)
W Bl E A E s 2 B Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 3,591 266 2,354 12,935 19,146
PE H AR Exchange adjustments 193 - - - 193
“Z-ZF+=-H=1+—H  At31December 2010 10,934 816 21,535 56,721 90,006

BEERE - RE T
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX EZRE
Term RBEX Trade Hit =
58 Group loans Mortgages finance Others Total
TEERRBR Movement in impairment
HEEEZ2E allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
—“ZENF—F—HH%#H  Balance at 1 January 2009 17,194 20,141 14,486 123,581 175,402
AR ERE Impairment losses charged 16,484 46,229 14,724 37,805 115,242
ReEEEERM R Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (15,373) (15,373)
ZTENF+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2009 33,678 66,370 29,210 146,013 275,271
—T-TFE-A B Balance at 1 January 2010 33,678 66,370 29,210 146,013 275,271
AR (E#) R Impairment losses

(reversed)/charged (831) (8,248) 4,488 (31,130) (35,721)
AEEEEERMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (3,597) (3,597)
WEBEREEMIEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 32 32
BEE 5, R EL fth 5 B Exchange and other adjustments 29 - 2 1,044 1,075
—E-ZH5+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2010 32,876 58,122 33,700 112,362 237,060

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010 199



B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. BB EHARE @) 26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(&) SRAT 3K B Bk » T e s R B A 3 At (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans and
WR T = ) 48 1 5 HR T S AR 3R advances to banks, and accrued interest and other accounts
BB 2E 1 - W AEEE-
mETME 18 B FE 1y
Impairment Impairment
allowances - allowances -
Collective Individual
a nent a nent
RITERKR EFFNEHM
E- N H{h BRI\
Loans Accrued
and interest
advances to and other
5 Group banks accounts

RITERRER > REGFRSMEARE Movement in impairment
BEEEZ2EE allowances on loans and advances
to banks, and accrued interest and
other accounts

—EENFE-A—BHNER Balance at 1 January 2009 = =
VEREY Eibrne Impairment losses charged 155 639
—EENF+=_A=+—H At 31 December 2009 155 639
e = il =< 0F <3 Balance at 1 January 2010 155 639
B 1B B 18 [o] £ Impairment losses reversed (155) =
—E2-ZHF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2010 - 639
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(CABET ThLHIR)

26. HHEHRLILMBIEE @)

(W) BAG7EF P Bk Je Bk 2 b L 15 HE
R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. Advances and other accounts (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease

receivables as follows:

—E-FF —TIThEF
5 Group 2010 2009
BREERERE 2 EIARAS Gross investment in finance
lease receivable:
—FE YR Not later than 1 year 2,083,170 2,611,281
—FUAEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 2,699,269 2,173,340
FFE Later than 5 years 3,126,173 2,492,189
7,908,612 7,276,810
BEREZ KR Z @& WA Unearned future finance income
on finance leases (1,010,590) (986,264)
BEHEREFRE Net investment in finance leases 6,898,022 6,290,546
MEMREREFHEAR 2HTWT ¢ The net investment in finance
leases is analysed as follows:
—F AR Not later than 1 year 1,832,581 2,378,059
—FUEERF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 2,373,546 1,873,643
FHFU E Later than 5 years 2,691,895 2,038,844
6,898,022 6,290,546

REZ-—ZTFEF+-_A=+—H Liln@EEE
REBENREEERNBEE(CZTENF
) -

T TFE+ A=+ HZAEBERURESE
BEREATAWE e S REKEREHNEES
& & & 42,550,0008 T (Z T T N F
203,069,000/ 7T.) ©

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross

investment in finance lease above as at 31 December 2010 (2009:Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included in

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2010 of the Group

amounted to HK$42,550,000 (2009: HK$203,069,000).
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27, BLAGAE RO R WO R Z @ R 1%
<

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. Investments in securities included in the loans and

receivables category

—E-BF —ZTThF
& Group 2010 2009
A HEERRER SR 2EFRE Investments in securities reclassified
from the available-for-sale category
—RERF R R T AT ES R — At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 5,289,027 6,509,995
— IREEBRAK N D BR — At amortised cost 2,080,910 1,989,010
7,369,937 8,499,005
& IR (B 2E 1 Individual impairment allowances (78,221) (1,893)
7,291,716 8,497,112
RYBERR D EREK Investments in securities classified
R EWGRIE 2 BHIEE as loan and receivables upon
initial recognition 426,044 302,236
7,717,760 8,799,348

Pz ERREEGE IR —ER _E—ZTFE+ =
A=+—HBHEEE96,672,000/8 T (ZZZ /1,
£ 102,758,000/ 7T) 2 B HFIR A MaT1R © %A
BREA-—ETNEFE+ A=+ BEFTFEAD
ERIRE - MEEEHIRE  AEBWERFEFR
Hn o

Individual impairment allowances are maintained in respect of an

investment in debt security with a carrying value of HK$96,672,000 as
at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$102,758,000) which has been

assessed as individually impaired since 31 December 2009. No

collateral is held by the Group in respect of this investment security.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27.  AFGTE Sk M M WK S B 2 i Ak 27. Investments in securities included in the loans and
% &0 receivables category (Continued)
PREREERREWHRIBERN 2 EFHEES TN Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables category
S are analysed as follows.
—E-BF _—TThHF
] Group 2010 2009
BERES Debt securities:
—RBELM - Listed in Hong Kong 737,579 945,484
— BB AN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,522,236 6,319,540
— kLT - Unlisted 536,166 1,536,217
7,795,981 8,801,241
Bk : @R ELERS Less: individual impairment allowances (78,221) (1,893)
7,717,760 8,799,348
EmESHFZmE Market value of listed securities 6,636,402 6,415,120
RZE—ZFFR_TTENF+_A=+—H" & As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no certificates of deposit
MEFBFREEBRANLER ?Ehﬁﬁfé( 3 o held included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
BLIETE B R % P SR IE R 7 Investments in securities included

ZBFRERBETHBRRIONAOT

—RITREME S
—{bx

in the loans and receivables

category are analysed by categories

of issuers as follows:

— Banks and other financial institutions

— Corporate entities

4,127,967 4,729,417
3,668,014 4,071,824
7,795,981 8,801,241
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i

28. Wt HEESR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. Available-for-sale securities

—E-BF —TTHE
& Group 2010 2009
BISES Debt securities:
-BALE™m — Listed in Hong Kong 5,759,973 381,931
- BB T — Listed outside Hong Kong 5,320,355 4,329,625
-JE L - Unlisted 5,968,831 7,231,327
17,049,159 11,942,883
B Equity securities:
-BELE® — Listed in Hong Kong 104,363 149,012
- BB LASN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 124,144 188,961
-JEETH — Unlisted 580,387 620,168
808,894 958,141
AR EEA5ETE Total available-for-sale securities 17,858,053 12,901,024
BIEEEREF Included within debt securities are:
- BB NFRE — Certificates of deposit held 47,205 =
- HMEBESH — Other debt securities 17,001,954 11,942,883
17,049,159 11,942,883
A & FE 5 Available-for-sale securities are
RETHBERNSTAT analysed by categories of issuers
as follows:
- R RIEAFA A RERTT — Central governments and central
banks 9,530,291 2,841,211
- N — Public sector entities 88,278 426,487
- RIT M H A & BhAk S - Banks and other financial institutions 3,313,700 4,759,879
-1 — Corporate entities 4,924,256 4,871,919
- HAty — Others 1,528 1,528
17,858,053 12,901,024
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29. FERHIEH

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. Held-to-maturity securities

—-BF _—TTAF

£ Group 2010 2009
B FEH Debt securities

-BE LM - Listed in Hong Kong 193,973 193,414

- BB BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 6,643,580 6,114,930

-3E kT - Unlisted 2,276,901 2,493,938

9,114,454 8,802,282

EmESHFZmE Market value of listed securities 6,641,001 5,846,622

RZE—ZERZZFTZANFTA=+—H " £ As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no certificates of deposit

MERBHFREEHRAT EBERFTETRE ° held included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.

FREIHE S
BRBETRBEASTWT
- PREBUT K RERTT

- REHE
- RITREMSREE
-

30. &mEEZENSB

R-Z-—ZF  AEEVESSREERATHE
B8 Ji%ﬁ“*ﬁﬁgﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ cR=F
ZNF  AEBNAHEEZESARNETDEK
[ {8 4258 1,640,590,000/% 7T % 3,259,762,000/%
T AR ERH D B AR R M ERGRIEE R &
FrE2HIE R -

BRAERAT 2 FEARTHEERRRERHE
RERRERZIEERN SREE ZEEF
HremEER—_T—TF+=-A=+t—AHZ
FERIRMEESD 5 456,765,133,0008 T (==
N : 7,468,889,000/5 7T) }7,369,937,000/%
(ZEZT A4 : 8,499,005,000/ 7T) °

Hl NH IS

WEBFZFERATEGSRMEENLAETESR

AFREF OB EERREKGKIBLER - BlfEfEsS
IR 2 BfhEEE S N512,760,0005 T (=2
T ¢ 1#)0949,482,000%7T) ©

Held-to-maturity securities are
analysed by issuer as follows:
— Central governments and central

banks 1,494,925 1,100,627

— Public sector entities 211,153 201,555
— Banks and other financial institutions 4,944,306 5,236,412
— Corporate entities 2,464,070 2,263,688
9,114,454 8,802,282

30. Reclassification of financial assets

During 2010, the Group did not reclassify any financial assets out of
the available-for-sale category into the loans and receivables category.
In 2009, available-for-sale securities with a total carrying value at the
time of reclassification of HK$1,640,590,000 and HK$3,259,762,000
were reclassified out of the available-for-sale category into the loans
and receivables category and the held-to-maturity category

respectively.

In relation to the financial assets reclassified from the available-for-sale
category into the loans and receivables category in prior years, the fair
value and carrying value of these reclassified financial assets as at 31
December 2010 were HK$6,765,133,000 (2009: HK$7,468,889,000) and
HK$7,369,937,000 (2009: HK$8,499,005,000) respectively.

If reclassification of financial assets from the available-for-sale category
into the loans and receivables category in prior years had not taken
place, the revaluation deficit in equity would have been HK$512,760,000
higher (2009: HK$949,482,000 higher).
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3. BEARLE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. Investment in an associate

—E-EF _—ZTTHF
-4 Group 2010 2009
EiLEEFE Share of net assets 1,214,168 954,634
B Gooduwill 344,623 344,623
A Total 1,558,791 1,299,257
—B-%F C"TTIhF
5 Group 2010 2009
—H—H At 1 January 1,299,257 1,132,461
FEMEBRT & K 4B Share of results, net of tax 249,001 195,770
BRI E B S Share of investment revaluation
reserves, net of tax (4,259) (6,784)
B R B Dividend received (25,496) (22,950)
EHER Exchange differences 40,288 760
+-A=+—8 At 31 December 1,558,791 1,299,257

R=B-FER-BEAST-A=t—BZE
#

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

LERNACEBZERMAT : December 2010 and 2009:

S R A itk B

Place of FritEZE Dt
Z8 incorporation FEEK Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
BERT FEARFETE ;|7

Bank of Chongging

People’s Republic of China

Banking

20%
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
32. MFEEHEHERE 32. Investments in jointly controlled entities
—E-BF _—TThHF
£E= Group 2010 2009
JEETHRRS » TR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
BERT—HRZEHEE Loan to a jointly controlled entity 24,714 33,286
44,714 53,286
FEAG W B 12 (1 Share of post-acquisition reserves 15,534 7,505
60,248 60,791
RZE—TF+ A=+ —HNEEEHEEN The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2010:
-
HEEEZES L
& /8 3t 25 FEEB RS M2 Percentage of
8 Place of Principal activities interest
Name incorporation and place of operation in ownership
IR AA R A A B BREER - BF 13.333%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding,
Hong Kong
RIS T AR A A] B ZRAKEKREEA 13.333%
Bank Consortium Trust Company Hong Kong ZRE AR - B
Limited Trustee and custodian
services for retirement
fund schemes, Hong Kong
AEEERPIERBR AR 2z BMBATK The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
FTIRITIA - MIREEEAR AR REERE DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
RARIzE2EMBAT o Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.
BERT—HAZHERBAERRE  WEZ—REE The loan to a jointly controlled entity is secured and is extended based
R SRR - on normal commercial terms.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
33. MBARKRE 33. Investments in subsidiaries
—EBE-TF —ZTThHF
N Company 2010 2009
A IR Investments at cost:
BB ETRMD Shares listed in Hong Kong 3,487,879 2,746,127
JE ETHRR D Unlisted shares 366,834 357,636
3,854,713 3,103,763
JE W Bt /B8 & Bk IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 733,323 732,904
4,588,036 3,836,667
FE ST B A Rl 5RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (57,588) (57,588)
4,530,448 3,779,079
kD TE Market value of listed shares 11,966,539 9,477,945
FEU B AR 2 BB AEEE - R ERIE The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
LRER © repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

33. KMBAFRBE @)

REZE—ZF+-_HA=+—H ' AARZMBEA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

RIAAT 2010:

FrEROE R BET

#Mi%  Percentage of shares held EERRAE

NGRS TEER Place of E# Bk Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share
AFBRTEEERD A REEMR BE

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong 74.1% - HK$1,222,934,755
AHEEBERRA REZMR BA

Dah Sing Company Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000
AFREEBRAT R X BRE

Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited General insurance Bermuda 100% - HK$100,000,000
REZMR BRE

Dah Sing Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
AR REER AR RERAIE BA

Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited Insurance agency Hong Kong 100% - HK$500,000
AR REBR AR RBR AR Bh

Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited Insurance services Hong Kong 100% - HK$20
REZMR BRE

Dah Sing International Limited Investment holding Bermuda 100% - US$100,000
ASRBE BRE

Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited  Life assurance Bermuda 100% - US$25,000,000
REZMR KBRS

Dah Sing Medical Science Investment Inc. ~ Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% = US$50,000
TEex Bh

Dah Sing Secretarial Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
TEex Bh

DSE Investment Services Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$1,000,000

(Note (a)) (7F (F))

REEKR B2

Filey Investment Corporation Investment holding Panama 100% - Uss$2
NERE KBRS

High Standard Investment Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands 100% - uss$2
MKERBBRDA TEEX BA

Newinner Investments Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$2
RERR (TN BRAR FEEX BA

Summit Insurance (Asia) Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$45,000,016
TEex Bh

WOF Escrow Limited Dormant Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
ERERAR REZMR BA

World Prosper Limited Investment holding Hong Kong 100% - HKS$1
REEMR KBRS

Upway Wealth International Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - USS$1
TEex BA

DSFH Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$2
TEeX KBRS

DSGI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
TEEX KBRS

DSLI (BVI) (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
REEMR RERUAS

DSLI (2) Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1

DAH SING FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. MEARIHEE @) 33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)
FriG R 43 8 47t BB
#Mi%  Percentage of shares held EERRA
NGRS FEEK Place of E# B Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share
REZMR KBRS

DSMI Group Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands - 100% USS$1
TEex KBRS

Four Winds International Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 100% USs$2

BEEXERAA TEeXx BA

Luen Fung Investment Company, Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 100% HK$303,000

RPRBRERAE R BF

Macau Insurance Company Limited General insurance Macau - 96% MOP120,000,000

RPASRRERA R ASRR B

Macau Life Insurance Company Limited Life Insurance Macau - 95.8% MOP92,000,000

A RITEBRRA RAT 0

Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$3,600,000,000

RHRIT (PE) BRAF RAT hEARLNE

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 74.1% RMB1,000,000,000

ERRTERAT RAT Bh

MEVAS Bank Limited Banking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$400,000,000

BRERRTRNERAF #AT B

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 74.1% MOP225,000,000
NERE RERAES

Channel Winner Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.1% USS$1

AN ERZRARARA NERE 0

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$20

A BBEERRA TEex BA

Dah Sing Finance Limited Dormant Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$25,000,000

AFRBRERERA RIS BE

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$200,000
RE KBRS

Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1

A ERBRAA REBARS BA

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$100,000
REER BA

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$10,000
LTEex RERAES

Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
REER B

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$1
REEMR Bh

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$1
TEex KBRS

DSLI (1) Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1

AHESBRRA EHEE BA

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$10,000,000
B AR BA

MEVAS Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$50,000

LREHK (FB) ERAR mEx 0

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$450,000,000
NERE KBRS

Cycle Chance Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$2
NERE RERUAS

Dragon Tiger Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% Uss$2
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33. KMBAFRBE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

FrERB BRI BEfT

HMit®  Percentage of shares held EERRA

AR TEER Place of BE A& Particulars of issued

Name of company Principal activity incorporation Directly Indirectly ordinary share
NERE ERELES

Estoril Court Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.1% Uss$2
NERE RERRES

Grandmart Investments Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% Us$2
MNBEEERRA NERE BA

Modern World Holdings Limited Property investment Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$1
MNEEERRAA NERE 0

Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Property investment Hong Kong - 74.1% HK$1
NERE ERELES

Skill Sino Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.1% uss$2
NERE RERRES

Solar China Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% Uss$2
NERE ERELES

South Development Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands = 74.1% USS$1
NERE RERRES

Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% Us$2
HEREBR AT NERE BA

Vanishing Border Investment Property investment Hong Kong = 74.1% HK$20

Services Limited

NERE KBRS

Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
LTEex RERAES

Yield Rich Group Limited Dormant British Virgin Islands - 74.1% US$1
RAT REBS

D.A.H. Hambros Bank Banking Guernsey - 55.9% US$8,000,000

(Channel Islands) Limited

REER BRE

D.A.H. Holdings Limited Investment holding Bermuda - 55.9% US$1,000,000

CEBBMARSMARARLET

¥ D. A. H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands)

Limited * AXFTERTT (FE) BRAF]
SRR AR AT KR AZRR

TBERRAE

RPIR IR

BRAR K £t 5 BHE & LASNE A SZH) 2 7]

Hh - B AR ERBLE -

BRAFRITEBERARLAFBITERAEE
RBER ARSI LB AR RMAREH
R & LASN 77 s MRS - B R BB R

FXSZ 2 Fh AR BB ARFEEL o

ARFRIT (PR BERABDR -_ZZENFLAES
M MRS - BERBEHEARKMBE ZER

HEfAIERAR (EhaE

KHE) °

i

- BESORF Z B

(F7) DSE Investment Services Limitedfs 3% 17 & 38 %
4N JRESITHE(E 700 TR B L AL -

* Listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Except for D.A.H. Hambros Bank (Channel Islands) Limited, Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Macau
Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Except for Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
which are public limited companies, all the above companies are private
companies or, if incorporated outside Hong Kong, have substantially
the same characteristics as a Hong Kong incorporated private
company.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body)” under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

Note:
(@) In addition to the ordinary shares issued by DSE Investment Services
Limited, it also has preference shares in issue totalling HK$700.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
34, FEMLIEEE 34. Goodwill and intangible assets

BUER  EFBA
&0  BFKEE  BREE

BREE Core  Customer
%%  Contract deposit  relationship ki EH
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles Trade name Total
KA Cost
“2-T5-A-BRk At 1 January 2010 and
“2-Z4+-A=+-H 31 December 2010 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2ERE/ B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
“T-ZF-f—H At 1 January 2010 - 26,499 54,229 37,507 - 118,235
FERLH (HFE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - - 16,753 7,445 - 24,198
“E-ZF+-f=1-H At 31 December 2010 - 26,499 70,982 44,952 - 142,433
REE Carrying value
-2-25+-A=1-A At 31 December 2010 950,992 - 9,601 24,304 80927 1,065,824
BOER  EPBE
A%  EBREE @ EBWEE
BREE Core  Customer
Bl Contract deposit  relationship 7% Ch
£E Group Goodwill  intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
KA Cost
ZZENE-A-BR At 1 January 2009 and
“EEAE+-A=1—H 31 December 2009 950,992 26,499 80,583 69,256 80,927 1,208,257
2RHE/ S Accumulated impairment/amortisation
“ZZNE-R—H At 1 January 2009 - 23,943 45,293 29,677 - 98,913
ERi (WE12) Charge for the year (Note 12) - 2,556 8,936 7,830 - 19,322
“EENE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2009 - 26,499 54,229 37,507 - 118,235
REE Carrying value
“ZENE+-A=1-A At 31 December 2009 950,992 - 26,354 31,749 80,927 1,090,022
EERAPRCBFEEREEGN  RUEREE Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
FPRARERAESARBEBRERZANTHE T intangible and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised over
ZEZAAFHEN ERARCAPRTE S their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance
FERIHEREBE R AKATR ZRREBE method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life and is tested
N annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
HENERRTRAEEMRREBHEERAZ Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
REELBM (BREEABMN]) UEBERHY ° identified according to geographical area of operation and business
TEREMEHEEEZDE - segment for impairment losses assessment. A summary of goodwill

allocation is presented below.
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(CABET ThLHIR)

34, AL EE (&)

g

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)
“E2AF+-A=1t-BR
—E-Bft-A=t-H
As at 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010

BERIT 18 AR AT
Commercial Personal BMEEK R &5t
£ Group Banking Banking Treasury Insurance Total
BB Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - - 318,667
YR Macau 199,140 260,408 33,475 139,302 632,325
395,618 382,597 33,475 139,302 950,992

EFEEYEERBERARIBREBR(CET
NEFE ) o

HEABFERENSR BLREBFTEZEAE
BEMEECReEEBNENEHE - ZTEIE
FRESEERASMEE - AR A8 2 F8IER
S BB FIERER2%#RERFUBEX
RoFERZMBAXRNEENAEERARITE
EXREEES 2 EEEBRARNZEARKAN
EEHE - ROTEBREELEEV IR XA
12.59% (ZZZTNF : 11.04%) © MR EBHE
SELBMZUHEERA12.92% (ZZSNEF ¢
11.43%) °

SR EET ORERAFA T ER2RABEBR
5 2 BRI B RIRER K (BR1T 375 3% » RIE 575
732%) B AR ERGT 8| 2 TR - B A E 15
RE2%HRERFARTKE - FTEAZAERE
TN B R HRTTER B 2 B AR T
B ZEERIRET 2 EERR M AT 12% =
13% 2 f °

No impairment loss on goodwill and trade names are identified in the
year (2009: Nil).

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on value
in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections prepared
by the Senior Management in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate
used is based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s weighted average
cost of capital depending of type of businesses carried out by the CGU,
which are 12.59% (2009: 11.04%) for CGUs under banking business
and 12.92% (2009: 11.43%) for CGU under insurance business.

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using
pre-tax royalty rates of 3% for banking business and 2% for insurance
business with reference to similar business services transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate in the range
of 12% to 13% used is based on the Group’s and its Banking Group’s
weighted average cost of capital depending of type of businesses

carried out.
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35. A7 ML R B A

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets

B
BRERAE
Furniture,

TE  equipment and B%
£8 Group Premises  motor vehicles Total
HE_ZTNF+_A=+—HULEFE Year ended 31 December 2009
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,890,718 178,976 2,069,694
i Additions - 62,837 62,837
FETEEGRERR Recovery of previous revaluation

deficits 1,453 - 1,453
EHARK Revaluation surplus 411,918 = 411,918
& Disposals (3,968) (2,186) (6,154)
FEZ L (FHE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (55,642) (57,575) (113,217
FAREEFE Closing net book amount 2,244,479 182,052 2,426,531
—ETNE+_A=1+—H At 31 December 2009
A/ 5 1B Cost/valuation 2,244,670 483,772 2,728,442
2BHE Accumulated depreciation (191) (301,720) (301,911)
REFE Net book amount 2,244,479 182,052 2,426,531
BE-_Z-Z5+-RA=1+—-HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2010
FHIREFE Opening net book amount 2,244,479 182,052 2,426,531
g Additions 63,200 98,123 161,323
ENDBIREMERTE Reclassification from investment

properties to premises 140,611 - 140,611
PAFE1T 2 S A 1 [ Recovery of previous revaluation

deficits 180 - 180
BHARK Revaluation surplus 538,538 - 538,538
HE Disposals (113,510) (15,078) (128,588)
e (fsE12) Depreciation charge (Note 12) (68,482) (62,008) (130,490)
FEREETFE Closing net book amount 2,805,016 203,089 3,008,105
—E-EF+=ZA=+-H At 31 December 2010
KA/ fhE Cost/valuation 2,805,270 538,749 3,344,019
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (254) (335,660) (335,914)
BRERE Net book amount 2,805,016 203,089 3,008,105
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(CABET ThLHIR)

35. A7 B R H At [ A (D)

AEBAERF 2 EER -2 —BF+=A=+
— BT o AT BB BRI RS — A
TREN (EERFLEN) ARAT GRS
R EE N W) RE— AT B (2P9)
ARD T GHIREP 2 9%) BRI TS EEE
(T -

HITERBEERAEZELETR - ESBAT ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

The Group’s premises were last revalued at 31 December 2010.
Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by
independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and
Professional Services) Limited for premises in Hong Kong and Mainland

China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for premises in Macau.

If premises were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would

be as follows:
—E-BF —ZTTHE
5 Group 2010 2009
BN Cost 1,201,928 1,083,360
2EFE Accumulated depreciation (219,098) (205,287)
BREFE Net book amount 982,830 878,073

RTZA=1+—R8 TE;REGEEEE KA

At 31 December, the cost or valuation of premises and other fixed assets

SHEIHWT ¢ is as follows:
&£E Group
&AW -
BRERAE
Furniture,
TE  equipment and B
—E-ZF 2010 Premises  motor vehicles Total
DN At cost 435 538,749 539,184
BEE-—_T—TF At valuation - 2010 2,804,835 - 2,804,835
2,805,270 538,749 3,344,019
R -
HERAE
Furniture,
TE equipment and Bt
“ETNEF 2009 Premises motor vehicles Total
DN At cost 422 483,772 484,194
BEE-—TENEF At valuation - 2009 2,244,248 = 2,244,248
2,244,670 483,772 2,728,442
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(CABET ThLHIR)

35. A7 B R H At [ A (D)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

TEZEEDFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
—B-%F C"TTIhF
£ Group 2010 2009
TEEH Leaseholds
EBEBFAZFEELY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ER+F2H) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,326,508 1,879,709
TEBBAINEE 2 R HIE A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ZER+F2M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 478,508 364,770
2,805,016 2,244,479
36. HEWE 36. Investment properties
—E-BF —ZTTHF
£8 Group 2010 2009
—H—H At 1 January 568,659 459,304
Hrig Additions 216,339 118,007
EMHH Reclassification (140,611) -
k= Disposals (114,001) (81,959)
EHEAFEKS Fair value gains on revaluation 74,262 73,307
+—-—A=+—H At 31 December 604,648 568,659

AEBREVESH 2EER_T—FF+_A
=+ —HET  BFHERBLEXRSTREMSE
— KPR (BEREXRERE) BRAR (BLAL
REERBBEEANZYE) RE—KFEAET OR
F)BERAE GHIRNRFIZME) RARTISE
BEEETT -

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December

2010. Valuations were made on the basis of open market value by

independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and

Professional Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong

and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment

properties in Macau.

KEYHE 2 RHFEBRE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
—g-¥F —TTAF
£E= Group 2010 2009
GisRi=g:i Leaseholds
EBAEFAE ZHHELN Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(E+ZER+F2M) lease (between 10-50 years) 544,305 511,545
FEBBAINGE 2R HAHEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(E+ER+F2M) term lease (between 10-50 years) 60,343 57,114
604,648 568,659
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37. RMIFMEEZAZMREMEME

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. Value of in-force long-term life assurance business

—E-BF —TTHE
£H Group 2010 2009
—HA—H At 1 January 1,225,668 1,274,452
FAFREEE 2N Additions from current year new business 115,269 157,009
SREBEIREZEH Movement from in-force business (39,953) (36,790)
Hh Others 17,332 (169,003)
+=-—A=+—H8 At 31 December 1,318,316 1,225,668
38. g A 38. Other assets
—E-BF —TTHE
£ Group 2010 2009
DIREE Reinsurance assets 356,170 232,190
FEUY FRIE R TE S IR B Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,106,847 1,604,247
s A Accrued income 585,189 542,683
Hith Others 189,550 227,682
3,237,756 2,606,802
39. FREET A A 39. Trading liabilities
—E-BF —TTHE
5 Group 2010 2009
THEEERRRBEEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 4,700,893 2,068,300
40. FFAK 40. Deposits from customers
—E-BF —ZTTHEF
5 Group 2010 2009
E B R R RTF R Demand deposits and current
accounts 12,852,258 12,358,269
WEFER Savings deposits 14,829,143 14,040,614
FEH B MEETFER Time, call and notice deposits 68,445,240 61,971,188
96,126,641 88,370,071

EEFO&KRBEWFIEAADESBEN] B
AHE 2 B @ 2 17 5028,558,00008 7T (—EZE S,
£ : 67,439,0007 7T) °

B B fF R4

Eo
NI

MEBEEMEFPERERIEEF

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$28,558,000 (2009:

HK$67,439,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than fixed deposits, all other customer deposits carry variable

interest rates.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. AT HYFE KR 41. Certificates of deposit issued

—E-ZTF —ZThF
£H Group 2010 2009
EENAFEGFEEEZEHT AERE Designated at fair value through

R R E R T QT ES R

R AR AR

RoZE—ZTER-FTNER  AEBXREGRT
BRI TEMERTEREAAATETE
BEHS8H ABK -

EENAATEFEBEEZBT ABR 2B EITE
KB FEINP TG ESEE) (FIEA : FZE - 5b

) RAEBZEERREE 2 A FEZEH 5
AU 73,252,000 T (ZEENEF : W& B
17,390,000/ 7T) & /E5181,448,000/8 70 (=& F
F : 5518 56,626,000/87T) °

NEBMENECBETTREDHEIZANEMNN
SRR _LFTZ 2 BRE{E{K 17,000,000 7T (ZF

T 14 : {£18,000,000/%7T) °

42, TEBITWEEESR

profit or loss 465,726 520,790

At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 3,684,849 686,513
At amortised cost 595,479 852,707
4,746,054 2,060,010

During 2010 and 2009, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The change in the fair value of certificates of deposit issued and
designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable to changes in
external market prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of
HK$3,252,000 (2009: a gain of HK$17,390,000) and that attributable to
the Group’s own credit standing is a loss of HK$1,448,000 (2009: a
loss of HK$6,626,000) respectively.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$17 million

lower (2009: HK$18 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

42. Issued debt securities

—g-%F -—TThE

55 Group 2010 2009
RE SRR T AR At amortised cost 1,943,342 =

RZE—FF+_A=T—HAZEETELH
ABARFIRITBEBAFIRIT ZBON TS AR EET
1T WEHIER S ([FRFF]) Emz
250,000,000 0% 828K ([RIE]) - ZEZBRE
B REIABR-_ZE—=FTHtH - %ZE
BOMAINET  BER=ZZE—ZSFTALHE
712175,000,000E TR =S —FF+—A+A
H #£17 275,000,0003 Tt °

Issued debt securities as at 31 December 2010 represent US$250
million Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”) issued by DSB under DSB’s
Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and are listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange Trading Limited (“SGX”). The Notes are unsecured and
have a final maturity on 7 October 2013. The Notes were issued in two
series, comprising US$175 million issued on 7 October 2010 and US$75

million issued on 15 November 2010.
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43, BEEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43.

Subordinated notes

—g-%F -—TThE

2010 2009
150,000,000 7L = — A F B HA K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FERERR GER) Rate Notes due 2015 (Note (a)) - 1,163,235
150,000,000 TR = —EFEIHH US$150,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EEREGRE GEL) Rate Notes due 2017 (Note (b)) 1,200,975 1,145,786
150,000,000 7T 1A = — /N F 2 HA K US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating
FEREGER GER) Rate Notes due 2016 (Note (c)) 1,165,995 1,163,235
225,000,000 T E A EER GET) US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes (Note (d)) 1,779,571 -
200,000,0003 7T K A JE B & B E US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated
(FEX) Fixed Rate Notes (Note (€)) 497,651 1,129,979
4,644,192 4,602,235
EENRAFEEGE BEEET AEHR Designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,200,975 1,145,786
RER R E RN AT EY R At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 2,277,222 1,129,979
2B BRB AR P BR At amortised cost 1,165,995 2,326,470
4,644,192 4,602,235

RIB-—ZER_ZBTNFA  AEERERY
IRFERE R EEMREBHE /AR TFEFERLR

(R) BDAFRITR-ZTAFHA=—TNABETZ
150,000,0003% 7T /£ & 78 2 22 5 FT £ i S 4% R E
RBINERRE B REEBR ([EF]) - LEEK
HR-ZFE—RFAANBEH - BIEHEERA
ZZE-TFERANA c AFBRTER =T —TF
EHERNIAGS

() WHRFRITR_ZZRFNATNBETZ
150,000,000 7T 4F £.5.451 % £ E R ER 5 Ff
M AEARMERANE L BREEGR ([E
Bl  WEBHKHER_Z—+&ENA+N\BE
B REMBEERA—T——F\A+/\B-A
BITARHBEEREERER F2A5451% ' &
FERB—IK - Hif - WEFRERZEEEA
e ARNFISEETTAERAFHERESE
EHEEEM—BE-t+HTF EEBEBSERE
SEHOfE - RFTIRIT AT IR IR IR A s AR 5 8
ARA B KA ZEEEEEATE GED) &
15 o RFERITINE R — B RITEI L AR HIE
HIGEB K EE ] SR AU ETIRITRIZER S
REMEFEF K o

During 2010 and 2009, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(@)

(b)

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 29 April 2005 (the
“Notes”), which were listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes had a maturity date on 6 May 2015 with an optional redemption
date falling on 6 May 2010. DSB had fully repaid the Notes in 2010.

This represents US$150,000,000 5.451% Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 18 August 2005
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. The
Notes will mature on 18 August 2017 with an optional redemption date
falling on 18 August 2012. Interest at 5.451% p.a. is payable semi-annually
from the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the
Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will
bear interest at the then prevailing 5-year US Treasury rate plus 220 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with

an international bank.
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43.

RAEEH (%)

()

A 2
| KD
30|
=3

A
Rk

W HRFRITRZZZTNENA AT
150,000,0003% 7T /£ #7 32 Fr 1= i1 3 45 52 58 43 Bt i
BANZEBREER (EK]) - LEEBHRZ
T-RERAA=ZRZH - EEUBEEA-T—
—FAA=H - BBFTEHEHBEENEER - It
ﬁ%ZﬂgﬁzﬁH%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁQMt+
RET  UWE=@EAET—K - & - HEBKK
E%%%%@H%@'E&mﬂéﬁiﬂﬁzﬁ
REETRITAFEFEM—B T RETF - 5

SEELERIELRE - RIRITAINEEILE
@H&Im%@mﬂﬂgﬁ HAREEERER
FiE GEEEH) & ©

W ARHFBTR T —SF_A+—B%T2
225,000,000 7T 7£ ¥ 32 AT & 1 30 #% 57 57 A T A0
BANESBEER (EBK]) - LEEBHR=
T_TF_A+—HEH - £846.625% ' &
FERME—IR o RIFRITINE B — B RITE L
FZts B 6 4016 BT K Bl E A 842 AR AR TT iR
TRIZEFRE AERZEF SR -

W ARFBETIR_TTLE A+ BETZ
200,000,000 ST EFT X BT LT I 4 R e /B
B INE A K E BAKA B EER ([EH]) o 1LEE
BriEEtEER A2 —tF_-_A+tA3
H-BHBETAEHEEUHERA 84
6.253% * FHFMHB—IR - Hi& » MEBRE
BEMESAER  ARNFSEETA=EA
HMETRITAEREM—BNTET - EEBE
BRE RIELIE - RFIRITAINEEHEER
SABEERRFENREAEEEEER RS
GEZD) EF - KFRITINE H—BIRRITRI L
FZts 16 4016 ERS A Bl e A1 8 A AR TT iR
TRIZEFRE AERNZEF SR -
RZZ—FF - KFRITHR IR & B FIE
12 B & DA iR (B ] S 4 3% 7N & 48 %8 /375,000,000
%mZ%PEF(:%%hﬁ:momom%
) MBBZERERERESEEEERZ
ﬁ%%&&aﬁﬁoaéﬁ2$ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁ
ZEBESAGARERZ [HERBEHEMS
BT EZF (E8) MaElET -

H
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a
)
o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43.

Subordinated notes (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(©

(d)

(e)

This represents US$150,000,000 Subordinated Floating Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 2 June 2006 (the
“Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 3 June
2016 with an optional redemption date falling on 3 June 2011. Interest
rate for the Notes is set on a quarterly basis based on 3-month LIBOR
plus 75 basis points from the issue date to the optional redemption date.
Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset and
the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 175 basis points. DSB
may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the
Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional redemption
date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 11 February 2010
(the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on 11
February 2020. Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi annually. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with

an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper Supplementary capital of DSB issued on 16
February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes carry
an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus 190
basis points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date.
An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of
the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into

with an international bank.

In 2010, DSB repurchased a portion of the Notes with a total notional
principal of US$75,000,000 (2009: US$70,000,000) at a discount after
unwinding an identical notional amount of interest rate swap. Such
repurchased Notes were cancelled after receiving prior approval of the
HKMA. The difference between the carrying amount of the liability and
the consideration paid is included under “Net (loss)/gain on disposal and
repurchase of other financial instruments” in the consolidated income
statement.



B 5 SRR B =

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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43. RUEEB @)

FEENA T E = B HE BT A B 2 B ERER A
FEINBIDSERES) (P40 : R - HNE) RS
BEEMRREE 2 A FESHRBE_S—ZTF 1
ZA=+—RHIEFEH 7R #20,203,000% 7T

—ZETZNF : ILz536,463,000/8 L) K E B
72,547,000% 7T (ZZEZ 4 ¢ 518141,076,0007%
JT) °
AEBFLEREEFEHRIZENENNESE
LA EFT5I 2 BRI {E1K176,000,0008 T (Z 2=
JL4F : {£104,000,0007% 7T) °

44, FABRRH R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. Subordinated notes (Continued)

The change in the fair value of subordinated notes designated at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to changes in external market
prices (e.g. interest rate, currency) is a gain of HK$20,203,000 (2009: a
gain of HK$36,463,000) and that attributable to the Group’s own credit
standing is a loss of HK$72,547,000 (2009: a loss of HK$141,076,000)

respectively in the year ended 31 December 2010.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$176 million
lower (2009: HK$104 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

44. Other accounts and accruals

—g-BF _—TTAF

5 Group 2010 2009
REEHZ Other liabilities under

Hihafs insurance contracts 1,517,500 1,271,083
Hith Others 2,481,546 2,543,053

3,999,046 3,814,136
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
44, FH AWM H R FEHR @) 44. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)
ReeHzEMBE AT : Other liabilities under insurance contracts are analysed below:
—E-EF
2010
PROE
g Reinsurers’ BE

58 Group Gross Share Net
— AR B General Insurance
KRB Z REFE Unearned premium reserve 163,065 (88,092) 74,973
BEBZERHE Notified claims 305,127 (180,996) 124,131
TERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 24,538 (9,073) 15,465
ENENE = Unexpired risk reserve 893 1,465 2,358

493,623 (276,696) 216,927
R Life
RELEHES Policy provisions 1,023,877 (7,747) 1,016,130
) Total 1,517,500 (284,443) 1,233,057
—RRB General Insurance
AARBRZRERHE Unearned premium reserve
—HA—H At 1 January 105,075 (48,865) 56,210
RERA Written premiums 361,622 (212,745) 148,877
ERIZRE Earned premiums (303,632) 173,518 (130,114)
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 163,065 (88,092) 74,973
CERRCARNERER2ZE R Notified and incurred but not reported

RAERBRZHE claims, and unexpired risk reserve

BEBZERHE Notified claims 272,253 (161,335) 110,918
TERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 14,449 (3,450) 10,999
RIERER 2 B Unexpired risk reserve 4,071 (1,693) 2,378
—H—H At 1 January 290,773 (166,478) 124,295
B A Claims paid (205,488) 143,475 (62,013)
BANZERE Claims incurred 245,273 (165,601) 79,672
+=-A=+-H At 31 December 330,558 (188,604) 141,954
BEBZERE Notified claims 305,127 (180,996) 124,131
TERMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 24,538 (9,073) 15,465
R E W R 2 Unexpired risk reserve 893 1,465 2,358

330,558 (188,604) 141,954
1 Life
REEES Policy provisions
—H—H At 1 January 875,235 (5,996) 869,239
BEXNERE Claims paid (485,661) 11,073 (474,588)
BANERE Claims incurred 634,303 (12,824) 621,479

+=-A=+—8© At 31 December 1,023,877 (7,747) 1,016,130
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44, FLARR H R IR @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

—ETHE
2009
DIRNEE
ok Reinsurers’ TREE
e Group Gross Share Net
— R IR General Insurance
KA BRI RE G Unearned premium reserve 105,075 (54,788) 50,287
BEEHRZRE Notified claims 272,253 (161,335) 110,918
FEANERERRE Claims incurred but not reported 14,449 (3,450) 10,999
REMER 2 FE Unexpired risk reserve 4,071 (1,693) 2,378
395,848 (221,266) 174,582
Sk Life
REEES Policy provisions 875,235 (5,996) 869,239
B Total 1,271,083 (227,262) 1,043,821
— AR General Insurance
RAREZ REREE Unearned premium reserve
—B—H At 1 January 139,966 (85,977) 53,989
RERA Written premiums 273,457 (146,541) 126,916
BRI RE Earned premiums (308,348) 177,730 (130,618)
+-A=+—8 At 31 December 105,075 (54,788) 50,287
EERERERNERERIRE - Notified and incurred but not
RIEMER < reported claims,
and unexpired risk reserve
BEEHRZRE Notified claims 237,170 (141,317) 95,853
FEMNERERZRE Claims incurred but not reported 6,908 288 7,196
AR E W R 2 7 Unexpired risk reserve 1,191 1,268 2,459
—A—H At 1 January 245,269 (139,761) 105,508
EXRE Claims paid (96,067) 36,289 (59,778)
BEMNRE Claims incurred 141,571 (63,006) 78,565
+-A=+—8 At 31 December 290,773 (166,478) 124,295
BEEHRZRE Notified claims 272,253 (161,335) 110,918
FEANEREHRCEE Claims incurred but not reported 14,449 (3,450) 10,999
AR E W R 2 Unexpired risk reserve 4,071 (1,693) 2,378
290,773 (166,478) 124,295
=M Life
REEFES Policy provisions
—B—H At 1 January 737,226 2,679) 734,547
EXRE Claims paid (677,908) 9,646 (668,260)
BERNRE Claims incurred 815,915 (12,963) 802,952
+=A=+—H At 31 December 875,235 (5,996) 869,239
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45. ERWREEARESETAZAH

&M

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. Liabilities to policyholders under long-term insurance

contracts

—B-%F C"TTIhF
Group 2010 2009

HEHRBENREREAZAKRAGERRE

DR

HEARBESOREFSAAZRRARFE

EHRBANIRERE A2 ARA RS BHEL
mF :

Gross future liabilities to policyholders
under long-term insurance contracts 5,928,783 4,794,792
Reinsurers’ share (71,727) (4,929)

Net future liabilities to policyholders

under long-term insurance contracts 5,857,056 4,789,863

The movement in future liabilities to policyholders under long-term

insurance contracts is summarised as below:

—g-%F -—TTh&

55 Group 2010 2009
—H—H At 1 January 4,789,863 4,473,216
RIRBERE 2 Z Change in provisions for future liabilites 1,067,193 316,647
+=H=+—H At 31 December 5,857,056 4,789,863
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
46. WALFHLIA 46. Deferred income tax
BERIBEERBENEIERTEEBAENITE Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
ST 85 BN BT TH & A= AN BN AR 18 B (B R RIEE R IE legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
HE - EEE AR S A ETT - KIS current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
I~ 8 to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
—E-BF —ZTTHEF
5 Group 2010 2009
EEFRIBREE Deferred income tax assets 6,570 78,178
RLEHIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities (89,548) (15,366)
—E-BF —ZTTHEF
5 Group 2010 2009
BEEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets:
-AET—EAABKE ZELEREEE — Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than
12 months 199,918 294,421
BEEFIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
-EET-REAREEZEERIESE — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
settled after more than
12 months (282,896) (231,609)
(82,978) 62,812
RIER BB BT The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:
—B-%F C"FTThF
5 Group 2010 2009
—H—H At 1 January 62,812 152,894
PRl R AR IE () /= Tax (charged)/credited to the
(MF5E19) income statement (Note 19) (51,086) 7,358
RERRAKRIES B Tax charged to equity (94,707) (97,440)
EHER Exchange differences 3 s
+—-—A=+—H At 31 December (82,978) 62,812
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46. WAEBLIA (&)

BERBEERABERANFEZ2EE)  TEER
HRTORE S N RE &R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

9% JE 8 JE O - Deferred income tax assets:
BELH
REERRERE NERBAE Rt
Impairment  Accelerated REEM Deferred
allowances and tax HEBE  Investment  expenses ait
£ Group provisions depreciation ~ Taxlosses  revaluation  and others Total
“ZENE-P-H At 1 January 2009 35,679 624 3,052 306,529 12,635 358,519
RREEREE/ (i) Credited/(charged) to the
income statement 14,732 (624) (120) - (12,498) 1,490
RERRAT Charged to equity - - - (79,255) - (79,255)
ERER Exchange differences ) - - - - )]
ENDE Reclassification - - - - 13,669 13,669
“ZENE+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2009 and
k=ZZ2-%£-4-H 1 January 2010 50,409 - 2,932 227,274 13,806 294,421
REEREAZ Charged to the income statement (8,914) - (1,768) - (137) (10,819)
RERERT L Charged to equity - - - (70,136) - (70,136)
EiEZ Exchange differences 3 - - 4 - 7
BNAE Reclassification - - - 114 (13,669) (13,555)
“2-2£+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2010 41,498 - 1,164 157,256 - 199,918
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46. WAEBLIA (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. Deferred income tax (Continued)

8 FE R IE A AF - Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE RENMKER
Accelerated ~ fTEEf Investment  REEf
B tax  Premises  properties  Investment Hth &it
£® Group Provisions depreciation  revaluation revaluation  revaluation Others Total
ZEENE-F-H At 1 January 2009 27,893 19,867 126,317 28,517 104 2,927 205,625
RERER (EE) /2t (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (37,285) 795 24,866 8,455 - (2,699 (5,868)
REFERTH Charged to equity - - 18,106 - 79 - 18,185
EiES Exchange differences - - - - - @) 2
BNAE Reclassification 13,669 - - - - - 13,669
ZEENETZR=T-H At 31 December 2009
k=E-ZF-f-H and 1 January 2010 4217 20,662 169,289 36,972 183 226 231,609
Rb&EEAZ I Charged to the income statement 14,035 5,433 2,709 18,149 - (59) 40,267
RERREAT I Charged to equity - - 24,517 - 54 - 24,571
EiEZ Exchange differences - - - - 4 - 4
BHNAE Reclassification (13,669) - - - 114 - (13,555)
“E-EE4+-B=1-H At 31 December 2010 4,643 26,095 196,515 55,121 355 167 282,896

LT FEARERRA X ZRLETHRIA

&M

The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as follows:

—g-%F -—TTh&
Group 2010 2009

RECR s 2 AP ERE

-1TE
-AHEERES

47. BLEE A EZ G

MBANKRRARE BREARBZMBATZ
BRI

Fair value reserves in

shareholders’ equity:

— premises (24,517) (18,106)
— available-for-sale securities (70,190) (79,334)
(94,707) (97,440)

47. Balances with Group companies
Included in the following statement of financial position captions are

balances with a subsidiary of the Company detailed as follows:

—E-BF —ZTTHhF
Company 2010 2009

Bank balances 458,089 17,666
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48. BAR A fE KR
(F) B AR5

Rt A=1+—RERE AIAREREEREHR

BEBABREEEZEARRENT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

48. Contingent liabilities and commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets

as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

—g-BF _—TTAF

5 Group 2010 2009
EREEREFN ZHAX Expenditure authorised
but not contracted for 1,047 97
EENERERERB A Expenditure contracted
but not provided for 114,875 92,823
115,922 92,920

(&) 15 B&fE

AEEBEEABRIMVERETEPZERMTA

BHeBEREEERRINESENT

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHNEE
Contract amount

—g-%F -—TThF

£E= Group 2010 2009
HEGFERE R Direct credit substitutes 406,247 628,899
B 5 ABEE Transaction related contingencies 37,977 14,104
HE ZHE 2 AIEE Trade-related contingencies 854,486 536,962
Al E R BUE MmN ATR L Commitments that are unconditionally
B2 A cancellable without prior notice 44,732,958 32,030,819
H fth A Other commitments with an
RAHR S original maturity of:
- PR —F - under 1 year 4,267,809 3,859,558
-—F RN E -1 year and over 1,685,241 933,340
EHFR Forward forward deposits placed 6,982 61,508
51,991,700 38,065,190
EERMESEE
Credit risk
weighted amount
—E-TF Z—ZTTHHF
£E= Group 2010 2009
SR A E SEE Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,746,053 1,459,809
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48. BAR A fE KR (@)
() BRI 2 & &

TRTARAEBENERSEBEEFNEER R
MSHFABMERGEESERZIIEERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

48. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s

trading and market-marking activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

BESH follows:
—E-BF —TTHE
568 Group 2010 2009
BIEEE RE 2E3 Trading securities 1,686,155 4,689,792
A & 5 Available-for-sale securities 61,989 684,429
1,748,144 5,374,221

TR BB GRER TR REE 2
HFES

Non-government bonds pledged with unrelated financial institutions

under repurchase agreements are as follows:

—E-THE —TTHE

S Group 2010 2009

AHEEES Available-for-sale securities = 97,547

R EHES Held-to-maturity securities - 148,065
BIETEE R R E R RIELE R Investments in securities included in

ZRBHETE the loans and receivables category 85,152 93,603

85,152 339,215

(T) BEHERNE

IARKEREEA - BAAEUEMRELEEM
RARAXNZ ZERENRERLT :

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company

is the lessee, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:

—®2-8F “TTNhF
£H Group 2010 2009
—F LA Not later than 1 year 87,749 86,430

—FURERSF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 101,470 115,061
FFU E Later than 5 years 63,298 33,392
252,517 234,883
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(CABET ThLHIR)

48. BAR A fE KR (@)
(T) REMERE @)

WAEEAEAA - R AABUEMRLLSHEEM
RARAIN ZZERENRERAT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

48. Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

(d) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

follows:
—E-BF _—TThHF
£ Group 2010 2009
—FE AR Not later than 1 year 11,846 23,035
—FURERSF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 1,307 7,580
13,153 30,615
49. JRA 49. Share capital
—E-BF —TTHE
2010 2009
SEERRAN Authorised:
300,000,000 A% & 37 A% 300,000,000 ordinary shares
ERmE2E T of HK$2 each 600,000 600,000
—E-BF —ZETNF
2010 2009
B8 & e e
ERTREBERE : Issued and fully paid: Number of Share Number of Share
ZER SREE2ET Ordinary shares of HK$ 2 each shares Capital shares Capital
—H—H At 1 January 260,270,655 520,541 260,270,655 520,541
BITH R D FT S 3UE Proceeds from shares issued 32,533,831 65,068 - -
+=—A=+—H At 31 December 292,804,486 585,609 260,270,655 520,541

R-ZB—ZTE+-A+"8 ' ARaTKATR
36.8978 7T 2 SRIE B IR T8 A% 17 AT Ee 1 AR AL A% A%
5 2 A% o ANA R4 £ ¥1732,533,831 1% T A% %

,T/'\ ®

BR-ZTRAFMNA =+ N\ HREEZ R
Bl ([ZRREE) - BEZRARESTEIET
AR - 400 (ZZ2EZENF ¢ 401p) 7l R &
2,977,566/% (Z=Z N4 : 2,850,0008%) &% HE
BB T2 A RRIRGD 2 RKE ERTHMNE
EREENERITHRAL -

RF

=

[

RA®E

Zl

&

i

Qi

+
5

On 16 December 2010, the Company completed a 1-for-8 rights issue
at the subscription price of HK$36.89 per share. A total of 32,533,831

new shares were issued.

Pursuant to the new Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved
by the shareholders on 28 April 2005, 40 (2009: 40) options to subscribe
for 2,977,566 shares (2009: 2,850,000 shares) of HK$2 each of the

Company had been granted to certain directors and senior executives

of the Group since the inception of the Scheme.
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
49. JEA (@) 49. Share capital (Continued)
REABHEERSRITBRABRE ZRREF R Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options
RNAEIRMDEE ZBHMOT held by directors and senior executives during the year are as follows:
RRERROEE
Number of shares
in the options
—E-2F —TIThEF
2010 2009
—H—H At 1 January 2,850,000 2,850,000
RERKRK Lapsed during the year (500,000) =
A NTT A2 AR VR SR Adjustment for rights issue completed
during the year 105,195 =
+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,455,195 2,850,000
FEATERTRARE(ZZEZNE : &) - No share options were granted during the year (2009: Nil).
R+ZA=+—BHRETEZRBEEFES 0 Particulars of the outstanding options as at 31 December are as follows:
T~
AREFROEE
AREHE Number of shares
RYHARTEE Date of grant and exercise price Number of options in the options
—E-2F —IZTHhFE ZEB-FTF ZTITNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
“EERFENAZTHA - 25 August 2005, at an exercise
RITE (B FA49.497% T price of HK$49.49 per share* 25 25 2,246,245 2,150,000
—EERFANALR 7 September 2006, at an exercise
1217 (E 5 64.89745 L price of HK$64.89 per share* - 5 - 500,000
“ZET+FNA-FNR 28 September 2007, at an exercise
R (B Fh59.287 L price of HK$59.28 per share* 10 10 208,950 200,000
35 40 2,455,195 2,850,000
* TEEEZERR T TFRETK IHRTE * the exercise price is restated to take into account the effect of the rights
I {EH AR - issue completed during the last quarter of 2010
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(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
50. fif 50. Reserves
TEER REEMR RERFH
i E3] ()
[RAHE  Premises Investment EXfE  —MEHHE  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation  Exchange General  Earnings it
] Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (i) Total
“Z-Z%-f-H At 1 January 2010 1,551,426 1,048,187 (638,819) 49,120 484,280 8,380,833 10,875,036
AHEMEESF Fair value gains on
AT AR available-for-sale securities - - 149,189 - - - 149,189
ATEBEAREEE  Fairvalue loss realised and
BRI SRR transferred to income statement
ENNBERER upon disposal of investments
REWFEER RHFE  in securities included in
HESRR 2 EFRER  the loans and receivables
SR RERENEE category and held-to-maturity
category which were previously
reclassified from the
available-for-sale category - - 89,554 - - - 89,554
HEMHRLEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - (42,813) - - - (42,813)
REERGEES Deferred income tax assets
e released on movements in
EIEHEAE investment revaluation reserve - - (51,658) - - - (51,658)
TEEMfZATERE  Fairvalue gains on
revaluation of premises - 425,666 - - - - 425,666
TEEMEES Deferred income tax liabilities
MR recognised on movements in
ELHEAR premises revaluation reserve - (18,175) - - - - (18,175)
RTERE Revaluation reserve transferred
ECEL 1 to retained earnings for
ERBEAN depreciation of premises - (12,228) - - - 12,228 -
HETE Revaluation reserve transferred
EZLE to retained earnings upon
REEERERA disposal of premises - (17,483) - - - 17,483 -
BEBINNBRRET  Exchange differences arising on
BEMERLEZR translation of the
financial statements
of foreign entities - - - 54,636 - - 54,636
EnLakki Issue of ordinary shares 1,135,105 - - - - - 1,135,105
FRER Profit for the year - - - - - 1,006290 1,006,290
ZE-ZEAHKRE 2010 interim dividend - - - - - (52,054)  (52,054)

“E-ZE+-H=1—H At31December 2010 2,686,531 1,425,967 (494,547) 103,756 484,289 9,364,780 13,570,776
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(CABET ThLHIR)

50. fkHs (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Reserves (Continued)

TEEME REER —HEE  RERF
E i (& (i) (X ()
BRIVGE  Premises Investment [} GfE General  Retained
Share Revaluation Revaluation ~ Exchange Reserve Earnings &3t
== Group Premium Reserve Reserve Reserve Note (ii) Note (i) Total
“ZTNFE-F—A At 1 January 2009 1,551,426 769,686  (1,293,164) 51,141 573,435 7,719,136 9,371,660
AEMEES Fair value gains on
AFHERE available-for-sale securities - - 641,564 - - - 641,564
REASHRE Investment revaluation reserve
AN EEFRE transferred to income statement
EEEY €A upon impairment of
available-for-sale securities - - 17,722 - - - 17,722
HEAHRLEES Disposal of available-for-sale
securities - - 53,145 - - - 53,145
REASHFHEE Deferred income tax assets
ez released on movements in
BEERELE investment revaluation reserve - - (58,086) - - - (58,086)
TEEMfZATERE  Fairvalue gains on
revaluation of premises - 327,483 - - - - 327,483
NESEHRHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
MERLZ recognised on movements in
BERBAR premises revaluation reserve - (13,334) - - - - (13,334)
RIERE Revaluation reserve transferred
mEBEHEE to retained earnings for
ERBEF depreciation of premises - (8,775) - - - 8,775 -
HETE Revaluation reserve transferred
mEBEhEE to retained earnings upon
BEZRAEH disposal of premises - (26,873) = = = 26,873 =
BEBINHBARME  Exchange differences arising on
BRAELZR translation of the
financial statements of
foreign entities - - - (2,021) - - (2,021)
FERF Profit for the year - - - - - 626,049 626,049
& RAHE M Placement and subscription of
B ARS shares in a subsidiary - - - - (132,383) - (132,383)
REBHE A ARN Subscription of shares in
NEREREE a subsidiary for settlement
of loan facility - - - - 43,237 - 43,237
“TENF+-A=1—H At31 December 2009 1,651,426 1,048,187 (638,819) 49,120 484,289 8,380,833 10,875,036
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(CABET ThLHIR)

50. fkHs (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. Reserves (Continued)

EEE Note:

(i) AEBR-_ZE—ZTF+_A=1T—HZREBEF (i) Included in retained earnings of the Group at 31 December 2010 is the
BRERRHISREFERNRE ZEEE value of long-term life assurance policies in force totalling
1,318,316,000/8 7c (ZZZ N4 : 1,225,668,000 HK$1,318,316,000 (2009: HK$1,225,668,000) which is currently not
HBIT) o WWIRBRFI SRR REFERERRE - available for distribution.

(i) AEEZBEARITHBARF - KEIRTREHAER (i)  The Group’s Hong Kong banking subsidiaries, DSB and Mevas, are
TRERRBEBYBIRE ERIFTAIN IR required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of those
BEEE - BRHZEERBEHATEBBRITER required under HKFRS. The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy
BFIRABEEE SRR Z AHEERTE « ZEE the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
RERARIERE TRRE2FESE - EEREZ requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
FERHRBCE RETHER  WEERERR restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
EARFEE - Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity

reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.
RZZE—ZF+ZA=+—H  KRHRTEBH As at 31 December 2010, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
fre — R 18 E 538,474,000 7T (ZE T HK$538,474,000 (2009: HK$305,774,000) in its consolidated general
£ 1 305,774,000/570) 2 ©RRIEREEHE - & reserve. Mevas has earmarked a regulatory reserve of HK$3,701,000
FRERTTE B HIRB B FIH 18E3,701,000/4 7T (= (2009: HK$18,343,000) in its retained earnings.
TENF : 18,343,000 7T) 2 € BIEREE %
1 o
B 12 )5 18 BEXFEE REBF

Share Capital Retained B

N Company Premium Reserve Earnings Total

“EENEF—F—H At 1 January 2009 1,551,426 256,027 1,258,707 3,066,160

FERF Profit for the year - - 201,128 201,128

—EENE+-HA=1—H At 31 December 2009 1,551,426 256,027 1,459,835 3,267,288

—E-TF—F—H Wt At 1 January 2010, as above 1,551,426 256,027 1,459,835 3,267,288

FEm A Profit for the year - - 29,987 29,987

BT SRR G Issue of ordinary shares 1,135,105 - - 1,135,105

“Z-ZEPHRKE 2010 interim dividend - - (52,054) (52,054)

—E-ZF+-_fA=+—H At 31 December 2010 2,686,531 256,027 1,437,768 4,380,326

BE-—NANA=ZF+=—A—BBBZEFRIRER -
YEEER—NAN=F+-A -+ BEHEEESE
Pritiz - ANQ B 4 B HIE 256,027,000/ Tk
I BN BIRA © 5%256,027,000/8 TCiE .
IR E R A B B8 o

[1>+
D2
| K>
;ﬁé_\
RN
St
a
)
o

e
Sk

By a special resolution passed on 1 December 1993 and subsequently
approved by the Supreme Court of Hong Kong on 20 December 1993,
the share premium of the Company was reduced by HK$256,027,000

and this amount was transferred to a capital reserve account. On

consolidation the reserve of HK$256,027,000 has been applied against

goodwill.
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(CABET ThLHIR)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains or losses on

certain investments and fixed assets to net cash flows from

MR operating activities
—E-2F5 —ZIThEF
2010 2009
AETRERETEEERZHEERN 2 EE R Operating profit before gains or losses
on certain investments and fixed assets 1,240,785 421,616
F R B A Net interest income (2,179,490)  (2,344,129)
& B U 7% Dividend income (24,705) (26,184)
BERREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 97,787 433,280
EROREEE 2R ERD Unwind of discount on loan impairment = (15,429)
e Depreciation 130,490 113,217
ERAEZEH Amortisation of intangible assets 24,198 19,322
TRBR B Uk 18 2 B Zi 6 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (301,069) (568,612)
[BE &SN Interest received 2,745,489 3,266,419
[EENEESN Interest paid (524,583) (618,746)
B U h% &8 Dividend received 47,652 46,839
CEEERBEEZH 2L E R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 1,256,554 727,593

REEENBBECZEZY B
- RE|H BB = E A 2B A N2 BT K

- REH R EE =R 2 ERTHFR

-REEBERABNES

-TESMITA

T AATEH B AL BB ARSN
SRAE

- g)f'%n')\

- RITER

- HA AR B

- BEEER R EWFIEER
2“%&A

HEEHIEE
—TTﬁ%%
- BRI HES

-RUSREBZARREEE

- RITHER

-RIEEERZMWAE

—g)f'ﬁn')\

-BENUA EFTE fgﬂﬁ i)
FTABRNE R

- HMBR B R TELR

-HRHBRBREOREREACZAE

EEZ«(M/E@J Pﬁﬁﬁ //ﬁ)\ﬁ’]ﬁi

XNEETREBEREHESZHE
XNEBETNEREZINE

EMBBNEH
EBUBIMIK

REES (PR RAR S FHE

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— money at call and short notice

with an original maturity beyond

three months 967,549 (967,549)
— placements with banks with an

original maturity beyond three months (225,185) (2,495,470)

— trading securities 168,513 (2,138,566)
— derivative financial instruments 19,867 (521,835)
— financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss (1,275,075) (250,519)
— advances to customers (15,583,829) 3,833,914
— advances to banks 150,000 29,226
- other accounts (580,603) 386,159
— investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category 913,221 (44,793)
—loan to a jointly controlled entity 8,572 4,285
— available-for-sale securities (4,744,903) (2,310,584)
— held-to-maturity securities (404,361) 991,310
- value of in-force long-term life
assurance business (92,648) 48,784
— deposits from banks 88,411 (1,008,458)
— trading liabilities 2,632,593 276,881
— deposits from customers 7,756,570 8,422,993
— deposits from customers designated at
fair value through profit or loss - (471,065)
— other accounts and accruals 171,966 (155,814)
— liabilities to customers under
insurance contracts 1,133,991 300,336
Exchange adjustments 387,177 (90,002)
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operating activities (7,251,620) 4,566,826
Interest paid on subordinated notes and
debt securities issued (197,274) (301,607)
Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (45,677) (114,434)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (13,338) (12,969)
Overseas tax paid (15,611) (8,076)

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (7,523,520) 4,129,740
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51.

(&) B — [H] Bk o 2 ] 2 4% il e
R-E-ZEARBEUE-FHHNBERR - 2R
B (GEM) BERARAD 2 — ARAER LEUSHE
R AR EERABZAFENT ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

51. Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

(Continued)
(b) Obtaining control of a subsidiary

During 2010, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in and obtained
full control of a subsidiary, Summit Insurance (Asia) Limited. The fair

values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed were as follows:

—g-g2F

2010

e RERITH A S Cash and balances with banks 1,688
Hih&E Other assets 7,847
HiiRB kIER Other accounts and accruals (337)
LReZ Nz kB ERE Total purchase price paid in cash 9,198
B WEE RS RERITHES Less: cash and balances with banks acquired (1,688)
MBRWEER &% - RENTUARGIEG#E 2 F8E Cash paid to obtain control, net of cash acquired 7,510

(W) B ERBEAFTREN > BERERE
S H GRS E H A=A U
TR Z T RIAE AR > B A A L JE
TR OB g L VT e 6 2 A B
WMZAFK e

(c) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following balances with maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition, deposits
that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.
—E-ZF —EENF
568 Group 2010 2009
Re RIERITH A Cash and balances with banks 6,306,893 2,566,436
JREVHA A £ =18 A 5 AT 2 38 A & A8 BifF 3K Money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
within three months 3,273,627 7,207,894
REHBE=E A AT ZERITHFR Placements with banks
with an original maturity
within three months 2,209,103 1,787,279
FIEEERBNES Trading securities 528,665 2,355,682
12,318,288 18,917,291

|1+
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CABET ThLHIR)

52. mi#AA B &K

BREBRAEEDIZE161BIE - ERXTRERAAEZ
BEEENT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

52. Loans to officers
Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section 161B

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

tZA=t—RB#&R

Balance outstanding

FRERBRSEH
Maximum balance

at 31 December during the year

—E-2F5 —TEHF ZB-BF —TEZNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
& RA B AR B Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 75,209 83,306 96,298 110,240
BERESRETE Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees 149 149 149 149

53. HREAEALZRS

BEREALRZEALARNERIEEESS
77 ST EFELVBREERRTET
EERTES - WEEMBTRALZEHKRZES
FHAEATER  REALTER/SBEEA

E-ZER_TTNF  AEERERER
HEEBEEATETRITERRS - "AFE
VIFATEFTERHAEE 2 PBRKRE - B8
ZEBNBEAMEZIRZETEN - RFESF
REBEBRBEBBEAERE A  RB2EE
BREWEZRGIREBEAKBZIEERY - A
Wk - —REEEKRIED - HAFEARERN
BARRBIBREENGET

53. Related-party transactions

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties
are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

During 2010 and 2009, a number of banking connected transactions
were entered into with related parties in the normal course of business
of the Group. These, being continuing connected transactions, had
been reviewed by the Company’s independent non-executive directors
in their review of the financial statements of the Group. Based on their
review and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-
executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected
transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual course business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with
relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the

interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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53. HEHEANLZRZ5 @)
RAEBBALTZEAZSNT

(FH) L Bft Ji 2 =1 9 22 5

() REEETTHIE L A2 iR
BEAFTRTEBERAF ([KHFETE

EDR_E—SFENFET2HE - K
ARAREEMARRERR 2K - LT
PR A 1D 978 L 2 BARB AFTIRTT R R
“E-EF+Z BEN 2 74.13% H R KD
Bo %8 o

BERNAREANBITEEARZ2RER
REWZ  ARAR_ZETNFENA =1
/b H M &AL RR5.6074 TS
Momom%k%ﬁﬁ%l%@*ﬁ%:

TN A AN A AR EFR5.60% TR
%Mowomkkﬁﬁﬁ B3R ) (FerE
[BRERS]) - EREERHTME + A
RIERHIRITERE 2 FHIREHT74.96%[E =
70.86% ©

RZZZAF=A=+FHA ' ARAAKX
FTER1T S B $214£1,000,000,0007 7T 2 B 3R
([ZEFR]) - DAFERFIRTT R B A [ AF
IRITIRHRBEINE AR SR - BERZF BT
#R7NE A BB RITRZESF S350 o X
MIRTEERZERZEREAEBEZE

HEAFETEEAR_TSTAFALA TN
H LA S Ik 87 7T 2 (B 18 3 17 2 125,000,000
BFTAR D (EARFIRITEBR 2 B RRR =
TTAFAATAARTZREFIAS
WiR) EE M8 fERR - EZANMER ST
K& AAREAFRITERZFHRE
70.86% 1 F £ 74.13% °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

53. Related-party transactions (Continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries

() Subscription in the shares of a listed subsidiary

Pursuant to the rights issue of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”) conducted during the last quarter of 2010, the Company
fully subscribed its 74.13% entitlement of the rights shares at
HK$9 per rights share issued by DSBG in December 2010 on

terms identical to other public shareholders.

The Company entered into the Placing and Subscription
Agreement with DSBG pursuant to which the Company placed
54 million shares of DSBG to parties independent of the Group
on 24 April 2009 at a price of HK$5.60 per share and subscribed
54 million new shares issued by DSBG to the Company on 4 May
2009 at the same price of HK$5.60 per share (collectively the
“top-up placing transaction”). The Company’s shareholding in
DSBG decreased from 74.96% to 70.86% following completion

of this top-up placing transaction.

The Company advanced a HK$1 billion loan (the “Loan”) to DSBG
on 25 March 2009 to enable DSBG to provide additional capital
resources to DSB. Interest on the loan was agreed at 6-month
HIBOR plus 350 basis points. DSBG’s repayment obligation on
the loan was discharged after the loan, with the approval of
independent shareholders of DSBG passed in the Extraordinary
Shareholders Meeting held on 16 September 2009, was
capitalised by DSBG by the issue of 125 millions new DSBG
shares at HK$8 per share on 18 September 2009. The Company’s
shareholding in DSBG increased from 70.86% to 74.13%

following completion of this capitalisation.
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FREANLZRS @)

(FH) S B i 2 w1 H9 52 5 ()

(I AR

RARRAEBEEENEA RN EANLEI
2EBITMB AR 2 HERERS (B
BABBBERIMERARES LR
A ([ LT3R AN E14A14R) WEI R EET
B ZWARSTH - ZERHZBERBS
A RE ™R B E14A.352) % &

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

53. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(a) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group

received and incurred the following income and expense from

the continuing connected transactions (within the definition of

Rule 14A.14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”))

entered into with the non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries

14A.36(1)E - MARAEE 2 FE LR - during the year. The aggregate value of these transactions are
within or consistent with the respective annual caps applicable
to the Group pursuant to Rules 14A.35(2) and 14A.36(1) of the
Listing Rules.
—EBE-TF Z—ZTTHHF
£H Group 2010 2009
2 WALE GE() Interest received (Note (j)) 4,316 52,275
EMRITFEE (5E() Bank charges paid (Note (i) (6,661) (6,590)
ENHERERAEERE KX Rentals and related building management
(&% (i) fee and charges paid (Note (ii)) (11,805) (11,918)
BElHEEIEEBRAEEREERAYS Rentals and related building management
(FE(iii)) fee and charges received (Note (jii)) 4,522 4,522
ENEEE (7(v) Management fees paid (Note (iv)) (15,656) (13,409)
B REAS GEV) Insurance commission paid (Note (v)) (23,831) (17,218)
B YRR B (FE(vi) Insurance premiums received (Note (vi)) 10,586 9,834

() REHFZERTHBARRKEER
B BERERAREMERRIT IR

ERFBTIAR B ZMER B FRN =M
FRERITMBAR - AFIRTT - 28
RITRORPIFRBITZ EHRNFSRA -
FR 2 FRBREN Ll 2 547 o

RIRITEREZHBRITERERIEFEE
BB mERPRERERITIRE RE
m WERBRERBERIFR (B
EHERERERBAFR) - X
FIRTTE B BRITFRERNES B
ARARMZEBKERT - 3t LA
5 ARRIZEEKRERARERFR R
R EMRRIE14ATE 2 ERBREFERE

25

o

Note:
(i)

Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of
deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-wholly
owned banking subsidiaries

Interest was received by the subsidiaries of the Company from
three non-wholly-owned banking subsidiaries, namely DSB, Mevas
and BCM on deposits placed with them. The balances of deposits
outstanding as at the end of the year are set out in Note 47 above.

The banking subsidiaries of DSBG provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual
course of their businesses. Such services and products include
the taking of deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits
and deposits at call). Customers who place deposits with the
banking subsidiaries of DSBG include members of the Company.
For purposes of the Listing Rules, the placing of deposits provided
by members of the Company constitute continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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53. HEEALZR 5 &) 53. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(F) BB A B AR 5 () (@) Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)
() AR (&) () Income and expenses (Continued)
EE ¢ ) Note: (Continued)
(i) FERIFEZERTHBARRHREER (i) Arising from the extension of credit facilities and provision of

& BREFRAREMEARRTTRSE (&)

EERRAATZEEKE RBFHRA
IRITE B B IR1T 2 I R IR 5 K
B UHEHEREHE T B E=HZIER
HERTERZEHERZ EBEERR
BYERZEVEENAATRITERE
EEEA - BZERN - ZSHERERS
RGBT AR A 14A.65(4) & 2
W BERBIRFERIEZIRE ©

ANABB M AKFHETEERIRHE
1,000,000,000/ T2 EFR ZETNF=
A-t+RBZE=FZTAFAA+/\BHHE
B 2 K| & 523,661,000/ 7T ©

RHTIRIT R EMARFTIRITERERKE A TR
ARFEERKE R AR 2 EARNRITRS
BREXEGE  BBNR  XERRTE
HERP - ERRAERE - BAMATAIEZ
EERRKERE - fHXERAE 88
HR  XEZENGEREP ZRITRG - iR
RIZERP REMRE MRRERHEG
RARB T AFRITEBEME S 28R
ARRETARE o EHREP R
EEARZENREBEESHEANL AR
MHRERETRMAS - GAREPR
b2 AR ZE T 5 18 )30 EEEF 5 - HEIRTT
A A B AN T AR UL o ANER B ELCHTER
TEEZBZERRZYE  REMFRA
BEA—THETIPRAEAEEBAN T
PARRIE © RBZERITRBAE IS — K
PERIREEFHRM - Bt - AEE R
AFRITERER ZRIT %5 - THiREEE
FHRE -

RIRITREMBRITRETAREKE
RAEVZIRITRSS - IRHRITEBIZER
PGSR T EME P 2 —RRITRT
K Wthadi o RETRITERBIREAR R FR
17 AR 75 {50 AR IR1T AR 7% 2 1 B JAE 2R U ER
BEEA -

deposit taking and other standard banking services by non-wholly
owned banking subsidiaries (Continued)

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the
Company at the banking subsidiaries of DSBG are at market rates
and on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more
favourable than those offered to independent third parties and that
no security over the assets of DSBG is granted in respect of such
financial assistance. On that basis, such continuing connected
transactions are exempt from complying with the reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.65(4) of the Listing Rules.

The interest received by the Company from DSBG on the HK$1
billion loan advanced by the Company for the period from 25 March
2009 to 18 September 2009 was HK$23,661,000.

DSB and other members of DSBG provide standard banking
services to members of the Company including cheque clearing,
autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card merchant
facilities, co-branded credit cards in respect of DSLA and
investment dealing. The banking services in respect of cheque
clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit accounts are provided to
the Company in the same way as they are provided to other
customers of DSBG under standard account opening and other
forms. The credit card merchant facilities and co-brand credit card
arrangements are provided under normal commercial contracts and
are at market standard. The standard market practice for credit
card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed term, but allow
for termination at the option of the bank by giving written notice.
The co-brand credit card arrangements between DSBG and the
Company can be terminated after the first two years by either party
giving not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking
services, by their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term.
Accordingly, the banking arrangement between DSBG and the
Company are not for a fixed term.

The banking services provided by the banking subsidiaries of
DSBG to the companies within the Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by DSBG to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of
such banking services by DSBG to the Company enables DSBG to
earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of
the banking services.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

R KFAR
HE RRFIEE

BRRRTREEEHEER

HEETEEREEYETARRZKE
R\ IR RER RSB R A R ([RFR

BRARES])
R
A (DRFYRER D (EEMAZE MR -

RFTIRE

REIEARAE (TAH
C RHABRRPRBERA

RHTER

17 BPIEERTREERAELZER

BRAWE S

fo > R

SHEER °

BINR T ©

REEH
Transaction date

HE]

Contracting parties

EHE AEEEERH
BRI HERDERE

BEHR

Term of lease

Related-party transactions (Continued)
Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)
() Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(ii) Lease and sub-lease arrangements between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA
and MIC and DSB, VB and BCM

DSB, BCM and Vanishing Border (“VB”) have leased and sub-
leased certain of their owned and rented properties to members of
the Company, namely Dah Sing Insurance Services Limited
(“DSIS”), Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”), DSLA and
Macau Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office
premises. DSB, BCM and VB received from DSIS, DSIA, DSLA and
MIC the lease rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building
management charges and other utilities charges based on the
actual amount of costs incurred. The following table summarises
the leases and sub-leases that have been entered into.

SRHES
FEEERE
RAKEFXI)
Monthly rent
(exclusive of
management fees
and utility charges)

BE2ME

Property subject to lease

Y3
T-A=+H
30 Dec 2008

%%
T=ZR=
2

+h
30 Dec 2010

—FINF
+=A=tH
30 Dec 2008

30 Dec 2008

_FR*

-z
4=

A=+H
30 Dec 2

010

RFRITE T AHRBRS

DSB leased to DSIS

RFRITETAMRBRS

DSB leased to DSIS

AFFTHTFARRRRE

DSB leased to DSIS

RIRITETAMRR RS

DSB leased to DSIS

ARTETAMRRALE

DSB leased to DSIA

AFRTRTAMRRKE

DSB leased to DSIA

“2ThE-A-AZ
“E-TEtZA=1-H
1 Jan 2009 - 31 Dec 2010

—s—f-A-A%
—g-=fFt=A=t-A
1 Jan 2011 - 31 Dec 2013

¢7ﬂ751
TET_A=1—H
1 Jan 2009 - 31 Dec 2010

E2E
==
—=
—E—

—=
Z—

i =
=%t-HA=1-H
1.Jan 2011 - 31 Dec 2013

—E-=

—TETZA= + B
1 Jan 2009 - 31 Dec 2010

—7

“F——%-f—-RZ
-2 =

=%$+-A=1+-H
1 Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013

EANARSENOREBART\VEZE
AHARERER14426 THR -

The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area of 14,426 square feet

HK$375,076

EANARSENORABART\VEZE
AHARERER14426 TAR °

The whole of the 18/F, Island Place Tower, 510 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area of 14,426 square feet

HK$447,206

BEANE-TEHHES -
AHEEEEEAS183EAR

A portion of the 20/F, Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area of
8,183 square feet

HK$220,941

BENE_TRBNEE  THBEEEEARS8TAR -

A portion of the 20/F, Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area of HK$192,654

5,838 square feet
BEART=BBOHEE  THHAEEREALNTEAR o

A portion of the 13/F, Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area of HK$52,773

1,919 square feet
BEAE-TRIHER THREEEEAR186TAR o

A portion of the 20/F., Island Place Tower with a lettable floor area of HK$65,580

2,186 square feet
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RZRH

Transaction date

WA R X ()

(#8)
iy  RIRERRH - RIREBAIE - RIAS
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BITEZAE ko iz (B)

HE:]

Contracting parties

RE R

Term of lease

(Ex

53

(a)

pressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

() Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(ii) Lease and sub-lease arrangements between DSIS, DSIA, DSLA

and MIC and DSB, VB and BCM (Continued)

BEzN%

Property subject to lease

§AHE
(FEEEEE
RABHEXH)
Monthly rent
(exclusive of
management fees
and utility charges)

—ZTN\F
+=A=1H
30 Dec 2008

gl

—T-%F
+-A=+H
30 Dec 2010

s

“F-%%

+=A=tH
30 Dec 2010

—ZEN\F
+=-A=+H
30 Dec 2008

30 Dec 2010

|1+
Ay 2
| K
gl
i

A

i

HERTAMRRARE

VB leased to DSIA

HERTAMRRARE

VB leased to DSIA

AHRITHRT
AR R

DSB sub-leased to DSIS

REBXRTATRARR

BCM leased to MIC

REBEXRTATRARR

BCM leased to MIC

i
P
b
el

“ETN5-A-HE

—g-8+-A=t-A

1 Jan 2009 to 31 Dec 2010

A iE:

—g-=fFt=A=t-A

1Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013

“EENE+-A-BZ
“F-—-%+-R=+H
1 Dec 2009 to 30 Nov 2012

“ZTNFr_A-BE

“E-TEtZA=1-H

1 Dec 2009 to 31 Dec 2010

“§-—%-f-B%

e e e e =

1 Jan 2011 to 31 Dec 2013

RERIRNEETLIB04Z A EE - BEAEERIRTAA °

A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre, Shenzhen,

People’s Republic of China, with a gross floor area of 132 square metres

RERIRNEETLIB04Z A EE - BEAEERIRTAA -

A portion of Room 1504 of Shenzhen Development Centre, Shenzhen,

People’s Republic of China, with a gross floor area of 132 square metres

BEREFELITEIRANERFL =T BB/ EE -
EAEAEERC04TAR o

A portion of 33/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong with a lettable area of 604 square feet

RFRFEERTARTERT—B2E
EAEAEERR4TAK o

The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau with a total
lettable floor area of 924 square metres

RFRFRERTAETRRT—22E
AHARERER24T K o

The whole of the 10/F. and 11/F., BCM Building, Macau with a total
lettable floor area of 924 square metres

HK$6,410

HK$7,876

HK$20,355

MOP109,000

MOP123,000
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(iv)

WA R X ()

(#8)
RIRITHEMETAFASRER

WAFRTEBR_TZTLF+=_A+N
B2BEHeE - RFIRTTEANASET
%&ﬁ@%%°@#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%A%
RZZET+E+-A+N\BEITZ2HER
&% K ARLHEBBEEFE4825 R
BB T AAH Kt EAR 285 EiE (7]
HHEEEERER2,340T7 5 R) FAMR
7 ERMEEHBHER/B=F =TT+
F+-_A-t+\BRE-_Z—TF+_A
—++H1E - ®AME A375,0008 T

LA k2 &% MEHEERBLOEMRLLE -
AFBITER_Z—ZTF+-_A=+B%
FIETE AR - RFIRITE A ASH
Bz RE=F BT+
A+ N\BRE-ZT—=F+-A=++t
A1t - 5 A% £450,0008 7T © T~BIE
EIRE A BERTHAE -

HE R $TERTT RORPI R £ 4R1T
Pl 75 153 7%

B RITIR

ngg}\ﬁJr*ﬂ:JrE P RAFER
FrRTT (R EME A R BRI ERT)
FATED <“&HBZHE?%T£% o IR¥S 1 =
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RIBIRTE Fe5 - RIIRITAGER AR A
Z BB R AR R L BN RATRTS © 1t
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f CRBBE - BITRE - ZRE
REHER -

. T - AEIWE  APERZR - &

5 120E
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B IRA) -

ﬁﬁ%i@ REFEA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Leaseback of property by DSB from DSLA

As disclosed in DSBG’s announcement dated 18 December 2007,
DSB entered into a sale and leaseback arrangement with DSLA.
Pursuant to a lease agreement entered into on 18 December 2007
by DSB with DSLA, DSB has leased a portion of Flat A on Basement
and Portion AA on Ground Floor of Thai Kong Building, No. 482
Hennessy Road, Hong Kong with a lettable floor area of 2,340
square feet from DSLA. The leaseback agreement was for a term
of three years commencing on 28 December 2007 and ending on
27 December 2010 at a monthly rent of HK$375,000.

The above leaseback agreement was terminated upon the maturity
of the lease term and a new lease agreement has been entered
into by DSB with DSLA on 30 December 2010 pursuant to which
DSB has leased from DSLA the same premises at a monthly rent of
HK$450,000 exclusive of management fees, government rates,
electricity service charges and air-conditioning charges for a term
of three years commencing on 28 December 2010 and ending on
27 December 2013.

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB and
BCM

On 30 December 2008, DSB (and its subsidiaries including BCM)
entered into a computer and administrative services agreement
with the Company. The services agreement was for a fixed term of
two years with effect from 1 January 2009.

Pursuant to the services agreement, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the Company with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following:

o computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support,
disaster recovery and contract management;

. administrative, company secretarial, internal audit,
compliance, operational, risk management, investment
custodian and treasury operations; and

o secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the

Company (collectively, the “Services”).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(iv)

Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSB and
BCM (Continued)

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB
which historically has been operating to provide administrative and
computer services to other companies within the Group on a cost-
recovery basis, the provision of the Services to the Company at a
fee enables DSBG to continue to expand its scale and operational
capabilities while costs incurred by DSBG in providing the Services
are recovered from the Company.

On 30 December 2010, the service agreement was renewed for a
fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2011.

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, Mevas and BCM

On 30 December 2008, DSIS and DSIA entered into distribution
agreements and underlying agency agreements with each of DSB
and Mevas for the marketing and distribution of life and general
insurance products through DSB’s and Mevas’ branch networks.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIS with
each of DSB and Mevas (the “DSIS Distribution Agreements”), DSB
and Mevas will market and distribute such life assurance products
as agreed between the parties from time to time for the Company
through their respective branch networks.

Pursuant to the DSIS Distribution Agreements, each of DSB and
Mevas has entered into an agency agreement with DSIS (the “DSIS
Agency Agreements”) in respect of the sale of life assurance
policies in return for commission payments as agreed between the
parties from time to time. Under the terms of the DSIS Agency
Agreements, the commission payable by DSIS to each of DSB and
Mevas in respect of such life assurance products shall vary,
depending on the product type, between 0.1% and 50% of the
first year’s premium received, plus up to 24% of the renewal
premiums in respect of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreements entered into by DSIA with
each of DSB and Mevas (the “DSIA Distribution Agreements”), DSB
and Mevas will market and distribute such general insurance and
life assurance products as agreed between the parties from time
to time for the Company through their respective branch networks.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, Mevas and BCM
(Continued)

Pursuant to the DSIA Distribution Agreements, each of DSB and
Mevas has entered into an agency agreement with DSIA (the “DSIA
Agency Agreements”) in respect of the sale of certain general
insurance and life assurance products in return for commission
payments, as agreed between the parties from time to time. Under
the terms of the DSIA Agency Agreements, the commission payable
by DSIA to each of DSB and Mevas in respect of:

(1) general insurance products shall vary, depending on the
product type, between 1% and 30% of each year’s premium
received in respect of a new or renewal policy; and

2) life assurance products shall vary, depending on the product
type, between 0.1% and 50% of the first year’s premium
received, plus up to 24% of the renewal premiums in respect
of certain policies.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by Macau Life
Insurance Company Limited (“MLIC”) with BCM (the “MLIC
Distribution Agreement”), BCM will market and distribute such life
assurance products as agreed between the parties from time to
time for MLIC through its branch network.

Pursuant to the MLIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered
into an agency agreement with MLIC (the “MLIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of life assurance policies in return
for commission payments as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the MLIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MLIC to BCM in respect of such life
assurance products shall vary, depending on the product type,
between 0.5% and 40% of the first year’s premium received.

Pursuant to the distribution agreement entered into by MIC with
BCM (the “MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM will market and
distribute such general insurance products of MIC as are agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch network.

Pursuant to the MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM has entered into
an agency agreement with MIC (the “MIC Agency Agreement”) in
respect of the sale of general insurance products in return for
commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the MIC Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by MIC to BCM in respect of general
insurance products shall vary, depending on the product type,
between 10% and 50% of each year’s premium received in respect

of new or renewal policies.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

V)

(vi)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSB, Mevas and BCM
(Continued)

In respect of each of the DSIS, DSIA, MLIC and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “Distribution Agreements”), DSIS and
DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of each of DSB and
Mevas, and MLIC and MIC shall each reimburse or pay on behalf
of BCM, agreed expenses including the registration fees for
licences for the bank staff to sell insurance, sales incentives,
marketing expenses and other costs and expenses related to the
performance of the Distribution Agreements.

The distribution and agency arrangements described above,
including the commission rates set out in the various sets of
Distribution Agreements and Agency Agreements, are consistent
with normal arrangements between banks and insurance
companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and will provide
DSBG with insurance products and services to be offered to the
customers of the banking subsidiaries of DSBG. The distribution
of different types of insurance products through the respective bank
branch networks of DSB, Mevas and BCM in return for a
commission income to be paid by the Company will also produce
fee income which will be of benefit to DSBG.

On 30 December 2010, these distribution and agency agreements
were renewed for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1
January 2011.

Insurance services provided by DSI, DSLA, MIC and MLIC

The insurance policies underwritten by DSI and MIC in the name,
and for the benefit, of DSB and other members of DSBG and their
respective customers are subject to renewal annually. The group
life assurance policies underwritten by DSLA and MLIC in relation
to the provision of insurance cover for the death and/or critical
iliness of the employees of DSB and other members of DSBG are
subject to renewal annually.

DSI underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for
the benefit, of DSB and other members of DSBG and their
respective customers including policies covering domestic motor,
property all risks, public liability, money, electronic equipment,
employees’ compensation and group personal accident. Such
policies are subject to renewal annually.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

56,

(a)

Related-party transactions (Continued)

Transactions with subsidiaries (Continued)

(1

Income and expenses (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSI, DSLA, MIC and MLIC
(Continued)

DSLA underwrites insurance policies to cover the death and/or
critical illness of certain borrowing customers of DSB and Mevas
and employees of DSB and Mevas and other members of DSBG.
The provision of the insurance cover for customers is set out in the
terms and conditions of the relevant bank borrowing arrangement.
Such policies can be terminated within two months in the event of
non-payment of premiums. MIC underwrites insurance policies in
the name, and for the benefit, of BCM and its customers including
policies covering medical, personal accident, employees’
compensation, motor fleet, properties, civil liability and money.
Such policies are subject to renewal annually.

MLIC underwrites life insurance policies to cover the death and/or
critical illness of BCM'’s pension plan members and such policies
are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable
in arrears on a monthly basis and are calculated by reference to
the outstanding credit balances in respect of each of the products
to which they relate.

The insurance policies are procured by DSBG to enable certain of
the DSBG’s subsidiaries, namely DSB, Mevas and BCM, to comply
with relevant regulatory requirements in reducing the risks to
DSBG’s assets, businesses and operations and/or to provide
additional services to the DSBG’s customers. In addition, the
Directors consider that the insurance services by DSI, DSLA, MIC
and MLIC are effective and the fees proposed by DSI, DSLA, MIC
and MLIC respectively are comparable to those offered by other

insurance companies in the market.

On 30 December 2010, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSBG pursuant to which members of the Group
will provide insurance services to DSB and other members of the
DSBG Group. The agreement is for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2011 and ending on 31 December 2013.
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53. AREAL2ZRS @)
(C) ZEEHANE
() HEERFESHASZEARLZR

5=
AEER

AEEMAEEEIZEEAS - HEEBR
HEBAFZENZ ARRHEERE KK
BER-BET_A=1t—BHLEFE " K

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

53. Related-party transactions (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors and key

management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their spouses and

companies which the key management personnel have significant

BB 2 BT ¢ influence. For the year ended 31 December, the following
balances were outstanding:

-85 —TTNHF

£H Group 2010 2009

R KRB Loans and advances 30,016 33,467

EEN Deposits 443,469 593,018

ER Guarantees 149 149
FRNERRBRZ &= BT Maximum aggregate amount of

loans and advances during the year 38,765 46,747

(i) TEEEASHE

AR ETZEBEASBRITES - EWmM
EEREMENNRKTE14-

(W) Ff RERREITH S

REBMAFEEAR R~ EBIREZ KB A RIFT
BOIZETEEES RZZE—ZTF+=-A=+
—H  AEBFE 2 8% 5603,939,000/ 7T (=
TETNF ¢ 710,133,000 7T) - ZEFEHFEASE
EiZ—MEEETINEEEBBREREA -

54 . DA 7 e 5% 5 it 38

AREBEBARRR ZRBEE (K2 /G
B REE2EMBARAMBRITEBERARZ
REAER B (TRHRITEE S REARD B
ARNEMTEEENERITBAL - FHES
ZUABAD RER RN 2 ARET 2 5 EE14 -

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are executive

directors and their remunerations are included under Note 14.

(c) Holding of securities issued by a substantial shareholder

The Group also held certain debt securities issued by a subsidiary of a
substantial shareholder. As at 31 December 2010, the total amount held
was HK$603,939,000 (2009: HK$710,133,000). These securities were
acquired in the normal course of the Group’s business on normal

commercial terms.

54. Share-based compensation plan

Share-based compensation, pursuant to the Company’s Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its
wholly owned subsidiary, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “DSBG
Scheme”), is available to directors and senior executives of the Group.
Details of the share-based compensation paid to directors are disclosed
in Note14.
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54. VLB A 7 B 1 S 5t ) (40
() SR 4 il it 81

ARAETHEREMBARE TEZEREERR
B BREFRATARARENBAREZER
BETERRAEEEHEEXNRBRENREE
B UWBERDEHETRND - KFERERRR
EXNEHRITEERLEPNRBTER TR
Bt -

ZERBRETRARARBRRR_ETRAFMNAZ
+ )\ B 8L 2 R AE 5T & 2 AR S R 1 PR
T o BTZRREZITEERBEREREEHS
REMEBERAR([BEAERG]) EmEAIE
17.03Q)KEE * AARARNBBRIMEEZ
RPERT B 2 ERARRRGERT BRI
FEAXSGAZFHRMEZREE - ZRREZ
THEA—RENEXTHHRBHE—ZE AT
H o

(&) T 84T 4 W it 4

ARHFBITEERTEREMNBARE TEERE
ERBAE - BREFAFARMBITEEARENE
REEZERARETEAMEESHIES MR
BENREEE  ABKDEIBEITRED - K
ROEETERALRESNEHIRBTERT
Z RHHE o

%L RBAE TR AT BN Z IR RMGI A R T -
BRY2RBEZTEERRBERBERZM L
MIRGIE17.03Q)KETE - BAFRITEERE
BRIMEBZBROAER T A WA ERAHR
TEERGERTHAIRERS B 2 FHKHE
ZEREE - ZRBREZITER - RENERTH
HEAE—E=FNAFAR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
(a) DSFH Scheme

The Company issues to certain directors and employees of its
subsidiaries share options on terms that allow the Company or its
subsidiaries to make cash payments, determined based on the intrinsic
value of each share option, to the directors or employees at the date of
exercise instead of allotting newly issued shares. DSFH has adopted
the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in

respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the new Share Option Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 April 2005. The exercise prices of
the options granted was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”) prevailing in force, being the higher of
the closing price of the Company’s shares traded on the SEHK on the
date of grant, or the average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The
exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.

(b) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG or its subsidiaries to make
cash payments, determined based on intrinsic value of each share
option, to the directors or employees at the date of exercise instead of
allotting newly issued shares. DSBG has the intention to adopt this

cash settlement practice in respect of the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Scheme. The exercise prices of the options granted
was determined in accordance with Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK prevailing in force,
being the higher of the closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the
SEHK on the date of grant, or the average closing price of DSBG’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.
The exercise period is generally between the first and sixth anniversaries

from the date of grant.
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54.  DLJBE A A% 5 R i T D () 54. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
) KT ERAT 5 ) () (b) DSBG Scheme (Continued)

B W ERRRERT ] - ASEE 815,412,000 With respect to the two option schemes described above, the Group
BIL(ZEZLF : 34,968,00050) AF Mz SE has recorded liabilities of HK$15,412,000 (2009: HK$34,968,000) in
RREATEZER - WATETIA=IAX B respect of the fair value of the share options. Such fair value is
EEERNR TR ZBHRAE - AEETEZ determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model using the major
ERBE R TFHERILOEEES assumptions set out in the following table. The Group recorded a total
19,556,000 T (—ZE T NF : T HEBEA reversal of expense for the share options of HK$19,556,000 in 2010
29m6mw®a ZERTEWIR S EMEER (2009: a total expense of HK$29,796,000). The total intrinsic value of
ELZRBER T —ZTF+_A=+T—HzRS the share options for which the grantee’s right to receive cash had
1B 1A /33,055, 000,%57z (ZZTNF : |\) - vested as of 31 Dec 2010 is HK$3,055,000 (2009: Nil).
MAZTHEAAEEEEN ZEBEDT The inputs into the Trinomial Option Pricing Model are as follows:

Afiemata

DSFH Scheme

“EZ-F ZTTNE
2010 2009

“ZZtf  ZEZRF —TTtF  CZEZTF  —TThE
AB=tNB NA=+EB AA-1tNH NAtR NAZt+HH

®FH Grant date 28 Sep 2007 25Aug 2005 28 Sep2007 7 Sep2006 25 Aug 2005
AARRT—A=1—H Share price of the Company

ZR(E(BT) as at 31 December (HKY) 50.85 50.85 43.0 43.0 43.0
111508 (B7r) () Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i) 59.28 49.49 61.93 67.80 51.71
B IE (G (i) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 32.09% 32.09% 67.7% 67.7% 67.7%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <3 <1 <4 <3 <2

) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.89% 0.33% 1.45% 0.97% 0.47%
) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 1.79% 1.79% 1.79% 1.79% 1.79%

A o B ) (i)
)

FREREE (E(y
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

54.  DLJBE A A% 5 R i T D () 54. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
RER TR @58
DSBG Scheme
“§-%F “EENE
2010 2009
ZEEtFE CEERF CEEREF CTEHE CITHE -EE5F CEERE “EERF CTERE
tA+NE t=A=tH NA=tER tATAR  tAthR AAZTER +ZA=TR NAZTEA +-A-+IA
19 Jul 30 Dec 25 Aug 19 Jul 19 Jul 25 Sep 30 Dec 25 Aug 25 Nov
R¥H Grant date 2007 2005 2005 2007 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004
ARRE Share price of DSBG
Rt=A=1-A as at 31 December
ZIRB (1) (HKS) 13.20 13.20 13.20 11.60 11.60 11.60 11.60 11.60 11.60
168 (B7) () Exercise price (HK9) (Note () 17.18 13.79 13.86 17.84 17.84 17.30 14,32 14.40 16.70
Bt %08 (i) Expected volatility (Note (i) 35.3% 35.3% 35.3% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9% 60.9%
£8(%) Time to maturity (years) 3 d d <1 <4 <3 <2 <2 <1
&3 B (i) Risk free rate (Note (i) 0.82% 0.36% 0.33% 0.17% 1.37% 1.0% 0.61% 047% 0.22%
RS X (Fv) Expected dividend rate (Note (v)) 1.81% 1.81% 1.81% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63%
i Notes:
(i) REZZE—ZTFHRTFZAREZTEEERAR (i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to 2010 were adjusted
AIRKHBITEER - - F X 2 HRIED for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and DSBG in 2010.
(i) TEHRERZRENGER ZAIBRE—FAQA (i)  Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
RARFRITEEBNEANKBEMTE o WK the share price of the Company and DSBG, as applicable, during the one
BAERARRAFRITEERE ZKE - HEX year period immediately preceding the measurement date and is based
ARRIE 2 FHRANZBFEE - WEEANZE on the assumption that there is no material difference between the
£ o expected volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the
historical volatility of the share prices of the Company and DSBG as set
out above.
iy ERRBRANEABBETHIBEBINEESREZK (i) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
wmEK o time to maturity.
vy TEHREXDZRBERSEME (ivy  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.
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54.  DLJBE A A% 5 R i T D () 54. Share-based compensation plan (Continued)
BYZRBMEERE KEMEFLHTEEDT ¢ Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
R¥SrcHE RITRATREE
DSFH Scheme DSBG Scheme
—g-%fF “ETNE —%-%f BTN
2010 2009 2010 2009
MERH MERH
BFUEE 1B HKTIRE BFUEE TRE HKTIRE
A3TER (B 7) ANER METH AHRTEE (Br) AHHIEE Jilt: B2
ARESR (B = (1) R ET K AREH (B 2 (i) R ES e
RHBE  Weighted RiH%A (B RHBE  Weighted RiH%A (#7)
Number of average Number of Weighted ~ Number of average Number of Weighted
DSFH shares exercise  DSFH shares average DSBG shares exercise DSBG shares average
in share price in share exercise in share price in share exercise
options (HK$) options price options (HK$) options price
granted (Note (i)) granted (HKS) granted (Note (i)) granted (HKS)
—A—H At 1 January 2,850,000 55.25 2,850,000 55.25 1,500,000 15.77 1,500,000 15.77
I Adjustment for
rights issue 105,195 50.32 - - 40,590 14.63 - -
Sl Granted - - - - - - - -
BAM Lapsed (500,000) 67.80 = - (100,000) 17.30 - -
BiTfE Exercised - - - - - - - -
B Expired - - - - (350,000) 17.03 - -
+-A=t- At 31 December 2,455,195 50.32 2,850,000 55.25 1,090,590 14.63 1,500,000 15.77
TZA=T—HA  Exercisable at
31 December 2,371,615 50.01 2,100,000 54.40 986,724 14.37 1,150,000 15.64
3 Notes:
(i) R-E—TFRIR T RREZTEEBERAA (i) The exercise price of share options granted prior to 2010 were adjusted
AIRKHBITEER - - F X 2 HRIED for the rights issues concluded by both the Company and DSBG in 2010.
RE -
ARRARZZE—ZF+_A=T—HEHREAR The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2010
FRERBOIELAR 2 RITFEZ WHX%ZTTE have a range of exercise prices from HK$49.49 to HK$59.28, adjusted

BN T49.497% L E59.28/ 7T (ZTTNF : 17{F
BN T51.715 L 5E67.807%5 L) ~ RENEFHE
BRE KIITHEAIR0.835F (ZETNEF : 1.985F) ©
EﬁWZKEIé%&:#&TTE&AEﬂmJﬂZK%ﬁﬁ

ERkE RN=—E-—TF+_A=+—HF
Eﬁimﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ %lf AR AR 1 TR 2 RAT{E
AFBTEERRRIEZITEENTF13.798 LE
17188 (ZZEENEFE : (TEENT14.328 T

17.847%870) - RENMEFHRBRENTERE
118F (ZEZNF : 1.90%F) °

REA - WEIRERBRF S MBI B
K%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ B R AR R B M T AN R B AT

SECZERITHRAER (ZEZNE  WERE
leﬁéuﬁﬂi%) o

for the Company’s rights issue in the year (2009: in the range of exercise
prices from HK$51.71 to HK$67.80), and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.83 years (2009: 1.98 years). In respect of directors
and senior executives of the Group, their applicable DSBG’s share
options outstanding as of 31 December 2010 have a range of exercise
prices from HK$13.79 to HK$17.18, adjusted for DSBG’s rights issue in
the year (2009: in the range of exercise prices from HK$14.32 to
HK$17.84), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.18
years (2009: 1.90 years).

During the year, no share options were granted either under the DSFH
Scheme or DSBG Scheme to senior executives of the Company or
DSBG during the year (2009: Nil under both schemes).
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AT B BN S B & R BE R DI Tk i Y
AR U TBREERMBHRRZ —& 0 -

1. FP SRR

() AT B2 % PR A (DA
38 53 B DL 3 HG A b DR B 4 Bl )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part

of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does

not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. Loans and advances to customers

(a)

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

1) covered by collateral
—E-FF —ZETNEF
+=A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2010 As at 31 Dec 2009
BERERE EREsE
ZEFRRE ZEAmIRE
ZEDL ZBEA
% of gross % of gross
KEZBEER  advances KREELLH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral Balance by collateral
EBBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITH%R Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE - Property development 646,018 39.2 611,218 65.0
- MERE — Property investment 14,418,054 94.7 11,209,001 89.2
- - Financial concerns 596,330 47.9 333,243 47.7
- REBLKAL — Stockbrokers 116,122 62.1 52,265 100.0
- HrEEETERE - Wholesale and retail trade 1,026,092 95.1 1,001,216 96.3
- Bl - Manufacturing 725,323 94.7 657,570 86.9
- B RERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 4,173,376 96.3 3,207,328 97.4
- [REES) — Recreational activities 246,262 = 157,565 =
- BB — Information technology 2,721 78.8 902 42.2
- HAfth - Others 2,592,101 96.2 1,847,970 92.7
24,542,399 91.5 19,078,278 89.0
18 A Individuals
-BEIEERAHEREE — Loans for the purchase of
[FhAZEEEE R flats in Home Ownership
[HHEEHEEEF Scheme, Private Sector
B Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 1,264,406 100.0 1,398,373 100.0
-EEHMEEMEER — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 10,790,753 99.9 10,462,174 99.9
-ZARER — Credit card advances 3,654,569 = 3,173,620 =
- HAth - Others 8,572,323 67.6 6,510,864 62.9
24,282,051 73.5 21,545,031 74.0
ERBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 48,824,450 82.5 40,623,309 81.0
BomE G (F)) Trade finance (Note (a)) 4,042,434 63.4 3,136,776 68.4
EBBAIMER B ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(3 (2)) (Note (b)) 19,882,104 72.9 13,405,074 83.3
72,748,988 78.8 57,165,159 80.9
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1. FPERREK @) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

() AT B % PSR A (AR (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
38 o1 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A3 according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage
Hr) () covered by collateral (Continued)

it Note:

() LRz EBEIRMERSZHBTAERERELZ (@  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
HEESI My BEARTEED  HAMEOAR to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
B UREAREIRMEEZER merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines

issued by the HKMA.

48(E505,818,000/5 7T (—EZ 14 : 144,756,000 Trade financing loans not involving Hong Kong totalling HK$505,818,000
B TS RERZBSBMEAERAE SRR [1E (2009: HK$144,756,000) are classified under Loans for use outside Hong
BBAIMEABNERIET - Kong.

() EBBIMERNERBEETEBESEES (b)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
BLAIMER Z B © located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.

A BEEERAT
BE S 13
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(AB BT AL2IT) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. FPEREEK @#) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

() AT B2 % PR A (DA s (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
38 o1 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A3 according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage
Br) () covered by collateral (Continued)

ERATPEBREFERETE10%3 A EMTT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

¥ HEWGBEENREE - @ E R ER AR 10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

A ENEZUREEMBIDT ¢ attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

ERESH
R EER
BB=MA 18 Bl FE mATE
Gross WEEE HEEE
advances Individually  Collectively
REZEER HWEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
—E-ZE+-A=t—8H As at 31 Dec 2010 balance loans 3 months  allowances allowances
EBEBFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEeR Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 14,418,054 - = = 50,394
A Individuals
-BEHMEE - Loans for the
MEER purchase of
other residential
properties 10,790,753 1,520 893 104 5,930
BRERH
W REE
BB=M@A 18 Bl FE GATE
Gross WEEE HEEE
advances Individually  Collectively
REZER HWEER  overdue for assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired over impairment impairment
“EZAFE+=-A=1+—H  Asat31Dec 2009 balance loans 3months  allowances allowances
EBBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Iraest Industrial, commercial
and financial
-MERE - Property investment 11,209,001 15,802 = 1,063 60,825
& A Individuals
-BEHMEE - Loans for the
MEER purchase of
other residential
properties 10,462,174 6,765 8,406 1,358 8,836
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. FPERREK @) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
() AT B2 % PR A (DA s (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

38 o1 8 S DA AR i R I 4 4 bl A3

Mr) (40

TREBFANERGSRER 2 MEEFIREES

BB MBI -

covered by collateral (Continued)

according to the usage of loans and analysed by percentage

The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year were

disclosed in the tables below.

KEEREE
REFEBEER HMEZEX
M 845% Recoveries of
Loans advances
E{EE & written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
—E-ZF 2010 written back uncollectible years
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment (1) - -
A Individuals
-BEEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties (60) - 427
(61) - 427
KEEREE
REEEBEER MEZEX
3% Recoveries of
Loans advances
HiLEE written  written off in
New off as previous
—EZEAF 2009 allowances uncollectible years
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITEER Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEKRE - Property investment 298 = 5,737
A Individuals
-BEBEEMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other residential
properties 1,927 231 2,621
2,225 231 8,358
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1. EFPERLEK @) 1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
(&) vk B IERAT R P AR 8 (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

—E2-25+t=-A=t-—H
As at 31 Dec 2010

ERERET
EEEER BEAEX BEERE
WY EREE ShHIEREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet MEXEE  impairment
REHFER Type of counterparties exposure  exposure Total allowances
H B KRR Mainland entities 5,574,796 215,605 5,790,401 5,418
R B K BE BASNA B K Companies and individuals
A - md REER outside Mainland where the
AR B K B {5 AR credits are granted for
use in the Mainland 8,549,542 458,733 9,008,275 35,582
H 32 5 T i H = Other counterparties
HWRE BB RIERTT the exposures to whom are
EEFPRK considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 197,026 - 197,026 -
—EEhEFE+=ZHA=+—H
As at 31 Dec 2009
1 51 3 15
EEEER EEEEX REEE
A EREE NI BREE Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet #Ex%  impairment
REHFEE Type of counterparties exposure exposure Total allowances
B AR E Mainland entities 3,046,123 - 3,046,123 -
i BK B LASNA B K Companies and individuals
BA - mpRkEER outside Mainland where the
AR B A B {5 A credits are granted for
use in the Mainland 5,543,273 578,294 6,121,567 164,245
Hih R 58 FmERR Other counterparties
WRE BB NIERTT the exposures to whom are
HEPE R considered by the Group
to be non-bank Mainland
exposures 214,212 - 214,212 -

it LERHREeRRPERAENEMETRR

BZEHE -

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

other balances of claims on the customers.
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1. FBPEREEK @)

(F9) % B4 B 2 7% B Bk A8 50 I a1 &
X

REERZEBESMIIREEERRBRERRE 2

RESEFEHIE - —RiME * EERAWER

FABR R S FRE 2 BIGE - R

% o

TRA|EFEFRERE - BRIRESRF &R R
BERPEFRRBRIAIMN °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue loans

by geographical area

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of

the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross advances to customers, individually
impaired advances to customers and overdue advances to customers

by geographical area.

18 Bl

BEFEX
EEERAE Individualy BAHEFEFH
Gross impaired Overdue

advances to advances to advances to

—E-ZF+-A=1+—H 31 December 2010 customers  customers  customers
BB Hong Kong 61,040,284 133,302 152,686
H China 3,859,451 6,364 1,770
SR Macau 6,699,625 24,422 42,352
HAh Others 1,149,628 5,173 11,887
72,748,988 169,261 208,695

{8 BRI &

EFEX
EFEHMAE  Individualy BHEFER
Gross impaired Overdue
advances to advances to advances to
—ZEEAFE+=-A=1t—H 31 December 2009 customers  customers  customers
BB Hong Kong 48,779,171 477,443 501,569
H China 1,479,379 5,832 3,307
R Macau 6,151,486 40,921 44,487
HAh Others 755,123 5,203 5,203

57,165,159 529,399 554,566
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.  Risk management
(A) Banking Group

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it

through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial, wholesale and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase

financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly in Treasury and is associated principally with
the Group’s on-balance sheet positions in the trading book, and off-
balance sheet trading positions including positions taken to hedge

elements of the trading book.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition

resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.
Liquidity risk arises across the Group’s statement of financial position.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from

external events.

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial and
market positions of the Group because of poor strategic decisions,
unacceptable financial performance, improper implementation of

strategies and lack of effective response to the market changes.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.  Risk management (Continued)
(A) Banking Group (Continued)

Apart from the description of financial risk management disclosed in
Note 3 to the financial statements, the other risk management aspects

are disclosed below.

(i) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board

in relation to risk control are:

- the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both

the transaction and portfolio levels;

- the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit
Committee; review of key results (against forecasts),

operational statistics and policy compliance; and

- financial performance by analysis against approved
budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial

measures.

The Executive Committee has been delegated the authority to
oversee and guide the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by Group Risk Division

and different functional committees.
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2.

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring
that policies and mandates are established for the Group as a
whole. Group Risk Division monitors and reports the Group risk
positions to the Board via the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee and the Executive Committee, sets standards for the
management of financial risks and data integrity and ensures that
the financial risks are fully considered in the product planning
and pricing process. Group Risk Division reviews and approves
all credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the
approval of exposures to new markets, economic sectors,
organisations, credit products and financial instruments which
expose the Group to different types of risks. In determining risk
policies, Group Risk Division takes into account the guidelines
established by the HKMA, business direction, and risk adjusted
performance of each business. Group Risk Division is also
represented on the lending or risk committees of the Group’s

operating divisions and businesses.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance
the overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables
the Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and
enter into credit exposures with the confidence that it

understands the associated risks and rewards.

The Group is continuing to evolve its risk management
capabilities under the aegis of the Head of Group Risk Division,
increasing the focus of its risk strategy on risk and reward and
returns on capital. The Group uses a range of risk measurement
and analytical tools in its management of the various risks which
it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these are continually
being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-changing
business needs and the requirements of the regulators. The Risk
Management and Control function is part of Group Risk Division

and reports directly to the Head of Group Risk Division.
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2.

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(i)  Business division credit committees

Each of the operating divisions of the Group has its own credit or
risk committee responsible for approving and recommending
policies, limits and mandates for risk control within their
respective business areas. This is consistent with the Group’s
approach of devolving responsibility for risk management to the
individual business areas under the aegis of the Group Risk
function. As such, each business credit risk function reports to

both Group Risk Division and the business area which it supports.

(iv)  Market Risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of
the risk management policies and procedures adopted are set

out in Note 3.3 to the financial statements.

(v)  Operational Risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and
operational risk officers from each business and support function,
and operating through a set of operational risk policies, risk tool-
kits, operational risk incident reporting and tracking system, and
control self assessment and key risk indicator tools. Together with
a well established internal control systems, operational risk in
most situations can be adequately identified, assessed,
monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk framework
to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to

time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operational
recovery policies and plans have been established and tested for

all critical business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic
independent reviews of internal control systems by external and
internal auditors. Reporting and assessment of the performance
of operational risk management are monitored by the Group Risk
Division and reported to the Group’s Risk Management and

Compliance Committee.
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2.

Risk management (Continued)

(A) Banking Group (Continued)

(vi)  Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established
by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to

reputation risk.

(vii) ~ Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is
directly responsible for the management of strategic risk.
Directors formulate the strategic goals and key direction of the
Group in line with the Group’s corporate mission, ensure business
strategies are developed to achieve these goals, oversee the
strategic development and implementation to secure
compatibility with the Group’s strategic goals, review business
performance, deploy proper resources to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and authorise management to take appropriate

actions to mitigate risks.

(viii) Implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord

The revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il has
come into force for all locally incorporated authorized institutions
in Hong Kong from January 2007. To implement Basel Il, the
HKMA published the final Banking (Capital) Rules and Banking
(Disclosure) Rules at the end of 2006.

Basel Il is structured around three “pillars”. Pillar 1 sets out the
minimum capital requirements for a bank’s operational risk, in
addition to revising the “Basel |” treatment of credit risk and
market risk. Pillar 2 requires that banks should have in place
sound internal processes to assess the adequacy of their capital,
based on a thorough assessment of their risks including those
risks not covered under Pillar 1, and that supervisors should carry
out supervisory review of this process. Pillar 3 complements Pillar
1 and Pillar 2 through enhanced market transparency and market
discipline by requiring banks to make public disclosure of
information on their risk profiles, capital adequacy and risk
management.
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(A)

(B)

Risk management (Continued)
Banking Group (Continued)
(viii) Implementation of the Basel Il Capital Accord (Continued)

Starting January 2007, DSB and Mevas adopt the standardised
approach for credit risk and market risk, and the basic indicator
approach for operational risk. These are the default approaches
as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly, the Group
has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the

standards required for these approaches.

Insurance Group

The Groups insurance business is exposed to multiple risks, including

insurance risk, product risk, investment risk and business risks. We

believe that effective risk management is an integral part of our

insurance business’ control process and operations, and that effective

control of risks assists to maintain the profitability and stability of our

business.

The key risks of our insurance business and related risk control process

are as follows:

(i) Insurance risk

The Group’s insurance operation is in the business of underwriting
insurance risk and retains various maximum amounts per risk or
event dependent on the type of risk with the excess being
reinsured through various reinsurance and related agreements
which are regularly reviewed. Catastrophe cover arrangements
are also in place whereby a number of claims relating to a specific
incident in aggregate would represent a material risk to the Group

are reinsured.

Underwriting and claims practices and procedures are
documented and reviewed. External independent actuaries are

engaged to evaluate the adequacy of the insurance reserves.

(i)  Product risk

New products and major revisions to existing products undergo
a product approval process with the profitability being reviewed
and where appropriate assessed by internal and external

independent actuaries.
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2.

(B)

Risk management (Continued)
Insurance Group (Continued)
(iii)  Investment risk

Our investment practice is to maintain a conservatively invested
portfolio which attempts to maintain value whilst matching assets
and policyholder liabilities as appropriate, by yield, duration and
currency taking account of the associated risks, taxation and

regulatory requirements.

(iv)  Business risks

The Group’s Hong Kong insurance subsidiaries, DSLA and DSI,
follow the policies and procedures of the Group in assessing
business risk in terms of contingency and interruption planning
as well as providing training for staff and agents to comply with
the relevant rules and regulations covering their businesses.
Macau Insurance Company Limited and Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited, which are insurance subsidiaries of the Group
operating in Macau, have their own policies and procedures to

comply with the relevant requirements in Macau.

(v)  Capital management

In each market in which the Group’s insurance subsidiaries
operate, the local insurance regulator specifies the minimum
amount and type of capital that must be held by each of the
subsidiaries in addition to their insurance liabilities. The minimum
required capital must be maintained at all times throughout the
year. The Group’s subsidiaries are subject to insurance solvency
regulations in the markets in which they issue insurance and
investment contracts, and where they have complied with the
local solvency regulations. The Group has embedded in its asset
and liability management framework the necessary tests to
ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations. The
solvency requirement of each insurance company in each market
is subject to local requirements, which may differ from jurisdiction
to jurisdiction. In Hong Kong, the required margin of solvency for
the Group’s life insurance subsidiary, Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited, is determined by the Group’s appointed
actuary in accordance with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Margin of Solvency) Regulation. In addition, dynamic solvency
test is also required by the Insurance Authority to identify the
solvency position of the company on a going concern basis and
plausible threats to satisfactory financial condition. For current
and previous reporting period/year, the results of dynamic
solvency test are satisfactory.
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2.  Risk management (Continued)
(C) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit, which is designed to focus on enhancing
and sustaining sound internal control in all business and operational
units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the Group Audit
Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director.
The Division conducts a wide variety of internal control activities such
as compliance audits and operations and systems reviews to ensure
the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of control of

the Group.
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To the Shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 252, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2011






